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CITY OF BENSON 
CITY COUNCIL 


MARCH 23, 2015 – 7:00 P.M.  
REGULAR MEETING              


 
A REGULAR MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF BENSON, ARIZONA  


WILL BE HELD ON MARCH 23, 2015 AT 7:00 P.M.,  
AT BENSON CITY HALL,  


120 W. 6TH STREET, BENSON, ARIZONA       
 
                                                                               _________________________________ 
                                                                                      Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk 
 


A G E N D A 
 
The Council may discuss, direct, consider and take possible action as indicated below pertaining to the following: 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  The Call to Order will consist of the Mayor calling the Council to order.  The Mayor or his 
designee shall then lead those present in the Pledge of Allegiance before introducing the invocation speaker, who will 
offer the invocation. 
 
ROLL CALL:  The City Clerk shall call the roll of the members, and the names of those present shall be entered in 
the minutes. 


 
EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION:  The Mayor shall use this time to present employment awards to those City 
employees or to present recognition awards for specific acts regarding public service, if any.   
 
PROCLAMATION:  A proclamation of the Mayor and Council declaring the week of March 23-27, 2015 as “Rotary 
Club of Benson Week.”  
 
PUBLIC HEARING:   The Mayor and Council will be available to receive comments from the public regarding a 
project for which financial assistance is being sought from the U.S. Department of Transportation.  Grant funds will be 
used to provide general public transit to the residents and visitors of the City of Benson and the surrounding 
communities.   
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Communications and comments from the citizens regarding the City of Benson or other 
matters properly addressed to the City Council shall be heard by the Council.  Such remarks shall be addressed to the 
Council as a whole and shall be limited to five (5) minutes unless additional time is granted by the Council.  ** 


 
CITY MANAGER REPORT:  The City Manager will announce meetings and events taking place regarding matters 
involving or related to the City of Benson. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 


1. Discussion and possible action on the Consent Agenda:  ***      
1a. Minutes of the February 23, 2015 Regular Meeting  * 
1b. Resignation of Chris Moncada from the Benson Planning & Zoning Commission  * 
1c. Invoices processed for the period from March 1, 2015 through March 12, 2015  * 


 
2. Presentation of the Certified Audit Report for the City of Benson for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 – 


Dustin DeSpain, Finance Director  * 
 


3. Discussion and possible action regarding a Fireworks display contract between Fireworks Productions of 
Arizona, Ltd. and the City of Benson – William Stephens, City Manager  *   
       


4. Discussion and possible action regarding Resolution 11-2015 of the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, 
Arizona, authorizing the Chief of Police to apply for a National Criminal History Improvement Program Grant 
and to accept it if awarded – Paul Moncada, Chief of Police  * 
 


5. Discussion and possible action to authorize a proposed mural on an outdoor wall of the Visitor’s Center parking 
lot – William Stephens, City Manager  * 
 


EXECUTIVE SESSION:   Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03 (A)(3), discussion or consultation for legal advice with the 
attorney or attorneys of the public body regarding an ordinance about the number of times the Mayor and 
Councilmembers can appear for regular and special meetings by telephone or other available electronic means   


 


Page 1 of 2 







6. Discussion and possible action on an ordinance about the number of times the Mayor and Councilmembers can 
appear for regular and special meetings by telephone or other available electronic means – William Stephens, 
City Manager  * 
   


7. Review of City Finances with emphasis on February financial results, and the City’s financial position at 
February 28, 2015 – Dustin DeSpain, Finance Director  * 
 


EXECUTIVE SESSION:   Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03 (A)(3) and/or (4), discussion or consultation for legal 
advice with the attorney or attorneys of the public body, and possible instruction to the attorney or attorneys of the 
public body about Council seat issues related to A.R.S. Sections 38-101, 38-291(6) and/or law(s) involving residency 
and principle place of abode requirements for Councilmembers 


 
8. Discussion and possible action on procedures to an individual to fill Council seat – William Stephens, City 


Manager 
 


DEPARTMENT REPORTS:  Written Department Reports will be provided to Councilmembers as part of the 
Council packet monthly, discussion and direction to Staff, if any, may ensue. 


 
ADJOURNMENT 
  
POSTED this 19th of March, 2015 
 
Material related to the City Council meeting is available for public review the day before and the day of the meeting, 
during office hours, at the City Clerk’s Office located at 120 W. 6th Street, Benson, Arizona, 520-586-2245 x 2011. 
 
All facilities are handicapped accessible.  If you have a special accessibility need, please contact Vicki L. Vivian, City 
Clerk, at (520) 586-2245 or TDD: (520) 586-3624, no later than eight (8) hours before the scheduled meeting time.   
 
Any invocation that may be offered before the start of regular Council business shall be the voluntary offering of a 
private citizen, for the benefit of the Council and the citizens present.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation 
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Council, and the Council does not endorse the religious 
beliefs or views of this, or any other speaker. 
 
Executive Sessions - Upon a vote of the majority of the City Council, the council may enter into Executive Sessions 
pursuant to Arizona Revised Statues §38-431.03 (A)(3) to obtain legal advice on matters listed on the Agenda. 
 


* Denotes an Exhibit in addition to the Council Communication 
 


** Call to the Public 
 
Arizona Revised Statutes §38-431.01(H) provides that “A public body may make an open call to the public during a 
public meeting, subject to reasonable time, place and manner restrictions to allow individuals to address the public 
body on any issue within the jurisdiction of the public body.  At the conclusion of an open call to the public, individual 
members of the public body may respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the public body, may ask 
staff to review a matter or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the public body 
shall not discuss or take legal action on matters raised during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly 
noticed for discussion and legal action.”  As such, a Call to the Public, if on the agenda, is provided as a courtesy. 
 
In order to speak during the Call to the Public, please complete the Call to the Public form requesting to do so. 
 


*** Consent Agenda 
 


The Consent Agenda will be the first item under New Business and shall list separately distinct items requiring action 
by the City Council that are generally routine items not requiring Council discussion.  A single motion will approve all 
items on the Consent Agenda, including any resolutions or ordinances, or claims/invoices that are of a routine nature.  
A Councilmember may remove any issue from the Consent Agenda, and that issue will be discussed and voted upon 
separately, immediately following the Consent Agenda under its proper regular category of New Business. 
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		A G E N D A






City of Benson 


APR I L  20 1 5  
S u n M o n  T u e W e d  T hu  F r i  S a t  


   1 2 3 4 


5 6 7 8 9 10 11 


12 13 14 15 16 17 18 


19 20 21 22 23 24 25 


26 27 28 29 39   


FOR MORE INFORMATION VISIT WWW.CITYOFBENSON.COM 


Planning & Zoning  
Public Hearing & 
Meeting 7:00 p.m. 


City Council  
Worksession 6.00 p.m. 
 


Library Advisory 
Board 4:00 p.m. 


Community Watershed 
Alliance 6:30 p.m. 


City Council Meeting 
7:00 p.m. 


Benson Economic 
Development  
Committee 6:00 p.m. 


City Council Meeting 
7:00 p.m. 



http://WWW.cityofbenson.com





Meetings 


 


Events 


 
 


Wednesday, March 25,  
Monday, April 6, 2015 


– 


Eldorado Holdings, owners of Vigneto, formerly known as 
Whetstone Ranch, will be holding Public Open Houses, 
7:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. at the Benson Community Center, 
705 W. Union Street. 
 


Tuesday, March 24, 2015 – Community Watershed Alliance, 6:30 p.m., City Hall 


Tuesday, March 31, 2015 – Citizen Review Session - Vigneto, 7:00 p.m., City Hall 
 


Monday, April 6, 2015  – Benson Economic Development Committee, 6:00 p.m., 
City Hall 
 


Tuesday, April 7, 2015 – Planning & Zoning Commission, Public Hearing & Meeting, 
7:00 p.m., City Hall 
 


Monday, April 13, 2015 – City Council Meeting, 7:00 p.m., City Hall 


Tuesday, April 14, 2015 – Library Advisory Board, 4:00 p.m., City Library 


Monday, April 20, 2015 – City Council Worksession, 6:00 p.m., City Hall 


Monday, April 27, 2015 – City Council Meeting, 7:00 p.m., City Hall 


Tuesday, April 28, 2015 – Community Watershed Alliance, 6:30 p.m., City Hall 


 
For Events happening in Benson go to www.cityofbenson.com “What to do Today” 



http://www.cityofbenson.com/






CITY OF BENSON 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 


 
 
DATE:  3/10/15   
  
TO:   William Stephens, City Manager  
 
FROM:  Keith Spangler, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:  February 2015 Department Head Report 
 
 
 
Operations 
 
During the month of February, Benson Fire Department responded to 84 calls.  The 
average number of Firefighters responding to the calls for the month was 8.  The lowest 
number was 1 and the highest number was 9.  The average response time from page to 
on scene was 5 minutes.  The average time from page to en route was 1 minute and the 
average time from en route to on scene was 3 minutes.  The break down of calls is 
listed below. 
 
Type      Number 
 
Structure Fire         3                 
Vehicle Fire        1                                          
Brush Fire         0                                                 
EMS       63                                            
Rescue        0        
Haz-Mat        2                                                
Service Calls        0                                             
Good Intent Calls     15 
False Alarms        0 
Miscellaneous Calls       0 
 
Benson Fire Department had two (2) Mutual Aide Calls   
 
Meetings and Trainings 
 
Business/Training meetings were held on February 11th and February 18th. 
 
Miscellanous 
 
Attended the CCEMS and CCFA meeting for the month at Ft. Huachuca. 
 
 







CITY OF BENSON 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 


 
DATE: March 19, 2015 
 
TO:  William Stephens, City Manager 
     
FROM: Dustin DeSpain, Finance Director 
 
cc:  Benson City Council Members 
 
SUBJECT: Finance Department Monthly Report for February, 2015 
               
   
Current Department Projects: 


 We are working on a project to identify taxpayers subject to our local rental tax. Our goal is to 
increase compliance with the tax and to educate the community on the requirements surrounding 
this tax.  


 We are working on a change to our tax code regarding rental tax. We plan to bring this change to 
Council in April. 


 We are monitoring certain bills in the legislature currently that could affect Benson. A bill was 
introduced on Community Facilities Districts that we are in the process of gathering more 
information on.  


 Budget spreadsheets are due back to Finance at the end of March. We will be working hard on 
budget from now till the end of June.  


 Our audited financial statements are completed and will be presented to the Council March 23. 
 We are moving forward with educational pieces on the proposed 1% sales tax increase.  We are 


putting together data showing the cost of privatizing the utilities and loss of services. 
 
Upcoming: 


 Starting before end of March sales tax educational Forums will be scheduled through end of April. 
 Transit application is due April 17.  Laurie is working in conjunction with Brad to complete.  
 Our office remains closed Fridays through June 26, 2015 or further depending on budget. 


 
Finance Department Statistics for February, 2015 
 


 Utility payments processed              2749 
 Other payments processed    326                 
 Payroll checks issued     194 
 Accounts Payable checks issued    191 
 New Business License Applications taken      7 
 Customers enrolled on Xpress Bill Pay   655 
 Customers signed up for Online Statements  331                                                                                    







CITY OF BENSON 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 


 
 
DATE: March 3, 2015 
 
To: William Stephens, City Manager  
 
FROM: Peggy Scott, Library Director   
 
SUBJECT: End of the month report for February 2015 
 
 
 
 
February 10th the circulation computer would not connect to the Internet, 
requiring a 1 1/2 hour phone call to Executech.  
 
On the 25th provided a tour to a group of Webelo’s so they may obtain a badge.  
They were shown how to use the card catalogue and then locate the material on 
the shelf.  
 
February 27th was an all-day webinar on “Big talk for small libraries 2015” 
presented by Nebraska Library Commission. All staff were able to view portions 
of the webinar.  
 
Completed the state report for the Arizona State Library. 
 
 
Attachment: Monthly statistics            







Feb-15 Feb-14 YTD-2015 YTD-2014


Total Circulation 5,838 5,834 46,139 51,300  monthly circulation of material
Patrons 4,792 5,739 36,066 44,292  patrons entering the library


New Registration 59 56 551 583  new patron cards


Total Registration 7,731 7,196 7,731 7,196  total # of patrons in database


Programs 16 22 51 78 #of programs provided by library
Pr. Attend 266 309 919 918 total attendance for programs


Ref. Questions 737 738 4,525 5,329 ref questions answered by staff


Volunteers 1 0 9 3  new volunteers this month
Volunteer hours 13.75 30 261.9 316.75  total of monthly volunteer hours


Book Count
Titles added 124 76 1,117 1,418  new titles added to database
Titles deleted 148 586 2,094 3,018  titles removed from collection


Collection Total 33,742 35,521 33,742 35,521  total material in database


Overdues:
Titles overdue 513 439 4,100 4,044  number of overdue items
Contacts 97 87 957 1,000  number of patrons contacted
Titles returned 288 330 2,846 3,220  # of overdue items returned


Internet Users 1,119 1,430  # of people signed up for p.c.'s


February-15
Statistical Report


Benson Public Library







CITY OF BENSON 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 


DATE: 03/16/2015 


TO: Mayor King & City Council 


FROM: Paul Moncada, Chief of Police e#1 


CC: 


SUBJECT: February Report 


Attached is the February recap of Police Department calls for service, calls 
by type, and incidents by description. The report is in the new format, 
Spillman Technologies provides a lot of different reporting options at this 
time the two attached are the ones that provide council with the information 
that they are used to getting from the police department. At the time of this 
report the police department is down to three full time dispatchers, we have 
lost another officer and have one officer's back ground investigation started 
by another agency and one of the detectives has informed me that he is 
testing with the Attorney General's Office. 







03/17/15 	 Benson Police Department 	 4046 
09:33 	Law Incident Summary Report, by Responsible Officer 	Page: 	1 


Offense 	 CC ACT EJN FTS FBG EJD TFP CRA Other Total 


13-1302A Custodial interfere 
13-1203 Assault 
13-2011A Fraudulent creatio 
13-2917B1 disturb prvt/pub 
13-4902A1 Criminal trespass 
Animal control 
Welfare Check 
Found Property 
Suspicious person 
Information 
Alarm 
Assist other agency 
Civil standby/domstc viol 
Public - other types 
Emergency Unknown problem 
Vioation of Court order 
28-871 Unsfe park,stop,stand 
28-4831 Unlwfl abandonment o 
Other Traffic Incidents 


1 0 0 0 ( 


1 0 0 0 ( 
0 1 0 0 ( 
2 1 0 0 ( 
1 0 0 0 ( 
4 1 0 0 ( 
4 0 0 0 ( 
1 0 0 0 ( 
1 3 0 0 ( 
2 0 0 0 ( 
1 0 0 0 ( 
1 0 0 0 ( 
2 0 0 0 ( 
2 0 0 0 ( 
2 0 0 0 ( 
1 0 0 0 ( 
1 0 0 0 ( 
1 0 0 0 ( 
1 0 0 0 ( 


1 	0 
1 	0 
1 	0 
1 	0 
1 	0 
1 	0 


0 
I 	0 


0 
I 	0 
I 	0 
1 	0 
1 	0 
1 	0 
I 	0 


0 
I 	0 
I 	0 
1 	0 


( ) 0 ( 


( ) o c ) 
( ) o ( ) 
( ) o c ) 
( ) 0 ) 
( ) 0 ( ) 
( ) o ( ) 
( ) o ( ) 
( ) o ( ) 
( ) o ( ) 
( ) o c ) 
( ) o ( ) 
( ) o ( ) 
( ) o ( ) 
( ) o ( ) 
( ) o c ) 
( ) o c ) 
( ) o c ) 


) o c ) 


1 
1 
1 
3 
1 
5 
4 
1 
4 
2 
1 
1 
2 
2 
2 
1 
1 
1 
1 


Grand Totals 	 32 	8 	0 	0 	0 	0 	0 	0 	0 	40 
Percentages 	 80.0 20.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 


Report Includes: 
All dates between '00:00:00 02/01/15' and '23:59:59 02/28/15' 
All agencies matching 'BNPD' 
All officers 
All dispositions 
All natures 
All locations 
All cities 
All clearance codes 
All observed offenses 
All reported offenses 
All offense codes 


*** End of Report /tmp/rptv3Z6Cd-rplwods.r1_1 *** 







03/17/15 	 Benson Police Department 
09:30 	 Total CAD Calls Received, by Nature of Call 


Nature of Call 	 Total Calls Received 	% 


4046 
Page: 	1 


of Total 


30 Day Impound Hearing 4 1.16 
911 HANGUP 2 0.58 
Abandoned Vehicle 1 0.29 
Agency Assistance 7 2.02 
Alarm 8 2.31 
Robbery Alarm 2 0.58 
Animal Problem 11 3.18 
Cruelty to Animals 1 0.29 
Animal/Barking Dog 2 0.58 
Assault 4 1.16 
Assault with Deadly weapon 1 0.29 
Attempt to Locate 1 0.29 
Barking Dog 6 1.73 
Burglary 1 0.29 
Child Abuse or Neglect 2 0.58 
Citizen Assist 17 4.91 
Citizen Dispute 2 0.58 
Civil 10 2.89 
Civil Standby 7 2.02 
Courtesy Transportation 1 0.29 
Criminal Damage 2 0.58 
Custodial Interference 3 0.87 
Dead Body 2 0.58 
Deliver Message 1 0.29 
Disorderly Conduct 4 1.16 
Disturbance 11 3.18 
Domestic Trouble 5 1.45 
Driving on Suspended license 3 0.87 
Controlled Substance Problem 1 0.29 
Drunk Subject 5 1.45 
DUI Alcohol or Drugs 1 0.29 
Emergency 4 1.16 
Extra Patrol 3 0.87 
Fingerprints 1 0.29 
Fingerprints 17 4.91 
Fire 1 0.29 
Fire 1 0.29 
Vehicle Fire 1 0.29 
Firearms Registration 1 0.29 
Found Property 2 0.58 
Fraud 1 0.29 
Gas Leak/Odor 2 0.58 
Harassment 1 0.29 
Harrassment 3 0.87 
Traffic Accident Hit and Run 1 0.29 
Information Report 15 4.34 
Juvenile Problem 1 0.29 
Lost Property 1 0.29 
Medical Emergency 3 0.87 
Overdose 1 0.29 
Parking Problem 7 2.02 
Traffic Accident w/ Damage 7 2.02 
Traffic Accident, w/ Injuries 2 0.58 
Reckless Driving 1 0.29 
Runaway Juvenile 1 0.29 







03/17/15 	 Benson Police Department 
09:30 	 Total CAD Calls Received, by Nature of Call 


4046 
Page: 	2 


Nature of Call Total Calls Received % of Total 


Sex Offense 1 0.29 
Shots Fired 1 0.29 
Animal snake 1 0.29 
Stray Animal 9 2.60 
Suspect Vehicle 2 0.58 
Suspicious Person/Circumstanc 24 6.94 
Theft 15 4.34 
Threatening 9 2.60 
Traffic Acc 3 0.87 
Traffic Hazard 9 2.60 
Traffic Violation 3 0.87 
Patient Transfer 2 0.58 
Trespassing 8 2.31 
Unwanted Person 8 2.31 
Utilities Callout 7 2.02 
Vandalism 2 0.58 
Vehicle Theft 1 0.29 
Vehicle release 1 0.29 
Vicious Animal 1 0.29 
VIN Number Inspection 2 0.58 
Viol Crt Order 8 2.31 
Warrant 9 2.60 
Welfare Check 14 4.05 


Total Calls: 346 


Report Includes: 
All dates between '00:00:00 02/01/15' and '23:59:59 02/28/15' 
All nature of incidents 
All cities 
All types 
All priorities 
All agencies matching 'BNPD' 


*** End of Report /tmp/rptvT6ngb-rpcdtccr.r1_1 *** 







Benson Animal Control 
	


Monthly Report 


Month in Report 	February 2015 


Description 
	


Current Month 
	


Year to Date 


Dogs Turned in: 3 4 


Dogs Picked up: 0 6 


Dogs Adopted: 6 14 


Dogs Euthanized / Owner Requested: 0 1 


Dogs Euthanized / Unadoptable (Aggressive, Sick,Bite History): 0 1 


Dogs Returned to Owner 4 5 


Dog Complaints: 31 44 


Dog Bites: 1 1 


Dog Licenses Sold: 51 117 ,  


Cats Turned In 1 8 


Cats Picked up: 2 2 


Cats Returned to Owner: 0 0 


Cats Adopted: 6 9 


Cats Euthanized / Owner Requested 0 0 


Cats Euthanized / Unadoptable (Feral, Sick, Injured): 0 4 


Cat Bites: 0 0 


Removals ( Snake,Skunk, birds, etc): —  0 1 


Calls Responded to: 31 44 


Compliance Notices (Warnings): 0 0 


Citations Issued: 1 3 


P D.Assist 0 0 


Dogs at the shelter (time of Report): 14 35 


Cats at the shelter (time of Report): 5 10 


Removals:*** 
1 skunk 


Donations: 
600 lbs dog/cat food, kitty litter 







CITY OF BENSON 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 


 
DATE: March 10, 2015  
 
TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL  
 
FROM: Ann P. Roberts, City Prosecutor 
CC:  Bill Stephens, City Manager  
 
SUBJECT: Prosecutorial Statistics for February, 2015 
 
Statistics for prosecutorial activity in the Benson Magistrate/Justice of the Peace, Precinct No. III: 
 
TRIALS: 
 Child Abuse       00    
 Criminal Traffic Trials:       00 
 General Crime Trials:      04 
 Drug Related Trials:      01 
 Domestic Violence Trials:      01 
 D.U.I. Jury Trials:       00 
 Animal Control/Game and Fish Trials/Registrar of Contractors:  00 
 Total Trials        06 
        
PRETRIAL CONFERENCES: 
 
 Criminal Traffic Pretrial Conference Hearings:   56 
 General Crime Pretrial Conference Hearings:    18 
 Drug Related Pretrial Conference Hearings:    12 
 Domestic Violence Pretrial Conference Hearings:  11 
 D.U.I. Pretrial Conference Hearings:     05 
 Animal Control/Game and Fish Pretrial Conference Hearings: 02 
 Total Pretrials                  104 
  
HEARINGS: 
 
 Restitution/OSC and Sentencing Hearings:   00 
 Probation Revocation Hearings:     00 
 Bond Forfeiture Hearings:     00 
 Rule Eleven (Incompetency) Hearings:     00 
 DUI Status/Suppression/Evidentiary Hearing/Status  00 
 Change of Plea Hearing      00 
 Vicious Dog Hearing      00   
 Planning and Zoning Violations/Health Code Hearings  00 
 Total Hearings       00 
 
 Total Case Matters Closed this Month    49 
  
 PROSECUTORIAL TIME SPENT IN COURT  25.50 HRS 
 PROSECUTORIAL TIME SPENT OUTSIDE OF COURT* 72.00 HRS 
 
*TIME SPENT DEALING WITH DEFENSE COUNCIL, VICTIMS, DEFENDANTS AND ON OTHER 
MATTERS SUCH AS ISSUING WARRANTS, CASE PREPARATION, LEGAL RESEARCH AND REVIEW OF 
PENDING CRIMINAL CHARGES. 
 
 







CITY OF BENSON 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 


 
 
DATE: March 16, 2015 
 
TO:  Mr. Stephens, City Manager 
 
FROM: Laura Parkin, Recreation Coordinator   
 
SUBJECT:    Monthly Report – February 12, 2015 through March 15, 2015 
 
 
Summer Programs:  


• I am working on our 2015 Summer Program.  
• I have contacted potential camp instructors. 
• I am in the process of finalizing the summer camp schedule. 


Pool: 
• Regular Pool maintenance. 
• I am working on our 2015 Aquatics Program. 


Lions Park: 
• Little League is in the process of scheduling the use of Lions Park for the 2015 


baseball season.  
• There has been a higher demand for use of the fields this year. We find it 


increasingly more challenging each year to accommodate the demand for use of 
fields.  


• There have been several requests from organizations to use Lions Park for 
Special Events. These requests are making scheduling more challenging than 
normal. There is also the potential that Leagues are going to have less time on 
the fields because of these requests.  


• Due to lack of availability of the Softball Field the Middle School Baseball 
Tournament will not be held in Benson.  


• The number of Ramada rentals is increasing. The next available Saturday for the 
Big Ramada is May 9.  


Community Center:  
• The Center remains full with reservations.  
• The Community Center is booked every Saturday until April.  
• On February 3, AARP began their tax assistance at the Community Center every 


Tuesday, until April 14.  
Completed Tasks: 


• We continue to take Ramada Reservations and Center Rental Reservations.  
• Deposited Revenues. 


 







• Attended Department Head Meetings.  
• Preformed regular pool maintenance.  
• Communicated with the appropriate City Departments regarding questions from 


community members through social media.  
• Posted Council Meetings to the City Facebook page.  
• Notified the Police Department of Park Reservations and Events.  
• I have processed five Special Event Permit Applications this month, and currently 


have two pending.  
• I have completed my 2015/16 FY budget.  
• I have scheduled twenty-nine people to come by my office this month.  


Completed 4th of July Tasks: 
• I contacted 27 of last year’s vendors to offer them the opportunity to participate 


again this year, three have confirmed.  
• I secured Arizona’s G&T for the parade announcing and sound.  
• I have updated all forms and applications.  
• Dick Ferdon secured the use of Kartchner’s Tents for the parade.  
• My volunteers and I have agreed on a parade theme, and grand marshal.  
• I have contacted all but two of my sponsors from last year, two have verbally 


committed.  
• Warren Johnson is contacting his sponsors from last year.  
• I have created a new 4th of July logo, and posted on the City’s Facebook page.  
• I have placed the 4th of July cover photo on the City’s Facebook page.  
• David Bryan is coordinating National Anthem Auditions. We plan to have the 


auditions in April.  
• I have secured all but one of the bands for this year’s celebration.  
• I have secured the music for the Fireworks display.  
• Secured bids for the 2015 4th of July Celebration.  


Status of Ongoing Projects: 
• Due to the desperate need for lights on the Sand Lot and an additional 


Softball/Baseball Fields, we have been working on the feasibility of a Ball field 
Project; to include working with member of the community for possible funding, 
looking for available grants, cost analysis and communicating with the 
appropriate City Departments.  


• I have begun modifying our existing park master plan based on the 2013 Parks 
and Recreation Survey Results. Once we complete changes, we will meet with 
Mr. Stephens and Mr. Hamilton prior to moving forward.   


• I am working toward completion of departmental updates to our SOPs.  
• I am working on departmental Emergency Action Plans.  







• I am working to find local High School Students to create and implement a Skin 
Cancer Prevention and Awareness Program. Once I have implemented this 
program for a year, I will be able to apply for a grant to purchase a shade 
structure for the Union Street Playground Equipment.  


• I am working toward going live with the new City website.  
• I am looking at the feasibility of hosting a Cycling Event in Benson.  
• I need to apply for the skate park grant.  
• I need to complete my Emergency Response Certification Classes.  
• I have submitted our changes to Chapter 11 of the City Code to Mr. Stephens for 


his review prior to sending it to the City Attorney.  
• I have submitted the draft of the Special Events chapter to Mr. Stephens for 


review prior to sending it to the City Attorney.  
• I need to get current on Records Destruction.  
• I am working on the Sun Corridor Trail project.  
• I am working with an intern on the Parks, Trails, and Open Spaces Master Plan.  


 







CITY OF BENSON 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 


 
 
DATE:   March 17, 2015   
 
TO:   William Stephens, City Manager    
 
FROM:  Bob Nilson, Tourism Supervisor    
 
SUBJECT: Tourism Report for February 2015   
 
  
 
 
 
• Our Visitor count for February 2015 was 1,637 as compared to 1,420 in February of 
2014, up 217 from last year. This is the best count since 2010.  
 
  
• We are designing a “G” scale Railroad for the Visitor Center as part of the Union 
Pacific Foundation grant. I have been getting a lot of interest from the several of the 
model railroad clubs. Hopefully this might attract model railroad fans to Benson just to 
see this layout. 
 
 
• Greyhound ticket sales have still been a little slow in February. 
 
 
• I have been having three to five inquiries per week wanting to know about the El 
Dorado project. 
 
 
 • I have set up an Itinerary for Jay Jones, a freelance travel writer who will be writing a 
story on some Benson attractions for the Los Angeles Times. He will be visiting the 
Singing Wind Bookshop, Down by the River Bed & Breakfast and Kartchner Caverns on 
April 3rd. Andy at Mi Casa has been gracious enough to give Mr Jones a free lunch. 
Hopefully he will write a good story on Benson.  


 
• Below are our Visitor Counts for February of 2015 
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Discussion:  
 
Attached are the minutes of the February 23, 2015 Regular Meeting.     
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Council pleasure 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                         Consent Agenda Item # 1a 
                                               
From: Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk                   
           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Minutes of the February 23, 2015 Regular Meeting         
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THE REGULAR MEETING 


OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF BENSON, ARIZONA 


HELD FEBRUARY 23, 2015 AT 7:00 P.M. 


AT CITY HALL, 120 W. 6TH STREET, BENSON, ARIZONA         


 


CALL TO ORDER:    


    


Mayor King called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. with the Pledge of Allegiance.  Mayor King then 


introduced Sarah Isakson of St. Raphael in the Valley church who offered the invocation.  


 


ROLL CALL:   


 


Present were: Mayor Toney D. King, Sr., Vice Mayor Lori McGoffin, Councilmembers Pat Boyle, Jeff 


Cook, Joe Konrad, David Lambert and Peter Wangsness (via phone). 


 


EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION:  None 


 


PROCLAMATION:  None 


 


PUBLIC HEARING:  The City of Benson’s City Council will hold a Public Hearing on the General Development 


Plan Update.  The General Development Plan helps direct long and short-term development regulations and 


requirements.  The purpose of this public hearing is to provide an opportunity for citizens to address questions, 


concerns or support regarding the document directly to the City Council.   


 


City Clerk Vicki Vivian stated the public hearing was being held on the General Development Plan Update, 


adding the General Development Plan helps direct long and short-term development regulations and 


requirements.  Ms. Vivian then stated the purpose of this public hearing is to provide an opportunity for 


citizens to address questions, concerns or support regarding the document directly to the City Council.  


Mayor King then opened the public hearing at 7:05 p.m.  Mayor King stated there was no one signed up to 


speak during the public hearing and then asked if there was anyone present who wished to speak.  After 


receiving no requests to speak, Mayor King closed the public hearing at 7:06 p.m.  


 


CALL TO THE PUBLIC:   
 


Leo O’Farrell representing Benson Clean & Beautiful, stated the Benson Clean & Beautiful organization is 


a 501C3, non-profit community based organization dedicated to improving the quality of life for residents 


and citizens through the creation of beautiful historic murals painted throughout the City on private and 


public buildings and structures.  Mr. O’Farrell stated 18 such murals have been created since their inception 


in 2013 under the leadership of the President, Lisa Hill, who is here.  Mr. O’Farrell stated at the present 


time they are in negotiations for submitting proposals to several local building owners to create 4 additional 


murals in town; a building on Hwy 80, Clip, Cut and Polish, the SKP Park on Hwy 80 and Washington 


Federal Bank, adding they all hopefully will come into being during the first half of 2015.  Mr. O’Farrell 


then stated with a new Board of Directors in place, they hope to have new vigor and a new direction with 


new opportunities, adding murals are not their only project.  Mr. O’Farrell then spoke about their “Gussied 


Up” program started recently, with plaques being presented to those businesses or homeowners who have 


done something special to improve the appearance of their properties and their business during each of the 


4 seasons.  Mr. O’Farrell stating the program is low-profile, but hopefully it’s building momentum and as 


time goes on, all businesses and many homeowners will participate and make this truly a beautiful city.  


Mr. O’Farrell then stated they are also partnering with the Historical Commission to create a neighborhood 


park in Apache Park to be used by all citizens of Benson.  Mr. O’Farrell then stated they are also dedicated 


to improving the appearance of Benson by removing old, tired buildings that are a disgrace to our City and 


using the space instead to create opportunities for growth, beauty, improvements and to perhaps, also 


increase the City’s tax base.  Mr. O’Farrell then stated he sent each Councilmember a letter from our new 


Board Chairman, David Bryan, inviting them to support efforts to help the Benson Hospital have a 


successful community Health Fair this coming weekend.  Mr. O’Farrell stated he was very pleased and 


would like to publicly announce that the Mayor has already submitted his request to take part in the event 
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on Saturday by occupying the Benson Clean & Beautiful’s booth representing both the City and Benson 


Clean & Beautiful for an hour.  Mr. O’Farrell then stated the letter asked Councilmembers to donate 1 hour 


of their time on Saturday to support this community event, then gave the Councilmembers his contact info 


should they decide to participate.  Mr. O’Farrell then stated he appreciates the support and confidence in 


what Benson Clean & Beautiful does to help make Benson a more beautiful place to live.  


 


George Scott of Southeastern Arizona Economic Development Group (SAEDG), stated he was 


representing another group and some of the clients SAEDG works with, adding SAEDG represents 2 major 


projects that have a chance to be developed in Benson in the not too distant future; however, those 2 


projects are waiting for the Council to approve the General Development Plan (GDP) since they can’t 


proceed until the GDP is updated and approved.  Mr. Scott then stated he was here tonight to ask the 


Council to approve the updated General Development Plan so the projects can move forward, adding if it is 


approved, he will be in to City Hall in the morning to talk about 1 of the projects. 


 


Paul Lotsof, Manager of CAVE FM, stated on February 11, he met with City Staff and it was a learning 


experience for him. Mr. Lotsof then stated he would say 2 underlying themes were presented; the City 


would like to have the radio station remain in Benson and rules are rules and must be followed to the letter 


by everyone.  Mr. Lotsof then stated in his case, he believes these 2 things are at odds with each other, 


adding the existing rules and his continued presence in Benson are mutually exclusive, adding the City 


Council can have one or the other, but not both.  Mr. Lotsof then stated compliance with the existing codes 


presents an extreme financial burden and stated he wonders what would happen if the City Council told 


every business in town that they must pay $30,000 for the privilege of continuing to do business in Benson, 


adding he is guessing that 4th Street would be lined with vacant store fronts and there would be a real estate 


boom in Mescal and St. David because most of Benson’s businesses are not highly profitable and they must 


watch where they spend their money.  Mr. Lotsof then stated private businesses are not like City 


government, adding when the City spends money recklessly, the City can make up the shortfall by raising 


everyone’s taxes, but the private sector has no such luxury.  Mr. Lotsof then stated he wished he could pay 


for his revenue shortfall by raising the radio tax, but he can’t do that, which means he can’t toss money 


away on investments that will never pay off.  Mr. Lotsof then stated of the many expensive code 


requirements the City wants him to pay for, the one that by far is the most expensive is the parking lot.  Mr. 


Lotsof then stated depending on the number of spaces, the cost of the parking lot could easily exceed the 


value of the land he owns, adding he could be looking at tens of thousands of dollars for design work, 


uprooting big trees, ADA requirements and the actual paving.  Mr. Lotsof then stated he would have a 


better appreciation of the need for a parking lot if someone would present a shred of evidence that there is a 


parking problem in the vicinity of the radio station, but all he hears is that rules are rules and the parking lot 


is required regardless of what it costs.  Mr. Lotsof then stated on the evening of January 5, he presented 


Council with a proposed amendment which would have solved the bulk of his problems with the City, 


including the parking lot matter, but instead of passing it on January 26, Council passed an amendment that 


accomplished nothing and affirmed the parking lot requirement.  Mr. Lotsof then stated during that 


meeting, there was a suggestion made that he might want to go to the Board of Adjustment to get rid of the 


requirement, but he and his attorney reviewed the ordinance that sets forth the powers of the Board of 


Adjustments and concluded the Board can do nothing to help him.  Mr. Lotsof then stated there is no doubt 


in his mind that City Attorney Paul Loucks or the other City Attorney would advise the Board of 


Adjustment to reject his request so passing the buck to the Board of Adjustment probably wouldn’t work.  


Mr. Lotsof then stated what would work is reconsideration of the amendment Council passed on January 


26.  Mr. Lotsof then stated he filed a petition for reconsideration a few days after the January 26 meeting 


and there is no question the filing was timely, but Mr. Loucks expressed the opinion that reconsideration 


isn’t possible because it wouldn’t be allowed under Robert’s Rules of parliamentary procedure.  Mr. Lotsof 


then disagreed, stating a dozen years ago at the suggestion of then City Attorney Ann Roberts, all 


references to Robert’s Rules were purged from the City Code so it would appear there’s no reason why 


Council can’t revisit what they passed in late January and make the needed changes.  Mr. Lotsof then stated 


his suggestion is that Council place this item on an agenda in the near future, adding the Council doesn’t 


have to do anything if they don’t want to, but if they elect to do nothing, they shouldn’t claim they want to 


keep the radio station in Benson.  Mr. Lotsof then stated if the Council has any questions or comments, he 


would be happy to participate when they address New Business Item #4.     
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CITY MANAGER REPORT: 


 


City Manager William Stephens addressed Council, giving the dates of upcoming meetings and events. 


 


Tuesday, February 24, 2015   – Community Watershed Alliance, 6:30 p.m., City Hall 


Monday, March 2, 2015   – Benson Economic Development Committee, 6:00 p.m., City Hall 


Tuesday, March 3, 2015   – Planning & Zoning Commission, 7:00 p.m., City Hall 


Monday, March 9, 2015   – City Council Meeting, 7:00 p.m., City Hall 


Tuesday, March 10, 2015   – Library Advisory Board, 4:00 p.m., City Library 


 


Mr. Stephens then stated for information on meetings and events, the public could visit the City’s website. 


 


NEW BUSINESS: 


 


1. Discussion and possible action on the Consent Agenda    


 


1a. Minutes of the January 26, 2015 Regular Meeting 


1b. Invoices processed for the period from February 1, 2015 through February 11, 2015 


 


Vice Mayor McGoffin moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Seconded by Councilmember Boyle.  


Motion passed 7-0. 


 


2. Discussion and possible action on Resolution 8-2015 of the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, 


Arizona, readopting the City of Benson General Development Plan, a General Plan for Municipal 


Development Policy pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes, A.R.S. §9-461 et. seq., establishing 


Planning Goals, Objectives and Policies; and considering each of the Plan Elements required by 


Statute as well as others determined essential by the City   


 


Councilmember Konrad stated he would like to commend Staff for the work they put into this item, adding 


he received a draft copy in October and in reviewing that draft and what the Council has now, he knows a 


ton of work went into this and Staff needs to be commended for the time they put into it.  Councilmember 


Konrad then stated he think the Council is ready to move forward with this.  Mayor King stated he thinks 


the proposed plan works very well for any coming developments, adding he had reviewed it over and over 


and he appreciates the work put into it.  Mayor King then stated he thinks it’s very positive for the City and 


it’s something the Council needs to act on now.   


 


Councilmember Cook stated he had most of his questions answered by Staff, but there was one troubling 


sentence on page 31, which reads “any activity which brings new money into the community is appropriate 


focus for economic development…” adding he would strongly disagree because he doesn’t think every 


activity that would bring money into the Benson community is a good thing, noting that could mean a 


marijuana hydroponic farm or some sort of a factory, like there was in Tucson that had radioactive 


emission problems over an extended period of time.  Councilmember Cook then stated those are examples, 


adding he doesn’t think every type of activity that brings new money to the community is appropriate and 


he would like to change the language from “any activity” to “many activities.”  Councilmember Konrad 


stated one could make the argument that the focus may be a negative focus instead of a positive focus and 


the project wouldn’t be encouraged, adding he didn’t want to stall this over a couple of words.  Vice Mayor 


McGoffin stated the language also read that economic development efforts “should” include 


manufacturing, etc., adding she thinks anything that comes to the community still keeps someone busy with 


jobs.  Councilmember Cook stated he disagreed that all activity would be appropriate and stated if the 


Council spent some time thinking, they could probably come up with a lot of activities that would be 


undesirable for Benson so he doesn’t want outside business interests to read the General Development Plan 


and think the City Council would welcome anything and everything, adding he thinks that puts Benson in a 


bad light.  Vice Mayor McGoffin stated the Council doesn’t have to approve everything that comes before 


them with Councilmember Cook stating that is true and the current Council would most likely not approve 


something inappropriate, but outside interests who read the General Development Plan would see that City 


Staff and City Council are encouraging absolutely any kind of activity to come to Benson and again, he 
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thinks that puts the City Staff and City Council in a very bad light.  Councilmember Cook then stated he 


would still like to make the change from “any activity” to “many activities.”  Councilmember Konrad 


stated he respectfully disagreed, adding the language reads that any activity is an appropriate focus for 


economic development, but that doesn’t necessarily means it condones anything and everything.  


Councilmember Cook disagreed, stating the word “any” does condone everything.  Councilmember Boyle 


asked if an asterisk could be placed in the plan and note that things are within the bounds of the community 


standards or something along those lines to show there may be some things the City doesn’t want in 


Benson with Planning Technician Michelle Johnson saying she could insert a footnote stating to some 


extent, potential activities are subject to zoning and various other regulatory constraints, if Council desired.  


Mayor King stated if the Council wanted to do that, someone could add it to their motion, adding he would 


like to see the item move forward and not be delayed.  Councilmember Cook stated he thought he covered 


exactly that by only changing two words, but now Council was discussing adding many more words that 


still don’t necessarily clarify the issue he is addressing.   


 


Vice Mayor McGoffin stated she was good with the plan the way it is with Mayor King agreeing.  


Councilmember Lambert stated he was good with the way it is, adding he agrees with Councilmember 


Konrad that Staff has put many hours into this and Council has had several months to review it and go over 


it, adding Staff put Council’s notes in the plan and he thinks it is good the way it is.  Councilmember 


Wangsness agreed, then added he did think Councilmember Cook has some good points, but Council 


would still have the opportunity to deal with things on a case by case basis later.    


 


Vice Mayor McGoffin then moved to approve the City of Benson General Development Plan as is.  


Seconded by Councilmember Lambert.  Motion passed 7-0 with Councilmember Cook stating he thinks the 


plan as is sheds Benson in a bad light to outsiders and he thinks the Council will be fighting their own 


words when the time comes because they will be thrown back in Council’s face, but otherwise, he thinks 


the rest of the changes suggested are very good for Benson so he was reluctantly voting in favor.  City 


Clerk Vicki Vivian stated she would like to clarify the motion was to pass the Resolution 8-2015 for the 


record with Vice Mayor McGoffin confirming her motion included approving Resolution 8-2015.   


   


3. Discussion and possible action on Ordinance 575 of the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, 


Arizona, amending the Benson City Code, Chapter 18 “Boards, Commissions and Committees,” 


Article 18-7, “Benson Airport Advisory Committee” to disband the Benson Airport Advisory 


Committee and delete any reference to the Benson Airport Advisory Committee in the Benson City 


Code   


 


Councilmember Boyle asked City Attorney Gary Cohen about the language to delete any reference to the 


committee with Mr. Cohen stating there may be other references in the City Code to the committee and out 


of an abundance of caution, this catch all language makes it clear that the committee is disbanded and any 


other ordinance would not be in effect.  Councilmember Konrad then asked about another group being 


formed by citizens and the protection this ordinance provides the City as far as any association with and the 


liability of that separate entity which could be formed outside the bounds of Council with Mr. Cohen 


stating private citizens on their own time can form whatever committees or groups they want, adding 


obviously the citizens can freely discuss whatever they want to discuss with Councilmembers at any time 


the Councilmember choose to have those discussions.  Councilmember Konrad then asked about the 


ordinance shielding the City from any type of liability based on that other group that may be formed with 


Mr. Cohen stating the ordinance doesn’t protect the City from all liability, but for that purpose, it does.   


 


Councilmember Lambert moved to approve Ordinance 575.  Seconded by Councilmember Konrad.  


Motion passed 7-0.   


 


4. Update on the replacement of the CAVE FM building and related zoning and building code issues   


 


City Manager William Stephens stated this item is on the agenda after Staff received direction from 


Council to meet with Mr. Lotsof to discuss the issues.  Mr. Stephens then stated Staff then met with Mr. 


Lotsof and the information was given to Council, adding Public Works Director Brad Hamilton was present 


to answer any questions the Council may have.   
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Councilmember Wangsness stated he still had a problem with the studio zoning designation, covering all 


kinds of studios, adding he thinks Mr. Lotsof is in a category to be considered as non-retail trade, which 


wouldn’t have a lot of traffic, whereas other studios such as art studios and dance studios would have a 


high level of retail trade and require more parking.  Councilmember Wangsness then stated he felt there 


should be two different parking requirements based on that.  Mr. Stephens stated he recalls the ordinance 


Council approved establishing a broadcast studio, which specifically identified it as a different type of 


studio vs. a dance studio, a music studio, a karate studio, etc.  Councilmember Wangsness stated he thought 


the parking requirements were lumped together for studios and it required the same number of parking 


spaces as other studios.  Councilmember Boyle stated the reason Council changed the zoning to a broadcast 


studio instead of just a studio, was to give the City a legal ability to change the parking requirement to only 


a couple parking spaces as opposed to 10 or whatever it might be based on square footage of the building, 


adding if the building were 2,000 sq. ft., 10 parking spaces would be required and he feels that is 


ridiculous.  Councilmember Boyle then stated his understanding was that this would give the Council the 


leeway for a broadcast studio.  Councilmember Konrad stated he felt Councilmember Boyle was bordering 


on what was discussed in the executive session, adding without City Attorney Paul Loucks here, who 


represented the Council in that executive session, he just wanted to make sure Council doesn’t cross any 


lines into disclosing executive session discussions.  Councilmember Boyle stated he recalled the discussion 


in the open meeting being for the reason he just stated with parking.  Mr. Stephens then stated the zoning 


item Council approved was to address a use issue, adding the radio studio has been in existence for some 


time operating on a variance and what the zoning ordinance did was to simply make the use official so it no 


longer has to operate on a variance.  Mr. Stephens then stated by making it official, it also specifically 


defined it as a broadcast studio vs. any other type of studio.  Mr. Stephens then stated with regard to the 


parking issue, it opened it up for an opportunity for Mr. Lotsof to go to the Board of Adjustment to request 


a variance from the parking requirement, which is based on the square footage of any facility.  Vice Mayor 


McGoffin confirmed that the Board of Adjustment can approve a variance if Mr. Lotsof demonstrates no 


need for the required number of parking spaces, adding with 1 employee working and 1 parking spot for 


someone coming to the studio, he may need only 2 parking spaces.   


 


Mayor King then asked Mr. Lotsof if, in the last few years, anyone offered to put in a foundation, trailer 


and parking lot and help Mr. Lotsof with Mr. Lotsof stating no one had.  Mayor King then asked if Mr. 


Lotsof knew that he could go to the Board of Adjustment and request a variance from the required parking 


spaces, adding he doesn’t understand why Mr. Lotsof hasn’t done given that process a chance with Mr. 


Lotsof stating the Council should ask the City Attorney to look into what the Board of Adjustment is 


allowed to do under the ordinance that set them up.  Mr. Lotsof then stated his attorney has pointed out that 


none of this would be in the purview of the Board of Adjustment and doesn’t think they can do that.  There 


was no further discussion.   


   


5. Discussion and possible action about the timing of when Council packets are distributed  


 


Councilmember Lambert stated about 3 years ago, this item came before Council to get packets two weeks 


early, adding at that time Councilmembers Brooks and Sacco wanted the packets two weeks early.  


Councilmember Lambert then stated after the discussion, Council decided two weeks would not work 


because that meant on the night of the Council meeting, Staff would have to hand out the packet for the 


next meeting.  Councilmember Lambert then stated after discussing the issue, Council agreed to have 


packets distributed 1 week before a meeting, which meant deadlines for getting items to the City Clerk for 


the packet was now 11 days before the City Council meeting, adding this also means Staff is working on 


two Council packets at the same time, all the time.  Councilmember Lambert then stated in light of using 


electronic packets on iPads and not having to print every Councilmember a packet, he is proposing to go 


back to the previous schedule and have Council packets distributed on the Wednesday or Thursday before 


Council meetings; then noted due to furloughs, he thinks Wednesday would be best.  Councilmember 


Konrad asked about Thursday with Councilmember Lambert stating with City offices closed on Fridays 


due to furloughs, if the Council received the packets on Wednesday, they could contact Staff on Thursday 


to amend the packet or add items if needed, giving Staff Thursday to make the changes and post amended 


agendas.  Councilmember Lambert then stated moving the distribution date would also change the deadline 


to Monday (1 week before Council meetings) for the submission of items to the City Clerk.   
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Councilmember Cook asked if Councilmember Lambert had discussed this with Staff with Councilmember 


Lambert stating he had.  City Clerk Vicki Vivian then addressed Council stating when she had spoken to 


Councilmember Lambert on the history of the distribution date, she told him the Council packet 


distribution dates are Council driven, adding whatever date is determined by Council; Staff will adjust the 


timelines to fit.  


 


Councilmember Lambert then moved to change Council packet distribution dates to the Wednesday 


afternoon before a Council meeting.  Seconded by Mayor King.  Motion passed 7-0.   


 


6. Discussion only regarding Councilmembers’ physical presence at Council meetings  


 


Mayor King stated he met with Councilmember Wangsness and City Manager William Stephens and 


Councilmember Wangsness isn’t breaking any codes as far as not being physically present.  Vice Mayor 


McGoffin stated it may not be in the City Code, but she thinks Councilmember Wangsness needs to be 


present and maybe the Council needs to look at adjusting the City Code, adding she didn’t know the last 


Council meeting Councilmember Wangsness was present at.  Vice Mayor McGoffin then stated someone 


has to live here and be a resident of the City to be on the City Council, adding if Councilmember 


Wangsness isn’t here, people can’t contact him and he’s not representing the people very well if he is not 


here.  Vice Mayor McGoffin then stated the Council may want to look at the City Code because 


Councilmembers shouldn’t be able to miss this many meetings, adding even though Councilmember 


Wangsness is on the phone, it’s still not the same as actually being here in the community.    


 


Councilmember Wangsness stated he has been in contact with people in Benson, adding his wife is in 


Benson for six weeks at a time and while this isn’t necessarily the best situation, at least he is showing up.  


Councilmember Boyle stated he knew what Councilmember Wangsness was doing is a once in a lifetime 


thing and agrees that Councilmember Wangsness has a responsibility to himself and his family, then asked 


if there was any kind of timeline Councilmember Wangsness might give the Council to think on.  


Councilmember Wangsness stated when this project started, he was consulting from Benson and going 


back and forth, but the problem was Canadian customs, adding they get real picky about work being done 


in Canada, noting he was actually doing the work in Arizona, but it was questionable whether it looked like 


that or not, so he had to go to Canada way temporarily.  Councilmember Wangsness then stated he hopes to 


get back to Benson fairly soon, but he can’t give an exact date at this point.  Councilmember Wangsness 


then stated he is working on a project to build the world’s largest telescope which would be able to actually 


image planets around different stars, adding he ran into some problems in Canada that required him to be 


there more often than the original plan.  Councilmember Wangsness then stated in the meantime, he lost the 


building he was in and his equipment ended up in Canada so he was kind of stuck there as a means of 


employment for now, adding he hopes to bring everything back to Benson into a bigger facility.   


 


Councilmember Konrad stated he was sorry he hadn’t met Councilmember Wangsness in person, then 


stated he had a couple counterpoints to Councilmember Wangsness’ comments.  Councilmember Konrad 


stated he appreciates that Councilmember Wangsness’ wife is in Benson for 6 months at a time, but on the 


other hand, his wife is in Benson 12 months at a time, adding he still has a job here to do on the Council.  


Councilmember Konrad then stated Councilmember Wangsness said the Canadians are frowning upon 


Councilmember Wangsness working in Benson and living in Canada, and it could be turned around to think 


about the citizens of Benson who elected Councilmember Wangsness to work in Benson and yet, he lives 


in Canada.  Councilmember Konrad then stated there are several different ways to dissect this, but he thinks 


what the Council is seeing is that there is some concern within the community that they don’t see a face at 


these meetings.  Councilmember Wangsness stated the Canadian customs is concerned that someone was 


coming to Canada and stealing a job, adding they were afraid he was going to Canada and doing work 


when he was actually doing the work in Benson.  Councilmember Wangsness then stated he was having to 


go back and forth to report on things and it became more difficult, adding there was a risk of not being 


allowed back into Canada, so since then, he did get a temporary work permit, but noted it expires after a 


year.  Councilmember Wangsness then stated he does have email and a phone number and he has been in 


constant contact with people in Benson.   
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Councilmember Cook stated he has been on both sides of this, adding he was on Councilmember 


Wangsness’ side to start with and his stock answer or response to people questioning Councilmember 


Wangsness’ presence was that when Councilmember Wangsness is here, there are people who have 


destructive agendas who have access to him and he sides with them, which isn’t good for anyone, but when 


Councilmember Wangsness is 1,400 miles away, these destructive forces don’t have access to him and he 


thinks for himself.  Councilmember Cook stated for months he has been saying he can live with that, but 


the issue hasn’t gone away and just this past Friday, someone told Councilmember Cook that someone 


living in J6 cannot serve on the City Council, but there is someone living in Canada that does serve on the 


City Council and asked Councilmember Cook how that could be.  Councilmember Cook stated he 


understands on one hand, this may not be breaking any laws or City Codes, but on the other hand, he has 


heard the Councilmember Wangsness has refused to resign from Council and that refusing, Councilmember 


Wangsness is holding his seat in bad faith to the citizens of Benson.  Councilmember Cook stated he was 


sorry, because he was on Councilmember Wangsness’ side at first.  Councilmember Wangsness disagreed 


with Councilmember Cook stating he thinks he is fulfilling the obligations that were given to him when he 


was elected, adding he has people telling him not to step down and that he is representing them as well.  


Councilmember Cook stated he could imagine who those people are, adding there are probably half a dozen 


of them with Councilmember Wangsness stating that is more than the number who have complained at a 


meeting. 


 


Councilmember Lambert stated everyone had touched on what he wanted with the exception of the 


timeline, stating Councilmember Wangsness had said it was unknown as to when project will be 


completed, whether it might be a week, a year, 2 years or 10 years and asked if Councilmember Wangsness 


had any idea of when it might be finished.  Councilmember Wangsness stated it was hard to say, adding a 


project like this could go 20 years and as far as how long he was going to be in Canada, there was no way 


to answer that, but he would like to get home as soon as he could, noting he still considered Benson his 


home and his residence. 


 


Councilmember Lambert stated with that, he agreed with Vice Mayor McGoffin that the Council should 


possibly put this on a future agenda and talk about changes to the Code if the Council needed to.  Vice 


Mayor McGoffin stated she would like to give Staff that direction with Mr. Stephens stating no action 


could be taken at this time, but he could put something on a future Council for review, consideration and 


action, if so desired.     


 


7. Discussion and possible direction to Staff about the Benson Economic Development Committee 


including the Resignation of Ron Brooks, the Resignation of Stephen Insalaco, the Appointment of 


Debra Crafts and the possible retention, reformation, or dissolution of the committee as in proposed 


Ordinance 576 of the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, Arizona, amending the Benson City 


Code, Chapter 18 “Boards, Commissions and Committees,” Article 18-6, “Benson Economic 


Development Committee” to disband and delete any reference to the Benson Economic Development 


Committee in the Benson City Code 


 


City Manager William Stephens stated Mr. Brooks had submitted his resignation, adding Council was 


going to consider both the resignation and an applicant at last Council meeting, but Mr. Insalaco had also 


submitted his resignation after the Council packets were completed.  Mr. Stephens then stated currently the 


committee has an odd-number of members and by allowing 2 members to resign and appointing 1 member, 


it would result in even-number of members.  Mr. Stephens then stated at that Council meeting, 


Councilmember Lambert asked to table the issue to this meeting, and requested the item include language 


to allow additional questions regarding the committee, the activities the committee is involved in, the 


purpose and direction from Council, what expectation the Council may have and if there is a need for the 


committee.   


 


Councilmember Konrad stated he would like to speak about committees in general for a second, adding he 


thinks advisory committees are a good thing to the extent that they should be advisory committees.  


Councilmember Konrad then stated with Councilmembers being seated members of the committees, his 


personal opinion is that the committee can’t be as effective as it should be, adding he thinks what makes 


these committees successful is autonomy; people should feel free to bring their ideas to the committee, 
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discuss them as a committee and then possibly have a liaison between the Council and that committee, but 


to have a sitting Councilmember on an advisory committee to him, was counterproductive.  


Councilmember Konrad then stated the Council has bigger things to focus on, adding he was not trying to 


diminish the importance of the committee, but was simply saying the Council’s mission is to set policy and 


procedures for the City and worry about finances, etc. and to be sidetracked by something such as the 


Benson Economic Development Committee (BEDC) or the Airport Advisory Committee, doesn’t make 


good sense.  Councilmember Konrad then stated there are plenty of good people in the community who are 


willing to step up and participate in these committees and bring Council the information needed to make 


intelligent decisions, but he just doesn’t feel that it’s the job of a Councilmember to be a member of these 


advisory committees.  Councilmember Konrad stated he would like the Council to keep this in mind and 


ask themselves if a Councilmember volunteering for something like that is really the right thing to do and if 


the Councilmember is really doing the community a service, adding his personal opinion is that the 


Councilmembers are not.    


 


Councilmember Wangsness stated he felt there was a difference between the BEDC and an advisory 


committee, adding an advisory committee doesn’t need to have any affiliation with the City, but economic 


development is a little different in that it represents part of the City working with other communities and 


with other committees such as the Chamber of Commerce, the Southeastern Arizona Economic 


Development Group (SAEDG) and things like that.  Councilmember Wangsness then stated he doesn’t 


have an issue with the BEDC retaining part of a fixture of the City, adding they are already showing some 


development.   


 


Councilmember Boyle stated just a couple weeks ago, the Council assigned him to be on the Chamber of 


Commerce and Mayor King to be on the Public Safety Retirement Boards with Councilmember Lambert 


stating Councilmember Boyle was actually chosen as a liaison to the Chamber of Commerce to view their 


meetings and bring information to the Council and was not a voting member of any Chamber committee.  


Mayor King stated his appointment to the Public Safety Retirement Boards for the Police and Fire 


Departments were part of his job as Mayor.  Councilmember Boyle stated he was just pointing out that it 


was not unusual to have a Councilmember be involved in a thing like this, then stated the reason he 


volunteered to be on the BEDC is that it is an interest of his, adding he has been a businessman all his life, 


being self-employed; this was near and dear to his heart and he thought it was perfectly natural to be part of 


that.  Councilmember Boyle then stated he didn’t see being on the City Council at the same time as 


disqualifying him from volunteering to be on the BEDC, adding there was nothing nefarious going on; he 


was just interested in the City’s economic development and he would like to see Benson get out of the 


financial conundrum it is in so he volunteered to be on the committee and he thinks it is perfectly 


legitimate.   


 


Vice Mayor McGoffin stated when the committee was originally set up, Councilmember John Lodzinski 


was the Chairman and he wanted the committee to work with businesses in Benson to see if anything could 


be done for them, focusing on business retention and expansion, adding they also wanted to possibly 


review permitting timeframes and existing City Codes to assist businesses with the process of opening or 


expanding a business in Benson.  Vice Mayor McGoffin then stated she didn’t know how the new 


committee is doing it, but she would like them to work with current businesses in town and see if there’s 


anything the City could do to help them, adding the previous committee had local business owners come to 


committee meetings with ideas and information.  Vice Mayor McGoffin then stated the previous committee 


did work on a shovel-ready asset inventory, but didn’t really focus on bringing new businesses in when she 


served on it, first as a member and later as the Chair after Councilmember Lodzinski passed away, adding 


SAEDG does a fantastic job of that.  Vice Mayor McGoffin then stated she thinks the BEDC, if done right, 


could be a positive thing for the City and stated she thinks a Councilmember either being in charge of the 


committee or being on the committee is important because they know a lot of the City Codes and they 


could be a liaison to the Council for support.   


 


Councilmember Cook stated he has spent a lot of time thinking about what Benson economic development 


is and isn’t, adding economic development is a team activity which includes Sierra Vista, Tombstone, 


Willcox, Bisbee, Douglas and Cochise County and it is not a bunch of people with no economic 


development experience that think they have good ideas like dead fish ponds, planting trees, planning 
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activities and wanting the City to foot the bill for an activity coordinator.  Councilmember Cook then stated 


he has also come to understand by looking over the minutes of the BEDC that the current committee has no 


idea what the value of a City asset inventory is or what branding is because they haven’t even addressed 


those yet.  Councilmember Cook then stated economic development is not a science, adding a person can 


go to school and get a PhD and still be dealing with something that is more similar to a black art, like 


voodoo or luck or shamanism, adding real economic development is pretty much driven by investors and 


outside people rather than by cities that have no expertise in attracting outside businesses that have their 


own interests in mind.  Councilmember Cook stated investors and developers will take care of themselves 


no matter what, and will invest of develop in a city on their own and not because of some magical formula.  


Councilmember Cook then stated what the current committee has done is suggest a dead fish pond, a 


shooting range, planting trees, hiring an events coordinator for events they apparently don’t know anything 


about because they haven’t told Council anything about them, and asked if they have done anything that 


even borders closely to what economic development is, adding he has looked over their minutes and he 


hasn’t seen anything. 


 


Councilmember Lambert stated he handed the Council a list of the roll calls for the 12 BEDC meetings, 


adding 2 of the meetings cancelled for lack of a quorum, adding there were only 7 members at that time, 


noting they couldn’t get 4 people to attend those meetings.  Councilmember Lambert stated the Council 


could also see from the roll calls that Mr. Muller never showed up to any committee meetings from the 


beginning and he was removed and replaced with Mr. Comaduran in November, adding 2 other members 


were added in December and started in January, giving them 9 members.  Councilmember Lambert then 


stated on February 2, it shows everyone was present except for 2 people, but what really happened was 


there were 5 members present and 1 member walked out of the meeting, so the committee had to stop and 


call a member on the phone to participate telephonically to finish their meeting, adding the committee is 


have a problem getting a quorum.  Councilmember Lambert then read from Council minutes stating “the 


Benson Economic Development Committee was created on May 28, 2014 to replace the pre-existing 


Economic Development SubCommittee that was recently terminated on January 13 in the same year by a 


vote of 4 to 3,”  adding the Councilmembers voting for it were Mr. Brooks, Mr. Sacco, Mr. Boyle and 


Mayor King.  Councilmember Lambert then stated there have been 2 resignations and 1 application for an 


appointment submitted, adding the Council needs to decide what to do and can either accept 1 resignation, 


approve the appointment and force the other person to stay on the committee or accept 2 resignations and 


make no appointment resulting in 7 members while waiting for another application since the number of 


members has to be an odd number per the City Code.  Councilmember Lambert stated this is the main 


reason he tabled the item to this meeting.  Councilmember Lambert then stated he has several questions 


like Councilmember Cook on what the BEDC has done and what the purpose of the committee is, adding 


the Chairman is present and may be able to answer questions the Council has.  Councilmember Lambert 


then stated he didn’t want to put this on the agenda to go one way or the other, but he wanted to Council to 


decide to either appoint people and keep the committee or to dissolve it, adding on December 17, 2007, the 


Council at that time had a resolution in place, Resolution 49-2007, which is still intact for this Council and 


the City of Benson to support SAEDG, adding SAEDG is doing a fantastic job.  Councilmember Lambert 


then stated the SAEDG website shows their mission statement as “…to responsibly develop and expand the 


economy of Cochise County” and stated his question is what the purpose of the BEDC is.  Councilmember 


Lambert then stated he had gone through the BEDC minutes as Councilmember Cook mentioned he had 


done and there isn’t one thing to improve the economic development of Benson.  Councilmember Lambert 


then asked if the BEDC was going in the right direction, noting they don’t have a mission statement or any 


guidelines they’re following and they just having meetings and talk about different items they want to put 


in, such as the tree grant that came before Council, adding that is the only thing Council has heard about.  


Councilmember Lambert stated the BEDC talked about Hands across the Border, but they keep tabling it 


and they have talked about a BMW Iron Horse event, adding they ran into a few obstacles with that and 


then set a date of April 16-19 for that event, but they never came before the Council to get it approved, so 


the committee is setting dates on their own, and is not going through Council like their supposed to.  


Councilmember Lambert then stated they are also trying to get a gun range grant, but there is nothing in the 


budget for it, so the City couldn’t even accept a grant, even if it awarded.  Councilmember Lambert then 


stated the committee keeps talking about the lake and in one of their meetings, talked about whether or not 


they should put in ball fields or a lake, adding it would not be up to them but would be a Council decision.  


Councilmember Lambert then stated he would like to read from the Council minutes of January 13, 2014 
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concerning the termination of the EDSC and the establishment of the BEDC, reading “Councilmember 


Brooks stated it is not his intention to get personal, but this is very personal to him and how this town is 


moving forward, adding that he is not going to blame it entirely on the EDSC, but their main focus is to try 


to stimulate the economy and he has seen no action from them.  Councilmember Brooks stated that if 


anyone goes on the website and looks at the agendas, they can all see all the discussions resulting in no 


action.”  Councilmember Lambert then stated that is the same as it is now, adding every item the BEDC 


addresses has resulted in no action.  Councilmember Lambert then continued reading “Councilmember 


Brooks then stated that the committee doesn’t even have bylaws, adding that he doesn’t know what to say 


about it and it’s frustrating him.”  Councilmember Lambert then stated, again, the current committee 


doesn’t have bylaws, a mission statement or any guidelines. Councilmember Lambert then continued 


reading “Vice Mayor Sacco stated that if Councilmember Moncada could prove to him that the EDSC 


made certain accomplishments and brought business into the City of Benson and created jobs, then he 


would support it, but as far as he is concerned, the EDSC is a failure.”  Councilmember Lambert then stated 


the situation is exactly the same now, adding he doesn’t understand why the Council would keep the BEDC 


comparing it to the previous committee. 


 


Councilmember Konrad stated he would like to address Councilmember Lambert’s comments, adding 


everything Councilmember Lambert mentioned the BEDC being involved in involves recreation.  


Councilmember Konrad stated everyone likes to have fun, but we need to move forward and the BEDC 


needs to concentrate on bringing jobs and growth to the City, but it sounds like the focus is more on 


recreation.  Councilmember Konrad stated it’s time to take a close look at what the mission of the BEDC is, 


adding a mission statement is important and if the Council is going to direct this committee in some way, 


the Council needs to give that direction.  Councilmember Konrad stated again, his personal philosophy 


about committees in general, is that they need to be autonomous and he doesn’t think they need to be a part 


of the City, adding he thinks there are people in the community that are more than willing to step up and 


bring what is needed without the Council throwing up any roadblocks.   


 


Councilmember Boyle stated the former EDSC had been in business for a considerably longer time than the 


current committee, adding the BEDC has only been in business less than a year and so to compare the old 


committee with the accomplishments of the current committee is fraudulent.  Councilmember Boyle then 


stated he was appointed 14 months ago to the Council seat he’s on right now and the only thing he knew of 


for a fact that the former City committee had done was to work on was the branding thing, which was 


passed by the City Council at that time, adding the initial cost of that was $15,000 and if he remembers 


correctly, there was another associated cost with it down the line, which would have cost somewhere 


around another $50,000.  Councilmember Boyle stated he had no idea where any of that money was 


supposed to come from, but nevertheless, that was according to one of the members of the committee who 


was also on the City Council; it was a great thing to have gone through.  Councilmember Boyle then stated 


he didn’t know how long the former committee existed and it may have been a long time before they finally 


came up with that one idea.  Councilmember Boyle then stated as far as the accomplishments of the current 


committee, he thinks they have done quite well, adding he is saying that partially because it has something 


to do with him and he worked on some of those projects himself.  Councilmember Boyle then stated one of 


the items the BEDC brought up in the beginning was an events coordinator, adding they weren’t going to 


hire one for anything; that an events coordinator was an outside entity who would be subcontracted by the 


City, adding it could easily be SAEDG or someone else who the BEDC would use to come up with ideas 


for the City to get behind and sponsor to help make the City a hub of activity for the surrounding 


community, which would then bring in the jobs and all these other things because most of the jobs in the 


community are service related anyway.  Councilmember Boyle then stated the idea was shot down really 


big by Councilmember Cook, with Councilmember Cook saying he thought it was ridiculous and now he 


sits here and condemns the fact that the BEDC hasn’t done anything, when he was the large roadblock on 


that particular item.  Councilmember Boyle then stated the reason the BMW event is happening in April is 


that the BEDC brought it to the City months ago and it was blown off, adding others outside the committee 


decided they wanted to move forward with it, so some of the members of the BEDC, including himself, 


volunteered to be on it because it’s such a boon for the City that the BEDC couldn’t stand by and let it go 


by the wayside when it is such an amazing project and would be nothing but a benefit to the City, in terms 


of bed tax and sales tax and things like that.  Councilmember Boyle then stated if the project goes well and 


the City and biker community get along well, this could be an annual event that would bring the City a 
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sizable chunk of tax money.  Councilmember Boyle then stated as far as the trees for the park, 


Councilmembers are belittling that like it was nothing, when in fact, BEDC Member Annette Buechel spent 


many, many hours working on that, adding it was put before the City and the City just washed its hands of 


it and told her to write the grant herself and so she is.  Councilmember Boyle then stated the BEDC works 


at no cost to the City, adding everyone volunteers and the only cost he is aware of is the electric bill to light 


the conference room when they meet and for City Staff to transcribe the records and keep the minutes in the 


City records for the public, so there’s really no cost involved in this and what they are doing for the City.  


Councilmember Boyle then stated in his opinion, the BEDC may need a bit of sharpening and focus on 


what the Council expects from them and may be confused a bit about that and could probably do better, but 


they never have received anything from Council on what they would like and expect, so to sit here and 


belittle these people who have volunteered and worked so hard and act like the BEDC has done nothing in 


a shorter amount of time than the previous committee had, and to disband the committee is ridiculous. 


 


Mayor King stated BEDC Chairman Mike Berryhill would like to speak.  


 


Councilmember Cook asked Councilmember Boyle what he was referring to when he stated 


Councilmember Cook was a roadblock with Councilmember Boyle stating when the discussion was held 


about an events coordinator, Councilmember Cook made it sound like the BEDC wanted to hire a City 


Staff member and cause City expenditures so go up, when instead it was to subcontract an events 


coordinator.  Councilmember Boyle then stated the idea didn’t even get to see the light of day after 


Councilmember Cook said what he did, adding the idea was shot down without any more getting to be said.  


Councilmember Boyle stated Mr. Berryhill was at that same meeting trying to clarify these things and for 


whatever reason, the item went down in flames.  Councilmember Cook stated that was an interesting spin 


on the issue, adding he simply revealed what a shallow improbable activity this would be and that it would 


be putting the City on the hook for any shortfall in paying this events coordinator and now Councilmember 


Boyle has told the Council it hasn’t worked out anyway, so it looks like he was right.  Councilmember 


Cook then stated Councilmember Boyle is putting a spin on it and is trying to make it look like 


Councilmember Cook is wrong.  Councilmember Boyle then stated he had no idea what Councilmember 


Cook was talking about, adding all this would have been was an individual person hired as a subcontractor 


on a cost plus basis and or cost basis, noting if the events coordinator goes over, it would be their problem, 


not the City’s. 


 


Vice Mayor McGoffin stated now would be a good time to focus on the future and suggesting moving 


forward with some positive economic development. 


 


BEDC Chairman Mike Berryhill stated Councilmember Boyle covered everything, but added besides being 


told the BEDC was an advisory committee only to research and advise, they haven’t been told anything 


else.  Mr. Berryhill stated as far as bringing businesses to the City, there is no magic wand or magic pill to 


make it happen overnight, but added they have several projects in the works they are working on 


independently, in groups of 1 or 2, until they have enough information to bring to the Council, which is 


what they are supposed to be doing; investigating and then making recommendations to the City Council.  


Mr. Berryhill then stated the lake project was put on the matrix a long time ago by other committee 


members, adding anyone on the committee can bring up a project for consideration.  Mr. Berryhill then 


stated the lake was brought up and investigated, then put back on the matrix with a very low priority, again 


noting any member of the committee or even the public can bring forth an idea for the BEDC to consider, 


discuss and research at their meetings.  


 


Mayor King asked Mr. Berryhill if the committee had been given any direction from the Council or what 


the Council wanted with Mr. Berryhill stating they had not been told anything except that they were a 


research and advisory committee.  Mayor King stated that means the members have just been working on 


basically what they think they’re supposed to be working on without having any real direction.  Mayor 


King then asked about items being tabled numerous times with Mr. Berryhill stating items are placed on an 


agenda, such as Hands Across America, and if the information for that item isn’t received, then it’s tabled 


to the next meeting. 


 


Mayor King then stated there seems to be a communication breakdown between the City and the 
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committee, as far as the Council not giving direction and informing the BEDC what the Council is looking 


for.  Mr. Berryhill agreed, stating, again, the only thing they were told was that they were a research and 


advisory committee.  Mr. Berryhill then stated the committee wanted to hit the ground running, but they 


didn’t have any direction, so they just started taking off throwing irons out there and seeing what they could 


get to bring to the City.  Mr. Berryhill then stated if the Council has a direction they would like the BEDC 


to follow and projects they would like the BEDC to go after, all the Council has to do is inform them.  


Mayor King asked if a mission statement was every discussed with Mr. Berryhill stating they were told the 


BEDC didn’t need a mission statement because they were only a research and advisory committee. 


 


Councilmember Cook stated he understood the BEDC listed one of their responsibilities is to interview 


personnel and asked what that meant with Mr. Berryhill stating he didn’t know what Councilmember Cook 


was talking about.  Councilmember Lambert stated in the BEDC minutes of June 30, their first meeting, it 


reads “Discussion to establish the objectives for the BEDC consistent with the ordinance (568)…Stephen 


Insalaco started the discussion by stating that the BEDC is an advisory committee, operating in an advisory 


capacity only.  The committee’s actions are limited primarily to promoting recommendations to the city 


council and staff, in performing research and personnel interviews, and in providing reports or 


presentations to the city council and staff.”  Councilmember Cook asked Mr. Berryhill if he had read those 


minutes with Mr. Berryhill stating he had.  Councilmember Cook then stated Mr. Berryhill was going to 


argue about the duties with Mr. Berryhill interrupting, stating he wasn’t, with Councilmember Cook 


continuing to speak.  Mayor King called order to the meeting.     


 


Vice Mayor McGoffin stated she felt the Council needed to leave the past in the past, adding there are 


people who want to volunteer and work with the community, giving their time and she thinks the Council 


needs to give the BEDC some direction on what the Council expects from the committee.  Vice Mayor 


McGoffin then stated she would like the BEDC to concentrate on local businesses and see if the City can 


help them in any way, adding when she was on the previous committee, they had major employers such as 


Apache Powder, come to the meetings and discuss their businesses with the committee and the committee 


could learn about the businesses and what they needed from the City, which is what she is looking for.  


Vice Mayor McGoffin then stated as far as bringing new businesses in town, we have SAEDG who focuses 


on that.  Vice Mayor McGoffin then stated she thinks it’s great that there are people in the community who 


want to volunteer and the BEDC has 100% support from her, adding if they need a little direction, that’s 


what the Council is here for and should do.   


 


Mayor King stated he thinks the Council needs to tell the BEDC what they are looking for so instead of 


having the committee just hold meetings with things being brought up, they could start focusing on item the 


Council wants and could continue to try to bring businesses in, adding he feels the committee should be 


given the chance to focus on what the Council wants the focus to be.  Mayor King stated it is important to 


open up communication to allow things to start happening.   


 


Councilmember Konrad stated one of the things that brings successful businesses into a community is 


successful businesses.  Councilmember Konrad then stated there are business people in the community to 


focus on this, such as SAEDG, adding he has heard in conversations that they are just in this to make 


money, but noted they should be in it to make money, adding people need to realize that the City needs to 


lean on groups like SAEDG who can help bring other businesses in because the City doesn’t have any 


professionals to do that.  Councilmember Konrad then stated the Council needs to make some kind of 


separation here and decide on a direction, adding he is not sure that a committee that is a function of our 


government should be a part of that; he is not seeing the value in that when there are community leaders out 


there that will do this and regardless of making money doing it or not, it is beneficial for everyone.  


Councilmember Konrad then asked at what point in time does the Council do what they are to do; setting 


policy and worrying about the finances, adding if people are out there and they’re willing to go out and 


spend their time to bring other people to our community and they make a few dollars doing it, he’s all for it. 


 


Vice Mayor McGoffin stated she thinks there is a lot of grief from the elimination of the EDSC and the 


creation of the another BEDC, adding she thinks the Council needs to let that go because negativity brings 


more negativity and the City needs to move forward.  Vice Mayor McGoffin then stated there are people 


who want to volunteer and help and if they are talking to businesses in town, at least they could go to the 
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City Manager with things they have heard, and he can look into the matter for that business, adding if 


there’s something they think needs to come to Council, they can bring it to the Council, but she thinks the 


Council could give the BEDC direction and that everyone needs to move forward and quit bringing up the 


past. 


 


Councilmember Wangsness agreed, stating it is a minimal cost to keep the BEDC and he doesn’t see any 


reason to not keep them, adding these people are taking some initiative on their own and the Council can 


give them more time.  Councilmember Wangsness then stated if the Council is going to call the BEDC an 


advisory committee, it puts the responsibility of the initiative on the City and not on the committee.     


 


Councilmember Boyle stated if the Council is going to shackle the committee by narrowly defining the 


focus, there’s a lot of creativity that will be stifled, adding it doesn’t cost anything to have this committee 


look at all the ideas brought to them to see if they are viable ideas that would make money for the City.  


Councilmember Boyle then stated if all the committee is going to do is be a liaison for the current 


businesses in town, it’s almost worthless, adding there are not that many opportunities for the committee to 


be involved with current businesses to change what they do.  Councilmember Boyle then stated if a 


business owner has a problem, they can meet with the City Manager and he doesn’t understand why the 


BEDC would be involved.  Councilmember Boyle then stated if the BEDC can be left to be a creative force 


for the City, it doesn’t cost anything and they may be able to come up with ideas that are helpful and bring 


them to the City Council, adding he just doesn’t see any loss in keeping the committee.    


 


Councilmember Cook stated he would like to help with the pond listed on the matrix stating a pond can’t be 


filled with groundwater, but must be filled with reclaimed sewer water, adding since the proposed site is on 


the south side of the freeway, it would require piping and drilling under the freeway and the cost would be 


too much, even in good financial times.  Mr. Berryhill agreed, stating the reclaimed water would have to be 


brought up to class A standards, would have to be chemically treated and would require a maintenance 


testing program to test the pond monthly to meet the minimum requirements of a municipal lake.  Mr. 


Berryhill stated for all these reasons the lake was placed at the very bottom of the matrix.  Mr. Berryhill 


then stated communication issues were brought up earlier and stated the BMW event is happening in 


Benson in April, but they have nothing other than dates, adding the dates were set to prevent someone else 


from booking the large ramada at the park.  Mr. Berryhill then stated they have to finish the special event 


permit by the end of this month and turn it in, adding when the special event permit is turned in, they will 


have all the details on what is going to happen; dates, times and what is going to be there.  Mr. Berryhill 


then stated after it gets turned in, they were going to give a presentation to the City Council and give a 


heads up on what is going on, adding that was going to be the communication on that event, but until then 


they didn’t feel a report was necessary.   


 


Councilmember Cook stated it has been mentioned several times that all the activities the BEDC is working 


on seem to fall under Parks & Recreation with Mr. Berryhill stating these are the irons the committee 


pursued that turned hot.  Mr. Berryhill then stated the BEDC has been talking to other businesses about 


coming to Benson, but he would rather not share comments he has heard in open forum.  Mr. Berryhill then 


stated they have also been talking to business owners in town and getting a bunch of feedback,  but he 


hasn’t moved forward on this because he does not have a consensus on the problems that the business 


owners in town have, adding they don’t have enough information to advise Council.  Councilmember Cook 


stated again, what he sees coming out of the BEDC seems to fall under Parks & Recreation more than 


economic development.  Councilmember Cook then stated other economic development committees for 


other cities basically don’t have a good track record, adding the Tucson Regional Economic Organization, 


for Oro Valley, Marana, Tucson, South Tucson and possibly Green Valley had budgets in the hundreds of 


thousands of dollars each year for a decade and they got exactly 1 business in.  Councilmember Cook then 


stated the problem replicates itself from community to community.  Councilmember Cook then stated he 


sees SAEDG operating on a regional level and they are in contact with people at Rosemont, a Canadian 


mining company that wants to be in the Dragoons, the wind farm project and El Dorado, but added those 


are entities that have specific interests; 2 of them going after copper, 1 wind, the other the views and the 


opportunity El Dorado has on the hill.  Councilmember Cook then stated that is economic development and 


no committee cannot replicate that because the City and its committees don’t even have the same interests 


because outside interests, companies, developers, etc. have their own reasons for doing development, 
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adding the City having a committee and titling it an economic development committee is just window 


dressing and may be fooling ourselves, but it’s not fooling the economic interests outside the City. 


 


Mr. Berryhill stated he had spoken to 3 different developers who have been showing interest into coming to 


Benson, but there are some issues and he also knows of another business owner in Benson who has a 


business that he wishes to expand and he’s having issues, adding that is where he would like to leave it at 


right now.  Mr. Berryhill then stated the BEDC understands that economic development is not just events 


and they understand it is trying to bring in new appropriate businesses into this area, but noted the 


committee has no budget and everything the committee has done has been out of the committee members’ 


own expense.  Mr. Berryhill then stated he did ask the Mayor if the he would consider giving the committee 


a voucher for a tank of gas once in a while so they can go talk to people, adding there is only so much that 


can be done over the phones and the internet.  Mr. Berryhill then stated there’s a lot of discussion to be had 


for the BEDC to get direction from the Council and on what they can and can’t do, adding open 


communication would be a big problem solver.   


 


Vice Mayor McGoffin suggested a worksession to see if the Council and the BEDC can meet in the middle, 


adding the Council can see if the BEDC is interested in doing what the Council is looking for.  Mr. 


Berryhill agreed a worksession would be very helpful with Vice Mayor McGoffin stating it could possibly 


be held before a regular Council meeting.   


 


Councilmember Lambert asked if the BEDC has tried to work with SAEDG with Mr. Berryhill stating they 


had one time.  Mr. Berryhill then stated when the BEDC tried to address an events coordinator, Mr. Scott 


was at the meeting and the BEDC was going to introduce Mr. Scott and his winter visitor project, but there 


hasn’t been any communication between them since.  Councilmember Lambert then stated there was 


discussion about the BEDC being an advisory committee, adding any events they put on would need to 


come to Council for Council approval before they moved forward with the event.  Mr. Berryhill stated 


when the BEDC started the BMW event, they were told that the City was not going to be responsible for 


any of this, so they had to do the event as members of the BMW Rally group, adding that means at this 


particular time, the BMW is not any part of the BEDC or the City.  Mr. Berryhill then stated the BEDC was 


told that the City didn’t want “any liability or anything about it,” so the BEDC members volunteered their 


time to get something started here in this town as representatives of the Benson Rally Association.  


Councilmember Lambert stated Mr. Berryhill was very thorough with his explanations, adding he likes that 


because it keeps communication open.  Councilmember Lambert then stated the BEDC met in October, 


2014 and agreed to give the Council quarterly updates, adding when the Council gets those updates, it will 


be beneficial.  Mr. Berryhill stated the BEDC has had its ups and downs, noting as a young committee, they 


have had growing pains, but they have pretty much settled down at this time, adding they have a new 


secretary in place who is getting used to the position and everything.  Councilmember Lambert then stated 


he agreed with Vice Mayor McGoffin that this item should be tabled until the Council can hold a 


worksession with the committee and then the Council can address the resignations, appointments and 


everything else at that time with Mr. Berryhill stating the BEDC would be in attendance at the worksession. 


 


Councilmember Lambert then moved to table this item as is until a future Council meeting after the 


Council can hold a worksession with the BEDC.  Seconded by Vice Mayor McGoffin.  Councilmember 


Wangsness asked if the items, should be broken out to be addressed separately when they move forward 


with Councilmember Lambert stating he wanted it as it is listed so the Council has to power to go whatever 


way they want instead of going back and forth with several different items.   


 


Councilmember Konrad stated with no action, the committee will continue with 8 members until it’s 


brought back to Council with Mr. Berryhill stating the BEDC Chairman abstains, so therefore on issues, 


there are 7 members voting.  Councilmember Lambert stated the committee currently consists of 9 


members and it would remain that way until Council took any action, adding that is why he tabled the 


entire item.  City Attorney Gary Cohen stated an agreement of the Chair to abstain is a proper solution to 


the ordinance, but he agrees that not accepting the resignations or the application for an appointment for a 


short period of time is sufficient.  Councilmember Konrad then stated the resignations and application will 


need to be addressed at the future Council meeting with Councilmember Lambert agreeing, but noted the 


BEDC can still meet until that time.  Motion then passed 7-0.   







Page 15 of 20 


 


8. Review of City Finances with emphasis on January financial results, and the City’s financial position 


at January 31, 2015, including discussion of current and future revenue sources and expenditures 


 


Finance Director Megan Moreno addressed Council stating would like to request to speak on this item and 


the next item at the same time since they are related.  Mayor King asked if this was something the Council 


could do with City Attorney Gary Cohen stating it was up to the Mayor.  Ms. Moreno then stated this 


would be her last presentation to the Council as the Finance Director.   


 


Ms. Moreno stated she would briefly go over the financials for the month of January so the Council would 


have the most current information available and then she would move to the next agenda item, which 


would be a summary of what was discussed at the Council Retreat.   


 


Ms. Moreno then stated the City’s cash balance has increased, with an unrestricted cash balance at 


$931,000, adding last January, the unrestricted cash balance was $948,000, adding the City has almost 


made its way back to where it was last year, which is encouraging. 


 


Ms. Moreno then reviewed noteworthy changes in revenues, stating City Sales Tax is down due to timing 


issues, State Sales Tax is up and State Revenue Sharing is up, adding both of those are significant revenue 


sources for the City and she will touch on the future of those revenues in the next subject. 


 


Ms. Moreno then stated Personnel costs are down overall, with Citywide personnel costs down $348,000 


compared to last January, adding in the General Fund alone, the personnel costs are down $197,000.  Ms. 


Moreno then stated the City ended the month of January with positive fund balances, so even though it’s 


still in the red, there is much less of it.  Ms. Moreno then stated the overall Citywide fund balance ended 


with a positive of $366,000 and year-to-date is now at $240,000 in the black, which is great.  Ms. Moreno 


then stated the General Fund also ended positive at $183,000 for the month, but noted it is still negative 


$94,000 year-to-date.  Ms. Moreno then stated the Transit Fund broke even and the Street Fund was only in 


the negative by $1,000, so it almost broke even.  Ms. Moreno then stated Gas Tax is up compared to last 


year by $46,000, which is encouraging.   


 


Ms. Moreno then moved to the Enterprise funds, stating they all operated in the black except for the airport, 


noting this does include the Golf Course that made a profit of $12,000.  Ms. Moreno then stated in 


summation, she brought Council a short summary that says strategies that have been implemented are 


working, the City is seeing its cash balance rebound and expenses going down and fund balances have 


improved, but there is still work to do.  Ms. Moreno stated furloughs and cuts on the expenditure side are 


not sustainable long-term, so the focus must now be on building back up the cash reserves and establishing 


contingency funds for the utility funds.  Ms. Moreno then stated she would now like to move to the next 


agenda item. 


 


Councilmember Lambert asked about the airport fund being in the red with Ms. Moreno stating the airport 


doesn’t have a lot of expenditures, but they still exceed the revenues being brought in, adding some of the 


expenditures include the airport insurance policy, some utility costs and such.     


 


9. Presentation and summary of the Council Retreat held on January 31, 2015 and possible direction to 


Staff concerning the City sales tax  


 


Ms. Moreno continued addressing Council stating the Council Retreat was held on a Saturday for the entire 


day and focused on the major issues that are hitting the City for the upcoming budget cycle, which is 


already in the process of gathering proposed budgets from all departments.  Ms. Moreno then stated some 


of the things touched on at the retreat are important to bring forward in a Council meeting and Council 


expressed their support to bring this forward to make it formal and be able to take action on some of those 


things that were discussed.  Ms. Moreno then stated first she would like to mention the Governor’s plan to 


sweep State Shared Revenues, adding the Governor has brought forward a State budget and that budget 


includes sweeping $8.2 million from cities.  Ms. Moreno stated the State will take $2 million to help fund 


the Arizona Department of Revenue (ADOR) operations and increase collection activity, adding this is 
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supposed to help cities collect more sales tax as the DOR has been tasked with being the collection agency 


for all the cities in the State.  Ms. Moreno the budget will also include sweeping State Shared Revenues and 


State Sales Tax, noting the City of Benson’s current budgeted amount for State Sales Tax is just under 


$500,000 and the budgeted amount for State Shared Revenue is $675,000, adding these are number 2 and 3 


revenue source only behind City Sales Tax.  Ms. Moreno then stated she doesn’t have any estimate on how 


this will affect the City of Benson, but she knows we can expect to see those 2 revenue pools decrease this 


next budget cycle, adding we’ve been lucky that the last 3 years, they have been consistently increasing.  


Ms. Moreno then stated additionally, HURF money will still not be fully restored, adding HURF money is 


what is used to pay for street repairs and noted right now, the HURF money the City receives, even though 


it’s an increase from the previous year, is not enough to keep the streets in the City at an acceptable level.   


 


Ms. Moreno then stated the City is already are expecting to lose revenue from the State and on top of that, 


this last budget year, employee furloughs were implemented, with employees being required to take 20 


furlough days and public safety employees being required to take 10 furlough days.  Ms. Moreno stated by 


the end of December, everyone had completed half their required furloughs, at a savings to the City of 


$119,000.  Ms. Moreno then stated the City also lost 10% of the employee pool and she thinks most of 


those, as she stated at the retreat, 9 of 10 were related to furloughs being implemented.  Ms. Moreno then 


stated if the furloughs are continued for another year, the City will lose more employees.  Ms. Moreno then 


stated right now, starting in February, City Hall offices are closed on Friday, additionally, Recreation, the 


Utilities and the Public Works offices are also closed, which means there is one less day for people to get 


services such as business licenses, paying their bills, getting building permits and winter visitors turning 


utilities on, which are services the City prides itself on providing.   


 


Ms. Moreno then stated furloughs brought the City to basically a breakeven level, but it is not sustainable 


to continue to force employees to take furloughs year after year to balance the budget, adding it was a 


temporary fix for the current budget cycle, but something different needs to be done starting in the next 


fiscal year.  Ms. Moreno then stated the budgets were reduced in all departments, resulting in over $2.1 


million in cuts from the budget over the prior year, which included over $540,000 in personnel costs and 


$1.1 million in capital projects, however, capital projects can only be pushed back so far before things 


break down and we’re forced to fix them, adding in essence, the City is just kicking the can down the road. 


 


Ms. Moreno continued stating the City has made cuts in services with City offices being closed, the library 


closed on Thursday evenings and Saturdays and less police officers on patrol.  Ms. Moreno then stated she 


felt she could speak for all employees, when saying that scheduling around furloughs while trying to 


maintain coverage for offices was very difficult, adding even the offices were not closed on Fridays, there 


was a skeleton crew working.  Ms. Moreno stated other cuts included the reserve program at the Fire 


Department, as well, which means that the City can no longer support financially having fire fighters on 


site during day hours, noting she thinks they are trying to continue that program on their own, but they are 


running into issues.  Ms. Moreno then stated all departments have made tremendous cuts to make the 


budget balance, but going forward, we will only be faced with more decisions in cutting services. 


 


Ms. Moreno then stated this is where sales tax comes into play, stating the City’s current sales tax rate is 


2.5% with .5% that will sunset in 2018, which means it will go away.  Ms. Moreno then stated when the 


City issued debt for the Wastewater Treatment Plant, the sales tax was increased from 2% to 2.5% to pay 


for that debt, adding both the debt and the revenue were supposed to end in 2018, but in 2010, the City 


refinanced the debt for a 20-year period.  Ms. Moreno stated that debt, which was refinanced into a better 


program, was extended past the 2018 date the .5% will end, adding when that .5% sunsets, it will result in 


over a $500,000 year loss or decrease in revenues, but the debt payment will still be in place.  Ms. Moreno 


then stated in order to prepare for that rate sunsetting in 2018, she is coming to Council with a 


recommendation to look at considering raising the sales tax 1% effective this year, knowing that in 2 years, 


.5% will sunset, adding this will bring the sales tax rate to 3.5% for a couple years, then it will decrease to 


3%, giving the City 2 years to build up cash reserves, bring us back to a financially stable environment and 


establish contingency funds for all of the necessary capital projects and utility issues that will come up.  


Ms. Moreno stated she knows this is not a popular decision to bring up, but she would strongly encourage 


Council and she is asking for direction tonight not to approve a sales tax increase, but to allow Staff to 


move forward with posting an intent on the City’s website, adding State law requires posting 60 days in 
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advance, an intent to raise our sales tax rate and then in that time, Staff will develop an education campaign 


to address citizens’ concerns and their questions and to be able to educate them on where the funds will be 


going from that increase.  Ms. Moreno stated with that, the City would be able to eliminate the furloughs 


for our employees and would be able to restore services back to the level they were before this budget 


cycle. 


 


Mayor King stated there have been many budget cuts and the City has lost 10% of the employee pool due 


to furloughs, adding now we know revenues from the State will be reduced, which will not help at all.  


Mayor King then stated the City has further cuts will affect the Police Department and the Fire Department 


and the protection they provide, adding cuts have resulted in services not being adequate now, much less 


after losing more officers and employees.  Mayor King then stated he thinks it’s very important that the 


Council make a hard decision and really consider this 1% sales tax increase, adding it’s the only way we 


are going to be able to support our City over the next 3 years to bring the services and funds back up to 


where the City can run as a whole City and not hurt our residents like we are now.  Mayor King then stated 


over the last few years the Council has done good trying to keep the City moving forward, but now we’re in 


a situation where the Council needs to look at trying to keep the City moving forward in its entirety and not 


in different parts, adding the Council needs to really let the citizens understand that this is not directed at 


trying to hurt them, but it is better to have services and the City built back up to what it was before, to 


where employees aren’t leaving and will be there for when something happens.  Mayor King then stated 


there are issues in the City streets with a lot to be repaired and due to the City’s financial situation, they 


can’t be fixed.  Mayor King then stated again, the Council has done well over the last few years in trying to 


maintain everything to keep the City running the best it could, but because of expenditures and revenues 


decreasing, draining our accounts and losing employees is something we don’t want to continue, adding the 


citizens problems can’t be fixed without employees.  Mayor King then stated he was asking that the 


Council consider this tonight and take a hard look at what they have to do as a Council, adding he knows 


this is a tough decision that the Council has been talking about for years, but the Council is now at that 


decision making time and they need to look forward to the future with the City running as a whole 


functioning City and not in part. 


 


Councilmember Konrad stated he would like to address the educational aspect of it, adding this is not going 


to be an easy sell.  Councilmember Konrad then stated when looking at this tax increase, one thing he 


would like to seriously look at is another sunset clause so this does not become a permanent sales tax.  


Councilmember Konrad then stated another thing the Council discussed at the retreat was a rate study on 


the gas utility, stating he had a conversation with Mr. Stephens and Mr. Hamilton regarding that and he 


would like to put that on the forefront so the community understands where we’re going with that.  


Councilmember Konrad then stated the gas rate cannot remain where it is, adding the City can’t operate a 


utility and have to subsidize that utility constantly; it’s not good business.  Councilmember Konrad then 


stated the public needs to be aware of that and he doesn’t want any surprises when this rolls out.  


Councilmember Konrad then stated another thing discussed at the meeting was that there aren’t any 


purchasing procedures in place, adding he knows Ms. Moreno was working on that and he knows the new 


Finance Director will continue to work on that and while he understands what the furloughs have done as 


far as time constraints in getting things done, he would still like to see that somewhere in the forefront also, 


because there is a perception that there is some wasteful spending within the City and nothing will nail that 


down any better than if there are procedures in place so that people understand the bid process and how 


things come into being.  Councilmember Konrad stated a business can’t be run without some managers 


being able to spend money at some point in time to get things done, but on the other hand, he doesn’t want 


the perception out there that people are just spending money without any kind of control.  Councilmember 


Konrad then stated he would like to see that and the education package put together that will at least make 


sense to people, because it’s not going to be an easy sell. 


 


Mayor King asked when the last utility rate increases were done with Ms. Moreno stating the water and 


wastewater were adjusted in 2006 and she believes the gas rate was in the 90s with Mr. Hamilton stating 


the last rate increase for gas was in 1995.  Councilmember Lambert asked how the gas rate works since gas 


prices change with Mr. Hamilton stating the City’s rate to run and maintain the gas system is a fixed cost 


on top of what the City pays for gas, adding while the gas prices fluctuate, and have even gone down quite 


a bit in the last 20 years, the City’s rate hasn’t changed since 1995.   
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Councilmember Boyle asked about sales tax being charged on food and asked if the food sales tax could be 


separated from the retail sales tax in her reports, adding maybe the Council could leave the tax rate on food  


where it is now because there are a lot of people just barely getting by and maybe the Council could raise 


the other sales tax to make up for that amount of even raise the tax enough to do away with sales tax on 


food altogether, adding this would help the least fortunate among us by making sure they can put food on 


their table instead of taxing them on a necessity in life.  


 


Ms. Moreno stated she didn’t have the exact figures on how much was collected on food, but starting in 


January, this will change with a specific code on all businesses tax returns that will require splitting out 


sales tax on food separately, instead of lumping it with retail sales tax.  Ms. Moreno then stated she doesn’t 


know how accurate it will be for the few months, citing the learning curve for this new requirement.  Ms. 


Moreno then stated when she researched this issue before, she contacted the League of Arizona Cities and 


Towns and found the majority of small towns do charge sales tax on food, adding it’s not a new thing and 


is not an unusual thing for cities to do, noting it’s usually the number one revenue source for small towns, 


because there is usually no other industry.    


 


Councilmember Wangsness stated he had discussed this with Ms. Moreno about a year ago and they 


estimated the food tax to be about 80-90% of the total sales tax collected.   


 


Vice Mayor McGoffin stated she knew there had been discussions on the utility rate increases and the tax 


increase; however, she didn’t think the Council should burden citizens with both at the same time, adding 


she did know the Council needed to look at the utility rates, but she felt the Council needed to hold off on 


the utilities for maybe another year.  Vice Mayor McGoffin stated she knows City services have really 


suffered this last year and things can’t continue the way things are running now, adding further cuts would 


probably result in having to close the library altogether, cutting all summer programs and going back to one 


officer on the street at a time, which is detrimental to officer safety.  Vice Mayor McGoffin then stated 


streets will continue to get worse, which are more expensive to repair when they are worse and while she 


agrees this will be a sell, she feels the Council needs to get out there and put their support behind it; 


otherwise the Council will be digging themselves into a hole the City won’t be able to get out of. 


 


Ms. Moreno stated a key component brought up at the retreat she wanted to mention was that a sales tax 


increase would spread the burden across a much larger group of people, with a majority of those being 


people who live outside of the community as opposed to looking at raising property tax which is a burden 


only on the people who live inside the community.  Ms. Moreno then stated along with that, the Council 


could look at taking the property tax that City residents pay and moving it from operational expenditures to 


capital projects so there is a tangible benefit the community could see from their tax dollars, such as parks 


and recreation projects.  Ms. Moreno then stated Vice Mayor McGoffin had to leave the retreat early, so 


she hadn’t heard this part of the proposal, adding some parks and recreational projects could be ball fields 


at the park, trails or something else increase amenities for the residents and people would see that is where 


their money is going. 


 


Councilmember Cook stated when Ms. Moreno is preparing this presentation, he would like her to keep in 


mind all the information Councilmembers will need to know to share with citizens, such as House Bill 


2254 which was threatening to take away residential rental taxes from cities, the State sweeping away State 


Shared Revenues and State Sales Tax and portions of HURF funds.  Councilmember Cook then asked 


about business not paying retail sales tax or residential taxes at all and if Ms. Moreno could gather 


information on those amounts not being paid to the City with Mayor King asked if Ms. Moreno could show 


that loss from businesses not paying what they should in her presentation.  Ms. Moreno stated without 


auditing a business, she would have no way of knowing what businesses were paying what they should or 


paying at all and noted the State which has had the authority to do this in Benson has now taken over this 


authority statewide.  Mayor King noted the Stated hadn’t ever performed any audits in Benson with Mr. 


Stephens stating that has been part of the problem, adding when the State never audits, the result is that the 


word gets out and when you’re a small town not getting any audits, people aren’t paying their taxes.   


 


Mayor King then stated he understood that House Bill 2254 would result in an additional $89 million being 
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taken away from all cities in Arizona with Ms. Moreno stating it was estimated to be $87 million, because 


it would take away the ability for cities to charge sales tax on residential rentals. 


 


Councilmember Cook then stated it would also be help him explain why a sales tax increase was needed if 


he knew that all City departments were applying for grants, adding this will help him inform citizens that 


the City is doing everything it can to avoid a sales tax increase, but the increase is still needed.     


 


Councilmember Lambert stated he knows this is a hard decision, but the Council does need to move 


forward looking at the increase, so Ms. Moreno can post it on the City’s website, adding it has to be on the 


website for 60 days before the Council can consider it so it is one of the things the Council needs to go 


ahead with.  Councilmember Lambert then stated a rate study on the utilities hasn’t been done for a long 


time and even if the Council doesn’t raise the rates, the studies should still be done, adding he talked with 


Ms. Moreno and Mr. Hamilton and with having an engineer and an accountant, they can do these studies 


in-house so the City doesn’t have to pay for an outside study to be done.  Councilmember Lambert then 


stated the Council can give direction to Staff to complete rate studies with a 20% contingency built in to 


pay for repairs that are needed on all the enterprise funds, adding right now, if anything that goes wrong, 


the City doesn’t have the revenues in each fund to use and would have to take money from the bond 


proceeds to fix pumps, sewer lines, water lines and upgrades.  Councilmember Lambert then stated taking it 


from the bond proceeds instead of revenues for each utility fund which is where it should be coming from 


results in more bond payments the City has to make.  Councilmember Lambert then stated again, the 


Council needs to seriously look at the rate studies, but he doesn’t want them to be tied to the tax increase, 


adding they need to be addressed separately and independently.   


 


Mayor King stated there is a lot to do.  Councilmember Konrad stated regarding the food tax, 


Councilmembers could go to the DOR website and see each city and town listed alphabetically and what 


they charge.  Councilmember Konrad then stated Ms. Moreno is correct; the food tax is a major source of 


income for not only Benson, but every town like Benson, adding it’s worth the time to look at the DOR 


website and get an idea of what other communities are doing, adding him requesting a sunset clause 


consideration was to keep Benson from being the highest in the State.     


 


Ms. Moreno stated South Tucson is the highest.  Mr. Stephens then asked Ms. Moreno to address taxes 


with regards to food stamps with Ms. Moreno stating there is an exemption in the City of Benson’s tax 


code under retail exemptions that exempts any food that is purchased under the food stamp program, 


adding there is no sales tax charged to those citizens of the community.  Ms. Moreno then stated in trying 


to get an idea of the people that would benefit from that exemption, she went to the USDA economic 


research service, which says about 17% of Cochise County is on food stamps.  Councilmember Lambert 


stated he believed that exemption was a state law with Ms. Moreno stating it could be as it was part of the 


model City tax code. 


 


Ms. Moreno then stated she handed out rate tables that came off the DOR website, which has all program 


cities listed, noting it did not have the non-program cities listed, such as Tucson and Douglas, adding she 


tried to write those in so the Council could see the rates cities are charging.  Ms. Moreno then stated the 


majority charge between 2% and 4%, and noted some cities choose to charge restaurant and bars different 


higher rates than the retail sales tax rate.  Mayor King stated Bisbee just raised their rate as well with Ms. 


Moreno stating there are 3 cities that recently passed sales tax increase; Bisbee from 2.5% to 3.5%, Oro 


Valley from 2% to 2.5% and Camp Verde from 3% to 3.65%.   


 


Councilmember Lambert stated realistically, if Council gave direction to move forward on the 1% increase, 


it would have to posted for 60 days and then come back to Council for consideration with Ms. Moreno 


stating this was correct.  Ms. Moreno then stated a notice of intent to consider an increase has to be posted 


for 60 days before Council takes action on it, adding it would be posted on the website and come back to 


Council 60 days later, adding in the meantime, Staff would work on the educational piece, and complete all 


the statutory requirements.  Ms. Moreno stated this would basically mean that the Council would consider 


the increase in May and the tax increase would be in effect in July.   


 


Councilmember Lambert asked about a timeframe for the utility rate studies with Mr. Hamilton stating it 
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would depend on how much time it would take for the new Finance Director to get where he needs to be 


and how much time it would take to go through everything.  Mayor King asked if Mr. Hamilton was 


thinking it would be after the budget with Mr. Hamilton stating he was thinking late Spring, adding as they 


move further into it, he could give Council a better timeframe.   


 


Councilmember Lambert stated he would like to clarify the direction to Staff is to go ahead and put a notice 


on intention on the City’s website to start the process and to create a rate study for utilities with a 20% 


contingency for repairs. Mayor King agreed and said it also included the rest of the list.  Vice Mayor 


McGoffin asked about the notice of intention and verified that posting did not mean the Council was 


approving the rate increase with Ms. Moreno stating that was correct, adding the notice of intention was a 


notice to consider an increase.  


 


Mr. Stephens stated as Staff works to build the budget, they kind of need to nail down what the City is 


going to do, adding Staff will build a totally different budget without any increases and it would be much 


more dismal.   


 


Mr. Hamilton then stated for the rate studies, he can build in a 20% contingency, but he would like to bring 


back recommendations from others such as the American Water Works Associations on what they say best 


utility practices are for contingency fund amounts.  Council agreed.     


 


DEPARTMENT REPORTS:  None 


 


ADJOURNMENT:  
 


Councilmember Lambert moved to adjourn at 9:31 p.m.  Seconded by Vice Mayor McGoffin.  City 


Attorney Gary Cohen stated he believed there was a motion pending for the City to proceed with the 


necessary posting on the City’s website, to do rate studies with the 20% contingencies and to do all the 


related educational directions previously given, but he did not hear a second and vote.  Council expressed 


that direction didn’t require a motion or vote.  City Clerk Vicki Vivian stated when Council approved the 


Council Policies & Procedures, they required any action including tabling items and direction to Staff to 


require a motion and a vote.  Councilmember Lambert then moved to move forward with putting the letter 


of intent to consider a 1% sales tax increase on the City’s website, to do a rate study on the utilities with 


20% contingencies or the recommended contingency percentage and the related educational requirements 


discussed previously.  Seconded by Vice Mayor McGoffin.  Motion passed 7-0.   


 


Mayor King then stated Councilmember Lambert’s motion to adjourn was on the floor, which had been 


seconded by Vice Mayor McGoffin.  Motion passed 7-0.   


 


 


                  


____________________________ 


                 Toney D. King, Sr., Mayor 


  ATTEST: 


   


____________________________   


  Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk 







                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:   
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission (P&Z) is a recommendation body, focusing on planning and development 
proposals and regulations prior to their formal adoption by Council.  P&Z holds public hearings on development 
proposals to gather public input, and reviews and makes recommendations on proposed code changes.    
There are seven (7) positions on the Commission.  
 
One member has submitted his resignation.  This leaves a partial term vacant. This partial term expires the 
summer of 2015.  
 


Member 1 Term  2012-2015 filled 
Member 2 Term  2012-2015 filled 
Member 3 Term  2012-2015 RESIGNED 
Member 4 Term  2013-2016 filled 
Member 5 Term  2013-2016 filled 
Member 6 Term  2014-2017 filled 
Member 7 Term  2014-2017 filled 


 
Attachments: Resignation of Chris Moncada 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approval of the resignation of Chris Moncada from the Benson Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                         Consent Agenda Item # 1b
                                               
From: Bradley J. Hamilton, P.E. Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Resignation of Chris Moncada from the Benson Planning & Zoning Commission 
         
 
 
 


 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting                                        March 23, 2015 
 







From: 
To: 	 Michelle Johnson  
Subject: 	 P&Z 
Date: 	 Tuesday, March 10, 2015 4:09:33 PM 


I hereby resign from Planning and Zoning Commission effective immediately. 


Chris Moncada 


Sent from my iPhone 







                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:  
 
Attached is a list of large and/or unusual invoices processed by the Finance Department during the period from 
March 1, 2015 through March 12, 2015.  The total of the invoices is $273,090.54. 
 
  
 
 


 Arizona Public Safety Retirement Bi-weekly retirement contribution 10,078.91   
Arizona State Retirement Bi-weekly retirement contribution 20,229.32   
AZ Dept of Revenue Sales Tax Remitted 14,577.99   
Blue Cross Blue Shield Monthly Health Insurance Premium Payment 41,332.55   
Benson Volunteer Fire Monthly Contribution 5,000.00     
City of Benson - Sales Tax Sales Tax Remitted 5,991.95     
Southwest Disposal Monthly Garbage Collection 31,697.90   
TCF Equipment Monthly Golf Cart Lease 9,549.80     
Shell Energy Monthly Natural Gas Purchase 55,568.92   
SWCA Environmental Consultants Biological Evaluation (Airport Grant) 7,296.10     
Voyager Monthly Fuel for City Fleet 5,917.53     


207,240.97  
76%


TOTAL LARGE INVOICES
Invoices listed above as a percentage of all invoices processed  


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approval of invoices processed for the period from March 1, 2015 through March 12, 2015 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                         Consent Agenda Item # 1c
                                               
From: Dustin DeSpain, Finance Director 
           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Invoices processed for the period from March 1, 2015 through March 12, 2015 
 
 
 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting                               March 23, 2015 
 







CITY OF BENSON Check Register - Council Packets Page:     1


Check Issue Dates: 3/1/2015 - 3/12/2015 Mar 12, 2015  10:42AM


Report Criteria:


Report type:  Summary


Check.Type = {<>} "Adjustment"


GL Period Check Issue Date Check Number Vendor Number Payee Amount


03/15 03/05/2015 457 6756 SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIBUTING 428.70 M


03/15 03/12/2015 458 6756 SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIBUTING 334.95 M


03/15 03/12/2015 1161 3648 ESG CORP 4,243.73 M


03/15 03/12/2015 1162 1490 AZ STATE RETIREMENT    ACC REC 20,229.32 M


03/15 03/05/2015 4043 2663 CHASE 809.83 M


03/15 03/12/2015 4044 1136 AMERICAN EXPRESS 124.86 M


03/15 03/05/2015 5041 3078 SHELL ENERGY NORTH AMERICA 55,568.92 M


03/15 03/02/2015 7015 4118 GREYHOUND 34.00 M


03/15 03/12/2015 7016 4118 GREYHOUND 9.96 M


03/15 03/05/2015 43963 2332 BRANDON JACQUEZ 568.00- V


03/15 03/01/2015 43982 8913 ALBERT ESTAVILLO 200.00


03/15 03/01/2015 43983 1130 AMERICAN FAMILY LIFE ASSURANCE 1,883.73


03/15 03/05/2015 43984 5551 ANICLETO D MALDONADO .00 V


03/15 03/01/2015 43985 2160 BENSON VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPT INC 5,000.00


03/15 03/01/2015 43986 2250 BLUE CROSS-BLUE SHIELD 41,332.55


03/15 03/01/2015 43987 2970 COLONIAL LIFE ASSURANCE 88.43


03/15 03/01/2015 43988 3050 COMMUNITY FOOD PANTRY OF 130.00


03/15 03/01/2015 43989 3975 GEOFFREY MCGOFFIN 200.00


03/15 03/01/2015 43990 8909 HAMILTON, RICHARD 200.00


03/15 03/01/2015 43991 4332 HUMANA 1,412.40


03/15 03/01/2015 43992 7895 JAMES HANSEN JR. 200.00


03/15 03/01/2015 43993 4505 JERRY FINK 200.00


03/15 03/01/2015 43994 4573 JOE RODRIGUEZ 200.00


03/15 03/01/2015 43995 8914 JOE ROTHERMICH 200.00


03/15 03/01/2015 43996 4840 LARRY NAPIER 200.00


03/15 03/01/2015 43997 4958 LORENE WHALEY 567.27


03/15 03/01/2015 43998 5191 MAX JONES 200.00


03/15 03/01/2015 43999 6010 PRINCIPAL LIFE 1,131.67


03/15 03/01/2015 44000 6144 RAY JOHNSON II 200.00


03/15 03/01/2015 44001 8907 THELANDER, JAMES 200.00


03/15 03/01/2015 44002 7652 VISION SERVICE PLAN 316.41


03/15 03/02/2015 44003 11619 AMY L COOK 68.16


03/15 03/02/2015 44004 1334 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 526.50


03/15 03/02/2015 44005 1195 AUTO CHLOR 220.69


03/15 03/02/2015 44006 2071 BENSON LUMBER & SUPPLY LLC 379.25


03/15 03/02/2015 44007 2599 CENTURYLINK 45.07


03/15 03/02/2015 44008 2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 502.39


03/15 03/02/2015 44009 3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 252.95


03/15 03/02/2015 44010 3333 DELL MARKETING LP 126.70


03/15 03/02/2015 44011 3704 FARMER BROTHERS COFFEE 298.51


03/15 03/02/2015 44012 4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICES 182.00


03/15 03/02/2015 44013 11620 MARYANN HELFRICH 48.20


03/15 03/02/2015 44014 5205 MCCARTER & ENGLISH, LLP 186.57


03/15 03/02/2015 44015 5544 NIKE USA, INC 2,108.74


03/15 03/02/2015 44016 5645 OFFICE DEPOT, INC 158.78


03/15 03/02/2015 44017 6802 STAMBACK SEPTIC SERVICE 206.34


03/15 03/02/2015 44018 6957 SWCA ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS 7,296.10


03/15 03/02/2015 44019 7969 THE TORO COMPANY - NSN 139.00


03/15 03/02/2015 44020 7712 THOMSON REUTERS - WEST 423.67


03/15 03/02/2015 44021 7279 TRANSWORLD NETWORK CORP 208.44


03/15 03/02/2015 44022 7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 2,330.78


03/15 03/05/2015 44023 1216 AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 551.64


03/15 03/05/2015 44024 1297 ARIZONA BLUE STAKE INC 548.32


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF BENSON Check Register - Council Packets Page:     2


Check Issue Dates: 3/1/2015 - 3/12/2015 Mar 12, 2015  10:42AM


GL Period Check Issue Date Check Number Vendor Number Payee Amount


03/15 03/05/2015 44025 1950 BENSON ACE HARDWARE 777.43


03/15 03/05/2015 44026 2332 BRANDON JACQUEZ 56.80


03/15 03/05/2015 44027 2690 CERTIFRESH CIGAR 277.80


03/15 03/05/2015 44028 2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 31.96


03/15 03/05/2015 44029 3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 340.75


03/15 03/05/2015 44030 11622 CYNTHIA A PARKE 55.81


03/15 03/05/2015 44031 3410 DIGGINS & SONS POWER SWEEPING 1,900.00


03/15 03/05/2015 44032 3421 DIRECTV 187.98


03/15 03/05/2015 44033 3678 E-Z-GO 82.36


03/15 03/05/2015 44034 3710 FEDEX 16.87


03/15 03/05/2015 44035 4100 GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO 2,188.98


03/15 03/05/2015 44036 5224 MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 379.68


03/15 03/05/2015 44037 5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 1,175.87


03/15 03/05/2015 44038 5544 NIKE USA, INC 428.76


03/15 03/05/2015 44039 5545 NORTHERN SAFETY CO INC 80.29


03/15 03/05/2015 44040 5847 PET DOCTOR 340.00


03/15 03/05/2015 44041 5979 PRECISION SMALL ENGINE CO INC 195.07


03/15 03/05/2015 44042 6480 SAN PEDRO VALLEY NEWS 5.27


03/15 03/05/2015 44043 6564 SENERGY PETROLEUM 1,378.65


03/15 03/05/2015 44044 7510 UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT COMPANY 605.16


03/15 03/05/2015 44045 7402 US FOODS 643.94


03/15 03/05/2015 44046 7536 USA BLUEBOOK 194.33


03/15 03/05/2015 44047 7598 VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 931.98


03/15 03/05/2015 44048 7675 WAL-MART BUSINESS 1,256.37


03/15 03/05/2015 44049 11621 WANDA VALENTINE 12.50


03/15 03/05/2015 44050 7697 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 629.70


03/15 03/05/2015 44051 5551 ANICLETO D MALDONADO 200.00


03/15 03/12/2015 44052 1027 A&M PERSONNEL SERVICES LTD 192.75


03/15 03/12/2015 44053 1023 A-1 PORT-A-POTS 174.25


03/15 03/12/2015 44054 1320 ARIZONA DAILY STAR 751.52


03/15 03/12/2015 44055 1690 AZ DEPT OF REVENUE - SALES TAX 14,577.99


03/15 03/12/2015 44056 1430 AZ PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREMENT 10,078.91


03/15 03/12/2015 44057 1838 BAKER & TAYLOR, INC. 5,000.00


03/15 03/12/2015 44058 11626 BETINA R TREUBER 34.69


03/15 03/12/2015 44059 2336 BTCO 800.00


03/15 03/12/2015 44060 2350 BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING CO 1,181.00


03/15 03/12/2015 44061 3051 CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 1,079.20


03/15 03/12/2015 44062 2630 CG CREATIONS EMBROIDERY 67.94


03/15 03/12/2015 44063 2751 CITY OF BENSON - SALES TAX 5,991.95


03/15 03/12/2015 44064 2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 2,386.32


03/15 03/12/2015 44065 2839 COCA COLA REFRESHMENTS 199.84


03/15 03/12/2015 44066 3137 CROP PRODUCTION SERVICES INC 320.00


03/15 03/12/2015 44067 3610 EMPIRE SOUTHWEST, LLC 1,537.90


03/15 03/12/2015 44068 3648 ESG CORP 2,900.00


03/15 03/12/2015 44069 11623 GENE SHAW 13.32


03/15 03/12/2015 44070 3983 GEORGE'S AUTOMOTIVE 541.10


03/15 03/12/2015 44071 4126 GUARDIAN EMS 574.20


03/15 03/12/2015 44072 4494 JAYMON PROPERTIES LLC 2.35


03/15 03/12/2015 44073 4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICES 734.00


03/15 03/12/2015 44074 11624 MARISSA R MASCARENO 122.61


03/15 03/12/2015 44075 5157 MARYLAND CHILD SUPPORT ACCOUNT 69.81


03/15 03/12/2015 44076 5224 MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 597.98


03/15 03/12/2015 44077 5495 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION 945.00


03/15 03/12/2015 44078 3151 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS 245.50


03/15 03/12/2015 44079 5978 POSTAL PROS INC 1,433.90


03/15 03/12/2015 44080 11625 SHERYL E MILLER 132.83


03/15 03/12/2015 44081 6599 SHOWCASES 183.60


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF BENSON Check Register - Council Packets Page:     3


Check Issue Dates: 3/1/2015 - 3/12/2015 Mar 12, 2015  10:42AM


GL Period Check Issue Date Check Number Vendor Number Payee Amount


03/15 03/12/2015 44082 6774 SOUTHWEST DISPOSAL 31,697.90


03/15 03/12/2015 44083 6809 STANDARD RESTAURANT EQUIPMENT CO 280.48


03/15 03/12/2015 44084 2791 SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARINGHOUSE 373.85


03/15 03/12/2015 44085 7004 TCF EQUIPMENT FINANCE INC 9,549.80


03/15 03/12/2015 44086 7040 TEXAS CANYON ROCK & SAND, INC. 565.22


03/15 03/12/2015 44087 7712 THOMSON REUTERS - WEST 40.19


03/15 03/12/2015 44088 7219 TIAA-CREF AS AGENT FOR JPM 175.00


03/15 03/12/2015 44089 7253 TITLEIST 1,900.61


03/15 03/12/2015 44090 11618 TROY L HAYMORE 131.03


03/15 03/12/2015 44091 7309 TRUCK WORKS INC 289.16


03/15 03/12/2015 44092 7402 US FOODS 1,723.92


03/15 03/12/2015 44093 7598 VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 505.00


03/15 03/12/2015 44094 5211 VERIZON BUSINESS 135.04


03/15 03/12/2015 44095 7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 358.13


03/15 03/12/2015 44096 7671 VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS INC 5,917.53


03/15 03/12/2015 44097 7685 WASHINGTON STATE SUPPORT REGISTRY 115.38


          Grand Totals:  273,090.54


Report Criteria:


Report type:  Summary


Check.Type = {<>} "Adjustment"


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     1


Report dates: 3/1/2015-3/12/2015 Mar 12, 2015  10:52AM


Report Criteria:


Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.


Only paid invoices included.


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


GENERAL FUND


10-22250  RETIREMENT PAYABLE


GENERAL FUND AZ STATE RETIREMENT    ACC  030615 03/12/2015 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTION 20,229.32


GENERAL FUND NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SO 030615 03/12/2015 DEFERRED COMPENSATION 945.00


GENERAL FUND TIAA-CREF AS AGENT FOR JP 030615 03/12/2015 #403743 - VOLUNTARY RETIREMENT 175.00


          Total 10-22250  RETIREMENT PAYABLE: 21,349.32


10-22255  POLICE DEPARTMENT RET PAYABLE


GENERAL FUND AZ PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREME 030615 03/12/2015 P.D. RETIREMENT 9,763.58


GENERAL FUND AZ PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREME 030615A 03/12/2015 F.D. RETIREMENT 315.33


          Total 10-22255  POLICE DEPARTMENT RET PAYABLE: 10,078.91


10-22265  GARNISHMENTS PAYABLE


GENERAL FUND MARYLAND CHILD SUPPORT A L-030615 03/12/2015 #340002729 69.81


GENERAL FUND SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARIN A-030615 03/12/2015 #0002160133-00 52.93


GENERAL FUND SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARIN D-030615 03/12/2015 #000379351700 139.90


GENERAL FUND SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARIN L-030615 03/12/2015 #000508942900 181.02


GENERAL FUND WASHINGTON STATE SUPPOR D-030615 03/12/2015 IN 3609574 115.38


          Total 10-22265  GARNISHMENTS PAYABLE: 559.04


10-22280  HEALTH INSURANCE PAYABLE


GENERAL FUND BLUE CROSS-BLUE SHIELD 021715 02/17/2015 HEALTH INSURANCE - AAA 030783 35,360.59


GENERAL FUND BLUE CROSS-BLUE SHIELD 021715A 02/17/2015 HEALTH INSURANCE - AAC 030783 5,971.96


GENERAL FUND ESG CORP 34761 03/09/2015 BENEFIT ADMINISTRATION 1,465.55


          Total 10-22280  HEALTH INSURANCE PAYABLE: 42,798.10


10-22281  AFLAC


GENERAL FUND AMERICAN FAMILY LIFE ASSU 804879 02/11/2014 EMPLOYEE INSURANCE 1,883.73


          Total 10-22281  AFLAC: 1,883.73


10-22282  COLONIAL


GENERAL FUND COLONIAL LIFE ASSURANCE 022415 02/24/2015 EMPLOYEE INSURANCE 88.43


          Total 10-22282  COLONIAL: 88.43


10-22285  DENTAL INSURANCE PAYABLE


GENERAL FUND HUMANA 415781780 02/13/2015 DENTAL INSURANCE 1,412.40


          Total 10-22285  DENTAL INSURANCE PAYABLE: 1,412.40


10-22287  Vision Insurance Payable


GENERAL FUND VISION SERVICE PLAN 021915 02/19/2015 VISION INSURANCE 316.41


          Total 10-22287  Vision Insurance Payable: 316.41


10-22290  LIFE INSURANCE PAYABLE


GENERAL FUND PRINCIPAL LIFE 021515 02/15/2015 LIFE INSURANCE 1,131.67







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     2


Report dates: 3/1/2015-3/12/2015 Mar 12, 2015  10:52AM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


          Total 10-22290  LIFE INSURANCE PAYABLE: 1,131.67


10-22292  FSA PAYABLE


GENERAL FUND ESG CORP 030615 03/12/2015 MONTHLY FUNDING 4,243.73


          Total 10-22292  FSA PAYABLE: 4,243.73


10-310-25  PARK USER FEES


GENERAL FUND WANDA VALENTINE 022515 02/25/2015 REFUND RAMADA CANCELLATION 12.50


          Total 10-310-25  PARK USER FEES: 12.50


10-41-230  EMPLOYEE INSURANCE


GENERAL FUND ESG CORP 34761 03/09/2015 COBRA ADMINISTRATION 127.50


          Total 10-41-230  EMPLOYEE INSURANCE: 127.50


10-41-310  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - HR


GENERAL FUND NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021915 02/19/2015 LUNCH - FINANCE DIRECTOR INTERVIEW 80.00


GENERAL FUND NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021915 02/19/2015 BACK GROUND CHECK 57.90


GENERAL FUND OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENT 158120410 02/18/2015 PRE EMPLOYMENT DRUG TESTING 76.00


GENERAL FUND OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENT 158125338 02/25/2015 PRE EMPLOYMENT DRUG TESTING 169.50


          Total 10-41-310  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - HR: 383.40


10-41-340  EDUCATION & TRAINING


GENERAL FUND CROP PRODUCTION SERVICES  26103331 02/05/2015 PEST MANAGEMENT CLASS 2/19/15 80.00


          Total 10-41-340  EDUCATION & TRAINING: 80.00


10-41-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 022015 02/20/2015 UTILITIES 21.72


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 022015A 02/20/2015 UTILITIES 21.72


          Total 10-41-410  UTILITIES: 43.44


10-41-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9740505065 02/12/2015 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 126.78


          Total 10-41-415  TELEPHONE: 126.78


10-41-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GENERAL FUND BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  114565 02/03/2015 EXTERMINATING 62.00


GENERAL FUND VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 016966C 01/30/2015 CHARGE FOR COPIES 509.34


GENERAL FUND VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 0172511C 03/02/2015 CHARGE FOR COPIES 19.39


          Total 10-41-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 590.73


10-41-542  ADVERTISING - HR


GENERAL FUND ARIZONA DAILY STAR 022815 02/28/2015 POLICE OFFICER EMPLOYMENT ADS 751.52


          Total 10-41-542  ADVERTISING - HR: 751.52


10-41-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/28/15 02/28/2015 SUPPLIES 72.67


GENERAL FUND BENSON LUMBER & SUPPLY LL 17052 02/18/2015 SUPPLIES 175.16
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Report dates: 3/1/2015-3/12/2015 Mar 12, 2015  10:52AM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9740505065 02/12/2015 EQUIPMENT 40.71


GENERAL FUND WAL-MART BUSINESS 021615 02/16/2015 SUPPLIES 28.02


GENERAL FUND WAL-MART BUSINESS 021615 02/16/2015 SUPPLIES 49.80


          Total 10-41-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 366.36


10-41-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL


GENERAL FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801509 02/24/2015 FUEL 200.82


          Total 10-41-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL: 200.82


10-41-705  PROPERTY PAYMENT


GENERAL FUND LORENE WHALEY 87 03/15/2015 PROPERTY PAYMENT 567.27


          Total 10-41-705  PROPERTY PAYMENT: 567.27


10-42-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND CG CREATIONS EMBROIDERY REF-3-4-2015 03/04/2015 COUNCIL SHIRTS - MAYOR 67.94


GENERAL FUND NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021915 02/19/2015 IPAD CHARGERS 19.98


GENERAL FUND NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021915 02/19/2015 COUNCIL RETREAT DRINKS 48.04


GENERAL FUND THOMSON REUTERS - WEST 830536961 10/04/2014 AZ REV STATE 2014 PP V2B 40.19


          Total 10-42-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 176.15


10-43-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9740505065 02/12/2015 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 29.40


          Total 10-43-415  TELEPHONE: 29.40


10-43-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GENERAL FUND VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 016966B 01/30/2015 CHARGE FOR COPIES 25.68


GENERAL FUND VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 0172511B 03/02/2015 CHARGE FOR COPIES 53.07


          Total 10-43-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 78.75


10-43-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL


GENERAL FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801509 02/24/2015 FUEL 35.60


          Total 10-43-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL: 35.60


10-45-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


GENERAL FUND NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021915 02/19/2015 INTELIUS 19.95


          Total 10-45-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 19.95


10-45-320  HOLDING CELL SUPPLIES & MEALS


GENERAL FUND WAL-MART BUSINESS 021615 02/16/2015 PRISONER MEALS 8.20


          Total 10-45-320  HOLDING CELL SUPPLIES & MEALS: 8.20


10-45-340  EDUCATION & TRAINING


GENERAL FUND BRANDON JACQUEZ 021515A 02/15/2015 PER DIEM - 3/2/15 FIREARMS INSTRUCTOR 56.80


          Total 10-45-340  EDUCATION & TRAINING: 56.80


10-45-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 022715 02/27/2015 UTILITIES -AC 302.89
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Report dates: 3/1/2015-3/12/2015 Mar 12, 2015  10:52AM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


          Total 10-45-410  UTILITIES: 302.89


10-45-415  TELECOMMUNICATIONS


GENERAL FUND TRANSWORLD NETWORK COR 13283447 02/10/2015 INTERNET SVC 51.11


GENERAL FUND VERIZON BUSINESS 09759851 02/25/2015 LONG DISTANCE SERVICE 63.68


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9740477795 02/12/2015 PD DATA LINK 400.10


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9740505065 02/12/2015 CELL PHONE - AC 29.40


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9740505065 02/12/2015 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 604.05


          Total 10-45-415  TELECOMMUNICATIONS: 1,148.34


10-45-430  BLDG & EQUIP REPAIRS & MAINT


GENERAL FUND BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/28/15 02/28/2015 REPAIRS/MAINT 29.30


GENERAL FUND BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  114550 02/01/2015 EXTERMINATING 29.00


GENERAL FUND EMPIRE SOUTHWEST, LLC EPWK0357622 01/23/2015 GENERATOR SERVICE 648.45


GENERAL FUND VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 016966F 01/30/2015 CHARGE FOR COPIES 101.00


GENERAL FUND VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 0172511F 03/02/2015 CHARGE FOR COPIES 191.14


          Total 10-45-430  BLDG & EQUIP REPAIRS & MAINT: 998.89


10-45-594  ANIMAL MEDICAL FROM DONATIONS


GENERAL FUND PET DOCTOR 11357 02/10/2015 NEUTER FELINE, RABIES 35.20


GENERAL FUND PET DOCTOR 11358 02/10/2015 SPAY FELINE, RABIES 56.80


GENERAL FUND PET DOCTOR 11359 02/10/2015 NEUTER FELINE, RABIES 35.20


GENERAL FUND PET DOCTOR 11713 02/19/2015 2- FELINE NEUTER, CANINE NEUTER, CANI 212.80


          Total 10-45-594  ANIMAL MEDICAL FROM DONATIONS: 340.00


10-45-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND OFFICE DEPOT, INC 753105170001 01/30/2015 OFFICE SUPPIES 85.99


          Total 10-45-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES: 85.99


10-45-630  COMPUTER SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND OFFICE DEPOT, INC 753759329001 02/04/2015 TONER 77.21


          Total 10-45-630  COMPUTER SUPPLIES: 77.21


10-45-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021915 02/19/2015 LUNCH FOR TRIAL 74.30


          Total 10-45-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 74.30


10-45-660  FUEL & OIL


GENERAL FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801509 02/24/2015 FUEL 31.51


GENERAL FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801509 02/24/2015 FUEL 2,052.10


          Total 10-45-660  FUEL & OIL: 2,083.61


10-45-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT


GENERAL FUND GEORGE'S AUTOMOTIVE 35443 02/19/2015 #20 - RADIATOR FAN, TIRE MOUNT & BALAN 482.56


GENERAL FUND GEORGE'S AUTOMOTIVE 35495 03/02/2015 #31 - OIL CHANGE 58.54


          Total 10-45-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT: 541.10
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10-46-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


GENERAL FUND BENSON VOLUNTEER FIRE DE 88 03/01/2015 MONTHLY PAYMENT 5,000.00


          Total 10-46-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 5,000.00


10-46-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND VERIZON BUSINESS 09759851 02/25/2015 LONG DISTANCE SERVICE 63.67


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9740505065 02/12/2015 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 259.93


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9741078745 02/23/2015 AIR CARDS 280.07


          Total 10-46-415  TELEPHONE: 603.67


10-46-430  EQUIP REPAIRS & MAINT


GENERAL FUND EMPIRE SOUTHWEST, LLC EPWK0357622 01/23/2015 GENERATOR SERVICE 648.45


          Total 10-46-430  EQUIP REPAIRS & MAINT: 648.45


10-46-432  STATION REPAIRS & MAINT


GENERAL FUND BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/28/15 02/28/2015 REPAIRS/MAINT 115.09


GENERAL FUND BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  114560 02/02/2015 EXTERMINATING 37.00


GENERAL FUND WAL-MART BUSINESS 021615 02/16/2015 SUPPLIES 130.31


          Total 10-46-432  STATION REPAIRS & MAINT: 282.40


10-46-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND OFFICE DEPOT, INC 748462117001 02/02/2015 CREDIT 4.42-


          Total 10-46-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES: 4.42-


10-46-620  POSTAGE


GENERAL FUND FEDEX 2-951-24891 02/26/2015 EXPRESS MAIL 16.87


          Total 10-46-620  POSTAGE: 16.87


10-46-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021915 02/19/2015 BANK FEE 30.00


          Total 10-46-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 30.00


10-46-650  EMS SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND GUARDIAN EMS 5575610 02/03/2015 EMS SUPPLIES 209.70


GENERAL FUND GUARDIAN EMS 5582495 03/03/2015 EMS SUPPLIES 104.85


GENERAL FUND GUARDIAN EMS 5582504 03/03/2015 EMS SUPPLIES 259.65


          Total 10-46-650  EMS SUPPLIES: 574.20


10-46-660  FUEL & OIL


GENERAL FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801509 02/24/2015 FUEL 415.87


          Total 10-46-660  FUEL & OIL: 415.87


10-46-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT


GENERAL FUND TRUCK WORKS INC SO6300 02/27/2015 PARTS 289.16


          Total 10-46-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT: 289.16
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10-49-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND COX COMMUNICATIONS 021815 02/18/2015 MONTHLY INTERNET SERVICES 184.00


GENERAL FUND COX COMMUNICATIONS 021815 02/18/2015 TELEPHONE 115.97


          Total 10-49-415  TELEPHONE: 299.97


10-49-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GENERAL FUND BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/28/15 02/28/2015 REPAIRS/MAINT 51.86


GENERAL FUND BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  114588 02/07/2015 EXTERMINATING 47.00


GENERAL FUND VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 016966 01/30/2015 CHARGE FOR COPIES 81.21


GENERAL FUND VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 0172511 03/02/2015 CHARGE FOR COPIES 89.11


          Total 10-49-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 269.18


10-49-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND SHOWCASES 284298 02/20/2015 SUPPLIES 183.60


GENERAL FUND WAL-MART BUSINESS 021615 02/16/2015 SUPPLIES 3.26


          Total 10-49-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 186.86


10-49-696  BOOKS


GENERAL FUND BAKER & TAYLOR, INC. BK605TNST13 02/23/2015 PRO FORMA BOOKS 5,000.00


          Total 10-49-696  BOOKS: 5,000.00


10-50-305  CONTRACT LABOR - DOC


GENERAL FUND ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO COBPPE01301 02/10/2015 DOC LABOR - 1/17 - 1/30/15 134.50


          Total 10-50-305  CONTRACT LABOR - DOC: 134.50


10-50-340  EDUCATION & TRAINING


GENERAL FUND CROP PRODUCTION SERVICES  26103331 02/05/2015 PEST MANAGEMENT CLASS 2/19/15 80.00


          Total 10-50-340  EDUCATION & TRAINING: 80.00


10-50-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 022715 02/27/2015 UTILITIES 343.27


          Total 10-50-410  UTILITIES: 343.27


10-50-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND COX COMMUNICATIONS 021315 02/13/2015 MONTHLY INTERNET SERVICES 59.00


GENERAL FUND COX COMMUNICATIONS 021315 02/13/2015 TELEPHONE 59.78


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9740505065 02/12/2015 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 58.80


          Total 10-50-415  TELEPHONE: 177.58


10-50-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GENERAL FUND A-1 PORT-A-POTS 3194 03/02/2015 PORT-A-POTS 174.25


GENERAL FUND BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/28/15 02/28/2015 REPAIRS/MAINT 133.12


GENERAL FUND BENSON LUMBER & SUPPLY LL 17052 02/18/2015 SUPPLIES 56.31


          Total 10-50-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 363.68


10-50-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND WAL-MART BUSINESS 021615 02/16/2015 SUPPLIES 53.94
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          Total 10-50-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES: 53.94


10-50-640  OTHER OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/28/15 02/28/2015 SUPPLIES 125.18


GENERAL FUND WAL-MART BUSINESS 021615 02/16/2015 SUPPLIES 17.57


GENERAL FUND WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 75094663 02/12/2015 SUPPLIES 629.70


          Total 10-50-640  OTHER OPERATING SUPPLIES: 772.45


10-50-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL


GENERAL FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801509 02/24/2015 FUEL 371.30


          Total 10-50-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL: 371.30


10-56-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


GENERAL FUND ESG CORP 34761 03/09/2015 MONTHLY FSA ADMINSTRATION 303.75


GENERAL FUND ESG CORP 34761 03/09/2015 HRA MONTHLY ADMINISTRATION 1,003.20


          Total 10-56-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 1,306.95


10-56-340  EDUCATION & TRAINING


GENERAL FUND NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021915 02/19/2015 GFOAZ WINTER CONFERENCE REGISTRATI 240.00


          Total 10-56-340  EDUCATION & TRAINING: 240.00


10-56-350  BANK CHARGES


GENERAL FUND CHASE 022815 02/28/2015 CREDIT CARD FEES 58.45


          Total 10-56-350  BANK CHARGES: 58.45


10-56-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9740505065 02/12/2015 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 69.41


          Total 10-56-415  TELEPHONE: 69.41


10-56-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GENERAL FUND VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 0169660 01/30/2015 CHARGE FOR COPIES 147.20


GENERAL FUND VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 016966A 01/30/2015 CHARGE FOR COPIES 31.60


GENERAL FUND VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 0172511A 03/02/2015 CHARGE FOR COPIES 31.75


GENERAL FUND VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 0172511D 03/02/2015 CHARGE FOR COPIES 84.59


          Total 10-56-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 295.14


10-56-640  OTHER OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND WAL-MART BUSINESS 021615 02/16/2015 SUPPLIES 6.91


          Total 10-56-640  OTHER OPERATING SUPPLIES: 6.91


10-57-412  UTILITIES - COMM CENTER


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 021315 02/13/2015 UTILITIES 322.60


          Total 10-57-412  UTILITIES - COMM CENTER: 322.60


10-57-415  TELEPHONE - POOL


GENERAL FUND COX COMMUNICATIONS 021915 02/19/2015 PHONE @ POOL 40.78
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          Total 10-57-415  TELEPHONE - POOL: 40.78


10-57-417  TELEPHONE - COMM CENTER


GENERAL FUND COX COMMUNICATIONS 021015 02/10/2015 MONTHLY INTERNET SERVICES 59.00


GENERAL FUND COX COMMUNICATIONS 021015 02/10/2015 MONTHLY TELEPHONE 75.17


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9740505065 02/12/2015 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 29.40


          Total 10-57-417  TELEPHONE - COMM CENTER: 163.57


10-57-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE - POOL


GENERAL FUND BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/28/15 02/28/2015 REPAIRS/MAINT 10.85


          Total 10-57-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE - POOL: 10.85


10-57-432  REPAIRS & MAINT - COMM CENTER


GENERAL FUND BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/28/15 02/28/2015 REPAIRS/MAINT 10.85


GENERAL FUND BENSON LUMBER & SUPPLY LL 17052 02/18/2015 SUPPLIES 3.68


GENERAL FUND BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  114571 02/04/2015 EXTERMINATING 32.00


          Total 10-57-432  REPAIRS & MAINT - COMM CENTER: 46.53


10-57-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND DELL MARKETING LP XJMW636W6 02/10/2015 BLACK TONER 126.70


          Total 10-57-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES: 126.70


10-58-545  FOOD PANTRY


GENERAL FUND COMMUNITY FOOD PANTRY O 84 03/01/2015 MONTHLY ASSISTANCE 130.00


          Total 10-58-545  FOOD PANTRY: 130.00


10-58-546  FOOD BANK


GENERAL FUND BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/28/15 02/28/2015 FOOD BANK 6.51


          Total 10-58-546  FOOD BANK: 6.51


10-58-581  CITY BILLBOARDS WITH LIGHTS


GENERAL FUND BTCO 122 01/15/2015 BILL BOARD ADVERTISING 400.00


GENERAL FUND BTCO 24 01/15/2015 BILL BOARD ADVERTISING 400.00


          Total 10-58-581  CITY BILLBOARDS WITH LIGHTS: 800.00


10-58-583  HOLIDAY LIGHT PARADE


GENERAL FUND SAN PEDRO VALLEY NEWS 013115B 01/31/2015 #4108 - SHORT PAID 12/31/14A 5.27


          Total 10-58-583  HOLIDAY LIGHT PARADE: 5.27


10-60-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GENERAL FUND BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  114557 02/01/2015 EXTERMINATING 37.00


GENERAL FUND VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 016966E 01/30/2015 CHARGE FOR COPIES 35.95


GENERAL FUND VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 0172511E 03/02/2015 CHARGE FOR COPIES 35.95


GENERAL FUND WAL-MART BUSINESS 021615 02/16/2015 SUPPLIES 11.15


          Total 10-60-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 120.05
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10-60-640  OTHER OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021915 02/19/2015 CCTC MEETING - DRINKS, DONUTS 24.95


GENERAL FUND NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021915 02/19/2015 CCTC MEETING - DRINKS, DONUTS 15.18


GENERAL FUND WAL-MART BUSINESS 021615 02/16/2015 SUPPLIES 10.58


GENERAL FUND WAL-MART BUSINESS 021615 02/16/2015 SUPPLIES - CCTC MEETING 33.35


          Total 10-60-640  OTHER OPERATING SUPPLIES: 84.06


10-61-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


GENERAL FUND THOMSON REUTERS - WEST 831096799 01/04/2015 CD ROM 12/5 -1/4/15 AZ REVISED STAT ANN 423.67


          Total 10-61-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 423.67


10-61-580  TRAVEL


GENERAL FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801509 02/24/2015 FUEL 23.64


          Total 10-61-580  TRAVEL: 23.64


10-65-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 022715 02/27/2015 UTILITIES 16.61


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 022715 02/27/2015 UTILITIES 445.54


          Total 10-65-410  UTILITIES: 462.15


10-65-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND TRANSWORLD NETWORK COR 13283449 02/10/2015 INTERNET SVC 55.11


GENERAL FUND VERIZON BUSINESS 09759851 02/25/2015 LONG DISTANCE SERVICE 7.69


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9740505065 02/12/2015 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 104.14


          Total 10-65-415  TELEPHONE: 166.94


10-65-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL


GENERAL FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801509 02/24/2015 FUEL 68.97


          Total 10-65-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL: 68.97


          Total GENERAL FUND: 114,057.32


TRANSIT FUND


14-20300  GREYHOUND PAYABLE


TRANSIT FUND GREYHOUND 030215 03/02/2015 TICKET SALES 34.00


TRANSIT FUND GREYHOUND 030515 03/05/2015 TICKET SALES 9.96


          Total 14-20300  GREYHOUND PAYABLE: 43.96


14-40-415  TELEPHONE


TRANSIT FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9740505065 02/12/2015 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 117.60


TRANSIT FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9741140753 02/23/2015 VIDEO CARDS 78.06


          Total 14-40-415  TELEPHONE: 195.66


14-40-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL


TRANSIT FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801509 02/24/2015 FUEL 1,187.27


          Total 14-40-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL: 1,187.27
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          Total TRANSIT FUND: 1,426.89


STREET FUND


20-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


STREET FUND BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  114746 01/28/2015 MONTHLY WEED CONTROL 807.00


STREET FUND DIGGINS & SONS POWER SWE 52545 02/28/2015 SWEEP STREETS  - 2/15 1,900.00


STREET FUND STAMBACK SEPTIC SERVICE 3606 02/25/2015 PORT A POTS 206.34


          Total 20-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 2,913.34


20-40-305  CONTRACT LABOR - DOC


STREET FUND ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO COBPPE01301 02/10/2015 DOC LABOR - 1/17 - 1/30/15 148.00


          Total 20-40-305  CONTRACT LABOR - DOC: 148.00


20-40-340  EDUCATION & TRAINING


STREET FUND CROP PRODUCTION SERVICES  26103331 02/05/2015 PEST MANAGEMENT CLASS 2/19/15 80.00


          Total 20-40-340  EDUCATION & TRAINING: 80.00


20-40-415  TELEPHONE


STREET FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9740505065 02/12/2015 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 88.20


          Total 20-40-415  TELEPHONE: 88.20


20-40-435  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE-STREETS


STREET FUND GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO 772743 02/18/2015 COLD MIX - 25.16 TONS 2,188.98


STREET FUND TEXAS CANYON ROCK & SAND 18986 02/28/2015 66.59 TONS AB - STOCK 141.31


          Total 20-40-435  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE-STREETS: 2,330.29


20-40-640  MATERIALS & SUPPLIES


STREET FUND BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/28/15 02/28/2015 SUPPLIES 56.65


STREET FUND BENSON LUMBER & SUPPLY LL 17052 02/18/2015 SUPPLIES 18.17


STREET FUND NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021915 02/19/2015 TITLE FEE 8.00


          Total 20-40-640  MATERIALS & SUPPLIES: 82.82


20-40-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL


STREET FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801509 02/24/2015 FUEL 309.26


          Total 20-40-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL: 309.26


20-40-670  VEHICLE MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS


STREET FUND BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/28/15 02/28/2015 REPAIRS/MAINT 6.49


          Total 20-40-670  VEHICLE MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS: 6.49


          Total STREET FUND: 5,958.40


GRANTS FUND


46-41-798  FEDERAL AIRPORT GRANTS


GRANTS FUND SWCA ENVIRONMENTAL CONS 37124 01/30/2015 FAA GRANT #17 - BIOLOGICAL EVALUATION 7,296.10


          Total 46-41-798  FEDERAL AIRPORT GRANTS: 7,296.10
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          Total GRANTS FUND: 7,296.10


GAS FUND


50-12500  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE


GAS FUND CYNTHIA A PARKE 030415 03/04/2015 REFUND CREDIT BALANCE 55.81


GAS FUND JAYMON PROPERTIES LLC 031015 03/10/2015 REFUND CREDIT BALANCE 2.35


GAS FUND TROY L HAYMORE 031015 03/10/2015 REFUND CREDIT BALANCE 131.03


          Total 50-12500  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE: 189.19


50-22900  METER DEPOSITS - GAS


GAS FUND AMY L COOK 030215 03/02/2015 REFUND GAS DEPOSIT 68.16


GAS FUND GENE SHAW 030515 03/05/2015 REFUND GAS DEPOSIT 13.32


GAS FUND MARISSA R MASCARENO 030515 03/05/2015 REFUND GAS DEPOSIT 122.61


GAS FUND MARYANN HELFRICH 030215 03/02/2015 REFUND GAS DEPOSIT 48.20


GAS FUND SHERYL E MILLER 030515 03/05/2015 REFUND GAS DEPOSIT 132.83


          Total 50-22900  METER DEPOSITS - GAS: 385.12


50-24500  SALES TAX PAYABLE


GAS FUND AZ DEPT OF REVENUE - SALES  2/15 02/28/2015 UTILITY SALES TAX 9,377.75


GAS FUND CITY OF BENSON - SALES TAX 2/15 02/28/2015 CITY SALES TAX 3,878.95


          Total 50-24500  SALES TAX PAYABLE: 13,256.70


50-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


GAS FUND ARIZONA BLUE STAKE INC 2015-AA0013 01/31/2015 ANNUAL ASSESSMENT 182.78


GAS FUND MCCARTER & ENGLISH, LLP 7959636 02/12/2015 SHARE OF EL PASO CASE 186.57


          Total 50-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 369.35


50-40-351  BANK CHARGES


GAS FUND CHASE 022815A 02/28/2015 CREDIT CARD FEES 187.85


          Total 50-40-351  BANK CHARGES: 187.85


50-40-415  TELEPHONE


GAS FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9740505065 02/12/2015 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 171.73


          Total 50-40-415  TELEPHONE: 171.73


50-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GAS FUND TEXAS CANYON ROCK & SAND 18986 02/28/2015 66.59 TONS AB - STOCK 141.30


          Total 50-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 141.30


50-40-602  NATURAL GAS PURCHASED


GAS FUND SHELL ENERGY NORTH AMERI 2599497 02/23/2015 COST OF GAS PURCHASED 55,568.92


          Total 50-40-602  NATURAL GAS PURCHASED: 55,568.92


50-40-620  PRINTING & POSTAGE


GAS FUND POSTAL PROS INC 74422 02/28/2015 UTILITY BILLS 358.48


          Total 50-40-620  PRINTING & POSTAGE: 358.48
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50-40-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES


GAS FUND BENSON LUMBER & SUPPLY LL 17052 02/18/2015 SUPPLIES 119.79


          Total 50-40-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 119.79


50-40-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL


GAS FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801509 02/24/2015 FUEL 419.84


          Total 50-40-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL: 419.84


          Total GAS FUND: 71,168.27


WATER FUND


51-22900  METER DEPOSITS - WATER


WATER FUND BETINA R TREUBER 031015 03/10/2015 REFUND WATER DEPOSIT 34.69


          Total 51-22900  METER DEPOSITS - WATER: 34.69


51-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


WATER FUND ARIZONA BLUE STAKE INC 2015-AA0013 01/31/2015 ANNUAL ASSESSMENT 182.77


          Total 51-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 182.77


51-40-350  BANK CHARGES


WATER FUND CHASE 022815A 02/28/2015 CREDIT CARD FEES 187.85


          Total 51-40-350  BANK CHARGES: 187.85


51-40-415  TELEPHONE


WATER FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9740505065 02/12/2015 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 88.20


          Total 51-40-415  TELEPHONE: 88.20


51-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


WATER FUND TEXAS CANYON ROCK & SAND 18986 02/28/2015 66.59 TONS AB - STOCK 141.30


          Total 51-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 141.30


51-40-620  PRINTING & POSTAGE


WATER FUND POSTAL PROS INC 74422 02/28/2015 UTILITY BILLS 358.48


          Total 51-40-620  PRINTING & POSTAGE: 358.48


51-40-640  OTHER OPERATING COSTS


WATER FUND AZ DEPT OF REVENUE - SALES  2/15 02/28/2015 MUNI WATER SALES TAX 91.86


WATER FUND BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/28/15 02/28/2015 SUPPLIES 27.12


WATER FUND BENSON LUMBER & SUPPLY LL 17052 02/18/2015 SUPPLIES 1.82


          Total 51-40-640  OTHER OPERATING COSTS: 120.80


51-40-660  FUEL & OIL


WATER FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801509 02/24/2015 FUEL 519.75


          Total 51-40-660  FUEL & OIL: 519.75


          Total WATER FUND: 1,633.84
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WASTEWATER FUND


52-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


WASTEWATER FUND ARIZONA BLUE STAKE INC 2015-AA0013 01/31/2015 ANNUAL ASSESSMENT 182.77


          Total 52-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 182.77


52-40-301  CHEMICAL ANALYSES


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1501317 01/29/2015 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1501717 02/05/2015 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1501854 02/06/2015 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1501897 02/09/2015 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1502050 02/11/2015 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1502082 02/11/2015 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1502098 02/11/2015 TESTING 92.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1502188 02/13/2015 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1502244 02/16/2015 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1502320 02/17/2015 TESTING 644.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1502457 02/18/2015 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1502536 02/19/2015 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1502609 02/23/2015 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1502628 02/23/2015 TESTING 15.00


          Total 52-40-301  CHEMICAL ANALYSES: 916.00


52-40-350  BANK CHARGES


WASTEWATER FUND CHASE 022815A 02/28/2015 CREDIT CARD FEES 187.84


          Total 52-40-350  BANK CHARGES: 187.84


52-40-410  UTILITIES


WASTEWATER FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 022715 02/27/2015 UTILITIES 62.55


          Total 52-40-410  UTILITIES: 62.55


52-40-415  TELEPHONE


WASTEWATER FUND TRANSWORLD NETWORK COR 13278724 02/06/2015 INTERNET SERVICE - PERK PLANT 51.11


WASTEWATER FUND TRANSWORLD NETWORK COR 13283450 02/10/2015 INTERNET SVC 51.11


WASTEWATER FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9740505065 02/12/2015 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 58.80


          Total 52-40-415  TELEPHONE: 161.02


52-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


WASTEWATER FUND TEXAS CANYON ROCK & SAND 18986 02/28/2015 66.59 TONS AB - STOCK 141.31


          Total 52-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 141.31


52-40-620  PRINTING & POSTAGE


WASTEWATER FUND POSTAL PROS INC 74422 02/28/2015 UTILITY BILLS 358.47


          Total 52-40-620  PRINTING & POSTAGE: 358.47


52-40-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES


WASTEWATER FUND BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/28/15 02/28/2015 SUPPLIES 66.23


WASTEWATER FUND BENSON LUMBER & SUPPLY LL 17052 02/18/2015 SUPPLIES 4.32


WASTEWATER FUND USA BLUEBOOK 570068 02/17/2015 # 71229 - SUPPLIES 194.33


WASTEWATER FUND WAL-MART BUSINESS 021615 02/16/2015 SUPPLIES 39.00
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          Total 52-40-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 303.88


52-40-660  FUEL & OIL


WASTEWATER FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801509 02/24/2015 FUEL 281.60


          Total 52-40-660  FUEL & OIL: 281.60


          Total WASTEWATER FUND: 2,595.44


SANITATION FUND


53-40-350  BANK CHARGES


SANITATION FUND CHASE 022815A 02/28/2015 CREDIT CARD FEES 187.84


          Total 53-40-350  BANK CHARGES: 187.84


53-40-620  POSTAGE & PRINTING


SANITATION FUND POSTAL PROS INC 74422 02/28/2015 UTILITY BILLS 358.47


          Total 53-40-620  POSTAGE & PRINTING: 358.47


53-40-667  RESIDENTIAL SERVICE CONTRACT


SANITATION FUND SOUTHWEST DISPOSAL 1372668 02/28/2015 ACCT#115416-001/RESIDENTIAL PICK UP 16,740.18


          Total 53-40-667  RESIDENTIAL SERVICE CONTRACT: 16,740.18


53-40-668  COMMERCIAL SERVICE CONTRACT


SANITATION FUND SOUTHWEST DISPOSAL 1372668 02/28/2015 ACCT#115416-001/COMMERICAL PICK UP 14,957.72


          Total 53-40-668  COMMERCIAL SERVICE CONTRACT: 14,957.72


          Total SANITATION FUND: 32,244.21


SAN PEDRO GOLF COURSE


55-24500  SALES TAX PAYABLE


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AZ DEPT OF REVENUE - SALES  2/15 02/28/2015 RETAIL SALES TAX 5,108.38


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CITY OF BENSON - SALES TAX 2/15 02/28/2015 SALES TAX 2,113.00


          Total 55-24500  SALES TAX PAYABLE: 7,221.38


55-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700415346A 12/10/2014 SHORT PAID INVOICE 12/14 5.19


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700430584 02/04/2015 MATS 93.50


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700432354 02/11/2015 MATS 45.51


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  114589 02/07/2015 EXTERMINATING 60.00


          Total 55-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 204.20


55-40-310  INVENTORY- PRO SHOP


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CERTIFRESH CIGAR 19647 02/12/2015 INVENTORY 277.80


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR NIKE USA, INC 967601015 01/07/2015 INVENTORY 48.88


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR NIKE USA, INC 967621889 01/07/2015 INVENTORY 11.78


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR NIKE USA, INC 967652637 01/07/2015 INVENTORY 1,064.66


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR NIKE USA, INC 967835540 01/15/2015 INVENTORY 322.40


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR NIKE USA, INC 967835541 01/15/2015 INVENTORY 661.02


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR NIKE USA, INC 967838078 01/15/2015 INVENTORY 428.76


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR TITLEIST 900019517 01/12/2015 INVENTORY 78.41







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     15


Report dates: 3/1/2015-3/12/2015 Mar 12, 2015  10:52AM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR TITLEIST 900039738 01/16/2015 INVENTORY 1,822.20


          Total 55-40-310  INVENTORY- PRO SHOP: 4,715.91


55-40-350  BANK CHARGES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AMERICAN EXPRESS 2/15 02/28/2015 CREDIT CARD CHARGES 64.42


          Total 55-40-350  BANK CHARGES: 64.42


55-40-410  UTILITIES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 022015 02/20/2015 UTILITIES 10.24


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 022015A 02/20/2015 UTILITIES 10.24


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 022715 02/27/2015 UTILITIES 908.15


          Total 55-40-410  UTILITIES: 928.63


55-40-415  TELEPHONE


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR VERIZON WIRELESS 9740505065 02/12/2015 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 54.13


          Total 55-40-415  TELEPHONE: 54.13


55-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINT - BUILDING


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT COM 503662 12/23/2014 EXTINGUISHER INSPECTION/REFILL 605.16


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR WAL-MART BUSINESS 021615 02/16/2015 SUPPLIES 4.20


          Total 55-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINT - BUILDING: 609.36


55-40-440  RENTALS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700434229 02/18/2015 MATS 31.14


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700436186 02/25/2015 MATS 31.14


          Total 55-40-440  RENTALS: 62.28


55-40-600  OPERATING SUPPLIES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021915 02/19/2015 SUPPLIES 81.85


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR WAL-MART BUSINESS 021615 02/16/2015 SUPPLIES 45.91


          Total 55-40-600  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 127.76


55-40-660  FUEL & OIL- GOLF CARTS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SENERGY PETROLEUM 145770 03/03/2015 FUEL 1,378.65


          Total 55-40-660  FUEL & OIL- GOLF CARTS: 1,378.65


55-40-670  REPAIRS & MAINT- GOLF CARTS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR E-Z-GO 90477997 02/12/2015 PARTS 82.36


          Total 55-40-670  REPAIRS & MAINT- GOLF CARTS: 82.36


55-40-700  CAPITAL EXPENDITURES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR TCF EQUIPMENT FINANCE INC 4050203 02/09/2015 GOLF CART FINANCING 9,549.80


          Total 55-40-700  CAPITAL EXPENDITURES: 9,549.80


55-50-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  114575 02/04/2015 EXTERMINATING 35.00


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR THE TORO COMPANY - NSN 030115 03/01/2015 SOFTWARE SUPPORT 139.00
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          Total 55-50-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 174.00


55-50-305  CONTRACT LABOR- DOC


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO COBPPE01301 02/10/2015 DOC LABOR - 1/17 - 1/30/15 244.00


          Total 55-50-305  CONTRACT LABOR- DOC: 244.00


55-50-340  EDUCATION & TRAINING


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CROP PRODUCTION SERVICES  26103331 02/05/2015 PEST MANAGEMENT CLASS 2/19/15 80.00


          Total 55-50-340  EDUCATION & TRAINING: 80.00


55-50-410  UTILITIES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 022715 02/27/2015 UTILITIES 307.31


          Total 55-50-410  UTILITIES: 307.31


55-50-415  TELEPHONE


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CENTURYLINK 021015 02/10/2015 MONTHLY TELEPHONE 45.07


          Total 55-50-415  TELEPHONE: 45.07


55-50-430  REPAIRS & MAINT- IRRIGATION


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/28/15 02/28/2015 REPAIRS/MAINT 33.54


          Total 55-50-430  REPAIRS & MAINT- IRRIGATION: 33.54


55-50-606  LANDSCAPING


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR WAL-MART BUSINESS 021615 02/16/2015 SUPPLIES 93.59


          Total 55-50-606  LANDSCAPING: 93.59


55-50-640  OTHER OPERATING COSTS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/28/15 02/28/2015 SUPPLIES 31.38


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR NORTHERN SAFETY CO INC 901290470 02/12/2015 SAFETY EQUIPMENT - DOC 80.29


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR WAL-MART BUSINESS 021615 02/16/2015 SUPPLIES 68.84


          Total 55-50-640  OTHER OPERATING COSTS: 180.51


55-50-670  REPAIRS & MAINT- EQUIPMENT


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR PRECISION SMALL ENGINE CO  520154 02/17/2015 PARTS 195.07


          Total 55-50-670  REPAIRS & MAINT- EQUIPMENT: 195.07


55-60-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR A&M PERSONNEL SERVICES L 11201 03/06/2015 TEMP WORKER - 2/27-3/1/15 192.75


          Total 55-60-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 192.75


55-60-310  FOOD COST


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 022615 02/26/2015 FOOD 728.73


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR COCA COLA REFRESHMENTS 0215057810 02/19/2015 DRINKS 772.09


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR COCA COLA REFRESHMENTS 1443788759 01/13/2015 CREDIT 572.25-


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR FARMER BROTHERS COFFEE 61726627SO 02/11/2015 FOOD 298.51


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 140305C 02/25/2015 FOOD 379.68


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 141371C 03/02/2015 FOOD 597.98
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SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021915 02/19/2015 FOOD 260.50


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIB 237228 03/06/2015 BLOODY MARY MIX 43.70


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR US FOODS 4773376 03/02/2015 FOOD 797.95


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR US FOODS 4837959 03/05/2015 FOOD 438.73


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR US FOODS 7413844 02/26/2015 FOOD 643.94


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR WAL-MART BUSINESS 021615 02/16/2015 FOOD 513.33


          Total 55-60-310  FOOD COST: 4,902.89


55-60-315  BEER COSTS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIB 235907 02/25/2015 BEER 20.45


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIB 236234 02/27/2015 BEER 408.25


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIB 237229 03/06/2015 BEER 291.25


          Total 55-60-315  BEER COSTS: 719.95


55-60-350  BANK CHARGES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AMERICAN EXPRESS 2/15A 02/28/2015 CREDIT CARD CHARGES 60.44


          Total 55-60-350  BANK CHARGES: 60.44


55-60-420  DIRECT TV


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR DIRECTV 25180592939 02/19/2015 DIRECT TV 187.98


          Total 55-60-420  DIRECT TV: 187.98


55-60-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/28/15 02/28/2015 REPAIRS/MAINT .59


          Total 55-60-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: .59


55-60-440  RENTALS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700430585 02/04/2015 LINENS 93.83


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700432357 02/11/2015 LINENS 133.93


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700434231 02/18/2015 LINENS 60.92


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700436189 02/25/2015 LINENS 60.92


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 43852 02/09/2015 CREDIT 4.44-


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AUTO CHLOR 155200202182 02/11/2015 DISHWASHER 220.69


          Total 55-60-440  RENTALS: 565.85


55-60-605  RESTAURANT SUPPLIES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 022615 02/26/2015 SUPPLIES 350.47


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021915 02/19/2015 SUPPLIES 85.27


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR STANDARD RESTAURANT EQU 1693480 02/20/2015 SUPPLIES 280.48


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR US FOODS 4773375 03/02/2015 SUPPLIES 247.16


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR US FOODS 4837960 03/05/2015 SUPPLIES 240.08


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR WAL-MART BUSINESS 021615 02/16/2015 SUPPLIES 37.80


          Total 55-60-605  RESTAURANT SUPPLIES: 1,241.26


55-60-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021915 02/19/2015 REGISTER PAPER 129.95


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR WAL-MART BUSINESS 021615 02/16/2015 SUPPLIES 100.61


          Total 55-60-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES: 230.56
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          Total SAN PEDRO GOLF COURSE: 34,454.24


AIRPORT


56-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


AIRPORT EMPIRE SOUTHWEST, LLC EPWK0357621 01/23/2015 GENERATOR INSPECTION 241.00


          Total 56-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 241.00


56-40-410  UTILITIES


AIRPORT CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 021315 02/13/2015 UTILITIES 147.83


          Total 56-40-410  UTILITIES: 147.83


56-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


AIRPORT BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  114579 02/05/2015 EXTERMINATING 35.00


          Total 56-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 35.00


          Total AIRPORT: 423.83


FIREMEN'S PENSION FUND


70-40-660  PENSION PAYMENTS


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU ALBERT ESTAVILLO 88 03/15/2015 FIREMEN'S PENSION 200.00


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU ANICLETO D MALDONADO 030115A 03/01/2015 PENSION PAYMENT/REPLACE #43984 200.00


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU GEOFFREY MCGOFFIN 88 03/15/2015 FIREMEN'S  PENSION 200.00


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU HAMILTON, RICHARD 88 03/15/2015 FIREMEN'S PENSION 200.00


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU JAMES HANSEN JR. 88 03/15/2015 FIREMEN'S PENSION 200.00


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU JERRY FINK 98 03/15/2015 FIREMEN'S PENSION 200.00


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU JOE RODRIGUEZ 1 03/01/2015 FIREMEN'S PENSION 200.00


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU JOE ROTHERMICH 88 03/15/2015 FIREMEN'S PENSION 200.00


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU LARRY NAPIER 71 03/15/2015 FIREMEN'S PENSION 200.00


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU MAX JONES 88 03/15/2015 FIREMEN'S PENSION 200.00


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU RAY JOHNSON II 85 03/15/2015 FIREPENSION 200.00


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU THELANDER, JAMES 88 03/15/2015 FIREMEN'S PENSION 200.00


          Total 70-40-660  PENSION PAYMENTS: 2,400.00


          Total FIREMEN'S PENSION FUND: 2,400.00


          Grand Totals:  273,658.54


Report Criteria:


Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.


Only paid invoices included.





		Consent 1a - CC - Minutes - 2-23-15 Regular Meeting

		Consent 1a - Exhibit - 2-23-15 Regular Meeting Minutes

		Consent 1b - CC - P&Z Resignantion C Moncada

		Consent 1b - Exhibit 1 - Resignation C Moncada

		Consent 1c - CC - Processed Invoices 150323

		Consent 1c - Exhibit 1 - Check Register 03-01-15 thru 03-12-15

		Consent 1c - Exhibit 2 - Payment Approval Report 03-01-15 thru 03-12-15






                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:  
 
Mr. Jim Usevitch from Colby and Powell, PLC, Certified Public Accountants, will present the City’s audited 
financial statements to Council for review and will be available to answer Council’s questions. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 


 
To the City Council  
City of Benson, Arizona 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
City of Benson, Arizona, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in 
the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Benson, Arizona, as of 
June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash 
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 4 to 11 
and 42 to 45 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We 
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
February 13, 2015, on our consideration of the City of Benson, Arizona’s internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the City of Benson, Arizona’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance.  
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City of Benson, Arizona 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 


June 30, 2014 
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The management of the City of Benson is pleased to offer to the readers of the City’s financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2014. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
 The City’s total net position decreased $1.5 million to $30.7 million.  Net position from 


governmental activities decreased $.8 million to $4.8 million due principally to a 
decrease in unrestricted cash, resulting from our operating expenditures exceeding our 
revenues.  Net position from business-type activities decreased $0.6 million to $25.9 
million, due principally to the aging of our water, natural gas and waste water utility 
infrastructure  systems. 
 


 The City’s revenues from governmental activities decreased $0.2 million to $5.5 million 
principally due to decreased intergovernmental and sales tax revenues.  Revenues from 
business-type activities decreased $0.3 million to $3.9 million, principally due to a 
decrease in capital grants and contributions for street maintenance, golf course, and 
capital improvements to the City’s municipal airport.  
 


 Expenses from governmental activities increased $0.1 million to $6.3 million.  Expenses 
from business-type activities decreased $0.2 million to $4.6 million. 
 


 The City’s unrestricted net position decreased by $1.4 million to $(2.6) million, 
principally due to a decrease in cash and cash equivalents, the City has used unrestricted 
cash to meet the revenue shortfall to fund debt service 


 
 At June 30, 2014, the unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $2.2 million, or 


42% of the fund’s expenditures for the year. 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is intended to serve as an introduction to 
the City’s basic financial statements.  The City of Benson’s basic financial statements have three 
components:  1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes 
to the financial statements.  This report also contains other supplementary information in 
addition to the basic financial statements. 
 
Government-wide financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to 
a private-sector business. 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all the City’s assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net 
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving 
or deteriorating. 
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The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the 
most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving 
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses 
are reported in this statement for some items that will result in actual cash flow in future fiscal periods 
(e.g. uncollected taxes earned, accrued but unused vacation time). 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that 
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-
type activities).  Governmental activities include public safety, streets, parks, library and administration.  
Business-type activities include the natural gas, water and wastewater utilities. 
 
Fund financial statements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control 
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City uses fund 
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of the 
funds of the City can be segregated into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and a 
fiduciary fund. 
 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, the governmental fund financial 
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources and the balances of 
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  This information can be useful in evaluating 
a government’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental 
fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the General, Highway Users 
(HURF) and Capital Projects Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds.  Data from the other 
non-major governmental funds are combined into a single listing. 
 
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds.  Budgetary comparison 
statements and schedules have been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance with the 
budget.  The budgetary information can be found on pages 47-50 of this report. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 12-18 of this report. 
 
Proprietary (enterprise) funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail.  Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as 
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.  The City maintains six proprietary 
funds: Natural Gas, Water, Liquid Waste, Solid Waste, Golf Course and Airport.  The basic proprietary 
fund financial statements can be found on pages 19-26 of this report. 
 
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources the City holds for the benefit of parties outside the 
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the 
resources of these funds are not available to support the City’s own operations. The accounting used for 
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.  The fiduciary fund financial statements can 
be found on pages 27 and 28 of this report. 
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Notes to financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and the fund financial statements.  
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 29-45 of this report. 
 
Other information.  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City’s budgetary 
statements for the General, Highway Users (HURF) and Capital Projects Funds, and the progress 
in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees.  Required supplementary 
information can be found on pages 47-51 of this report.  
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.  The 
City’s assets exceeded liabilities by $30.6 million at June 30, 2014.  The largest portion of the 
City’s assets (91%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, utility 
infrastructure, streets, vehicles and equipment).  The City uses these capital assets to provide 
services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. 
 
The following table presents a summary of the City’s net position at the two most recent fiscal 
year ends - June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013.  


 
Net Position at June 30, 2014 and 2013 


Governmental Business-type Total Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Government Activities Activities Government


Cash and receivables 3,322,402$      (499,003)$        2,823,399$      4,065,280$      (448,117)$        3,617,163$      
Other assets 190,941           146,465           337,406           305,810           140,435           446,245           
Capital assets 6,700,613        26,814,768      33,515,381      7,012,030        27,333,706      34,345,736      


Total assets 10,213,956$    26,462,230$    36,676,186$    11,383,120$    27,026,024$    38,409,144$    


Current liabilities 940,835$         405,436$         1,346,271$      809,797$         516,583$         1,326,380$      
Non-current liabilities 4,473,267        195,379           4,668,646        4,768,426        22,566             4,790,992        


Total liabilities 5,414,102$      600,815$         6,014,917$      5,578,223$      539,149$         6,117,372$      


Net position:
Invested in capital assets


net of debt 6,700,613$      26,586,865$    33,287,478$    6,487,562$      27,333,706$    33,821,268$    
Restricted 22,873             22,873$           63,536             63,536$           
Unrestricted (1,923,632)       (725,450)          (2,649,082)       (746,185)          (846,831)          (1,593,016)       


Total net position 4,799,854$      25,861,415$    30,661,269$    5,804,913$      26,486,875$    32,291,788$    


Fiscal Year 2014 Fiscal Year 2013
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The City’s overall financial position decreased during the year as reflected in the decrease in net 
position to a total of $30.63 million.  The unrestricted net position of the combined governmental 
and business-type activities decreased by $1.0 million during the year to a deficit balance of 
$(2,649,082). This decrease is principally due to the City’s need to use cash reserves in order to 
service debt and pay for daily operations. .  In prior years, the focus of the City was to operate at 
a conservative level and build its unrestricted cash reserves. The City has relied on these cash 
reserves the past few years to sustain operations.  
 
The majority of the City’s net position is invested in capital assets.   Restrictions are legal 
obligations on how the assets may be expended.  The City has $22,873 of Anti-Racketeering 
Influenced and Corrupt Organization (RICO) funds held by Cochise County that are restricted 
for public safety use. RICO monies are seized currency and proceeds from the sale of seized 
assets forfeited in the prosecution of racketeering crimes. RICO monies are restricted for use by 
Arizona Revised Statutes.  
 
Changes in net position.  The City’s total revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, were 
$9.4 million.  The total cost of all programs and services was $10.9 million.  The following table 
presents a summary of the changes in net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014, and 
June 30, 2013.   
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Governmental and Business-type Activities 


For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 and 2013 
 


Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Activities Activities


Revenue
Program Revenue
Charges for services & misc. 148,246$         3,867,844$       178,105$        3,632,332$       
Grants and contributions 737,293           25,000              955,249          561,843            


Total Program Revenue 885,539           3,892,844         1,133,354       4,194,175         
General Revenue
Taxes 3,349,601        3,372,779       
Intergovernmental 1,235,032        1,161,765       
Interest 4,417               8,420              
Other 33,492             24,587            


Total general revenue 4,622,542        -                    4,567,551       -                   


Total revenue 5,508,081        3,892,844         5,700,905       4,194,175         
Expenses


General government 1,895,539        1,761,807       
Culture,recreation & welfare 1,195,575        1,181,535       
Public safety 2,373,541        2,368,001       
Highways and streets 575,971           566,092          
Public Works 80,964             102,894          
Interest on long-term debt 194,017           199,662          
Gas, water, sewer and garbage 3,068,349         3,247,699         
Golf Course 1,154,063         1,237,055         
Airport 334,915            315,983            


Total expenses 6,315,607        4,557,327         6,179,991       4,800,737         


Decrease in net position (807,526)         (664,483)           (479,086)         (606,562)          
Beginning net position 5,646,403        26,486,875       6,447,973       26,929,463       


Transfers (39,023)           39,023              (163,974)         163,974            


Ending net position 4,799,854$      25,861,415$     5,804,913$     26,486,875$     


Fiscal Year 2014 Fiscal Year 2013


 
  
 
Government activities.  The City’s governmental functions include general government, culture 
and recreation, welfare, highways and streets, public safety, and public works.  Each function’s 
net cost, (total cost less revenues generated by the activities) is presented below. This table 
reflects the extent to which the City’s general taxes support each of the Governmental functions. 
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Governmental Activities June 30, 2014 and 2013 


Total Cost Net Cost Total Cost Net Cost
of Services of Services of Services of Services


General Government 1,895,539$    1,785,661$      1,761,807$      1,621,301$      
Culture and recreation 978,721         786,080           940,405           887,340           
Welfare 216,854         87,424             241,130           68,746             
Highways and Streets 575,971         240,242           566,092           35,555             
Public Safety 2,373,541      2,257,508        2,368,001        2,134,204        
Public Works 80,964           79,136             102,894           99,829             
Interest on long-term debt 194,017         194,017           199,662           199,662           


Total 6,315,607$    5,430,068$      6,179,991$      5,046,637$      


Fiscal Year 2014 Fiscal Year 2013


 
 
 
Business-type activities.  The cost of providing all business-type activities for fiscal 2013-2014  
was $4.6 million, down from $4.8 million last year.  Minor decreases were experienced in utility 
costs, golf course operations, and airport operations.  
 
The City’s business-type activities include gas, water, wastewater, sanitation, golf course and 
airport. The activities’ net cost (total cost less revenues generated by the activities) is presented 
below. The net cost reflects the extent to which general business-type revenues support each of 
the business type programs. 
 


Business-type Activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 
 


Total Cost Net Cost Total Cost Net Cost
of Services of Services of Services of Services


Gas 869,454$       41,422$           937,118$         69,305$           
Water 782,214         90,101             777,152           54,605             
Liquid waste 831,803         (73,945)            946,421           286,233           
Solid waste 584,878         (49,852)            587,008           (20,094)            
Airport 334,915         319,011           315,983           46,795             
Golf Course 1,154,063      337,746           1,237,055        169,718           


Total 4,557,327$    664,483$         4,800,737$      606,562$         


Fiscal Year 2013Fiscal Year 2014
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 
Capital Assets 
As of June 30, 2014 the City had invested $33.5 million in capital assets (net of accumulated 
depreciation) as reflected in the following table. Of the total, $.65 million represents current year 
additions. 
 
The following table presents the changes in capital assets for the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2014, and June 30, 2013. 
 


Change in Capital Assets for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 
 


Governmental Business Type Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total


Beginning Balance 7,012,030$         27,333,706$        34,345,736$     6,701,340$         27,637,037$        34,338,377$    
Additions 288,940              354,818               643,758 973,672              593,005               1,566,677
Deductions -                     -                       -                   -                     -                       -                  
Depreciation (600,357)            (873,756)              (1,474,113) (662,982)            (896,336)              (1,559,318)


Ending Balance 6,700,613$         26,814,768$        33,515,381$     7,012,030$         27,333,706$        34,345,736$    


Fiscal Year 2013Fiscal Year 2014


 
 


Additional information of the City of Benson’s capital assets can be found in the notes to the 
financial statements. 
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Debt Administration 
As of June 30, 2014, the City had $5.2 million in total debt outstanding, compared to $5.3 
million as of June 30, 2013.  


 
Outstanding Debt at June 30, 2014 and 2013 


 
2014 2013


Governmental:
Compensated absences 176,178$         169,845$         
Capital lease 67,385             132,029           
Bond Payable 4,610,000        4,825,000        
Bond discount (36,053)            (38,456)            
Notes payable 98,124             109,132           


Total governmental 4,915,634        5,197,550        
Business-type:


Compensated absences 83,364             92,571             
Lease payable 227,903           -                   


Total business-type 311,267           92,571             


Total 5,226,901$      5,290,121$       
 
Additional information on the City of Benson’s long-term debt can be found in the notes to the 
financial statements. 
  
Economic Factors 
 
The City Council and Staff have continued to operate conservatively by eliminating all but 
essential capital spending and tightening the controls over all spending categories. During the 
year, the City has been able to cut $2.1 million in budgeted expenses.  Although the City had to 
dip into its cash reserves again this fiscal year, the City has still managed to avoid taking 
draconian measures such as layoffs and furloughs in order to keep its budget balanced. 
 
The City relies heavily on state shared revenues and local sales tax revenues to support General 
Fund activities.  During the fiscal year 2013-2014, 81% of the general fund revenues were 
derived from state shared revenues and local sales tax.  Given the current and projected 
economic trends and general economic uncertainties, the City anticipates slight revenue growth 
during the 2014-2015 fiscal year.  The fiscal 2014-2015 budget anticipates an approximate 10% 
increase in state shared revenues and local sales tax collections.    
 
Financial Contact 
The City’s financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, investors, 
customers and creditors) with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the 
City’s accountability for the resources it receives.  If you have questions about the report or need 
additional financial information, please contact the City’s Finance Director at 120 W. Sixth St., 
Benson, AZ 85602. 
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Primary Government
Governmental Business-type


Activities Activities Total
ASSETS


Cash and cash equivalents 2,242,626$    -$               2,242,626$    
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 22,873           55,842           78,715           
Accounts receivable - net -                 125,974         125,974         
Taxes receivable 244,242         -                 244,242         
Due from other governments 131,842         -                 131,842         
Prepaid expenses 190,941         139,802         330,743         
Inventory -                 6,663             6,663             
Due from (to) other funds 680,819         (680,819)        -                 
Capital assets, not being depreciated 705,308         7,744,582      8,449,890      
Capital assets, being depreciated, net 5,995,305      19,070,186    25,065,491    


Total assets 10,213,956    26,462,230    36,676,186    


LIABILITIES


Accounts payable 93,605           228,819         322,424         
Accrued expenses 163,219         -                 163,219         
Deferred revenue -                 4,887             4,887             
Settlement liability 150,000         -                 150,000         
Interest payable 91,644           -                 91,644           
Refundable deposits -                 55,842           55,842           
Noncurrent liabilities


Due within 1 year 442,367         115,888         558,255         
Due in more than 1 year 4,473,267      195,379         4,668,646      


Total liabilities 5,414,102      600,815         6,014,917      


NET POSITION


Net investment in capital assets 6,700,613      26,586,865    33,287,478    
Restricted for:


Public safety 22,873           -                 22,873           
Unrestricted (deficit) (1,923,632)     (725,450)        (2,649,082)     


Total net position 4,799,854$    25,861,415$  30,661,269$  
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Charges Operating
for Grants and


Expenses Services Contributions


Primary government:
Governmental activities


General government 1,895,539$   92,413$         17,465$          
Public safety 2,373,541     26,136           75,618            
Highways and streets 575,971        -                 335,729          
Public works 80,964          1,714             114                 
Culture and recreation 978,721        21,343           6,098              
Welfare 216,854        6,640             122,790          
Interest on long-term debt 194,017        -                 -                  


Total governmental activities 6,315,607     148,246         557,814          


Business-type activities
Gas 869,454        828,032         -                  
Water 782,214        692,113         -                  
Liquid waste 831,803        905,748         -                  
Solid waste 584,878        634,730         -                  
Golf course 1,154,063     791,317         25,000            
Municipal Airport 334,915        15,904           -                  


Total business-type activities 4,557,327     3,867,844      25,000            


Total primary government 10,872,934$ 4,016,090$    582,814$        


General revenue:
Taxes:


Sales Tax
Construction sales tax
Property tax
Franchise tax
Bed tax


State sales tax revenue sharing
Auto lieu tax revenue sharing
State revenue sharing
Interest income
Miscellaneous


Transfers
Total general revenue and transfers


Change in net position


Net position, July 1, 2013, as restated


Net position, June 30, 2014


Functions / Programs


Program Revenue 
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Capital
Grants and Governmental Business-type


Contributions Activities Activities Total


-$               (1,785,661)$   -$               (1,785,661)$   
14,279           (2,257,508)     -                 (2,257,508)     


-                 (240,242)        -                 (240,242)        
-                 (79,136)          -                 (79,136)          


165,200         (786,080)        -                 (786,080)        
-                 (87,424)          -                 (87,424)          
-                 (194,017)        -                 (194,017)        


179,479         (5,430,068)     -                 (5,430,068)     


-                 -                 (41,422)          (41,422)          
-                 -                 (90,101)          (90,101)          
-                 -                 73,945           73,945           
-                 -                 49,852           49,852           
-                 -                 (337,746)        (337,746)        
-                 -                 (319,011)        (319,011)        
-                 -                 (664,483)        (664,483)        


179,479$       (5,430,068)     (664,483)        (6,094,551)     


2,722,940 -                 2,722,940      
178,656 -                 178,656         
209,633 -                 209,633         
160,636 -                 160,636         


77,736 -                 77,736           
444,353 -                 444,353         
221,662 -                 221,662         
569,017 -                 569,017         


4,417 -                 4,417             
33,492 -                 33,492           


(39,023)          39,023           -                 
4,583,519      39,023           4,622,542      


(846,549)        (625,460)        (1,472,009)     


5,646,403      26,486,875    32,133,278    


4,799,854$    25,861,415$  30,661,269$  


Primary Government
Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
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Capital Other Total
General HURF/LTAF Projects Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds


ASSETS


Cash and cash equivalents 2,242,626$       -$                  -$                  -$                  2,242,626$       
Cash and cash equivalents-restricted 22,873 -                    -                    -                    22,873              
Taxes receivable 244,242 -                    -                    -                    244,242            
Due from other governments 78,235 31,804 -                    21,803              131,842            
Prepaid expenses 121,038 69,903 -                    -                    190,941            
Due from other funds 1,811,517         -                    -                    -                    1,811,517         


Total assets 4,520,531$       101,707$          -$                  21,803$            4,644,041$       


LIABILITIES


Accounts payable 59,005$            14,882$            19,562$            156$                 93,605$            
Accrued expenses 163,219 -                    -                    -                    163,219            
Settlement liability 150,000 -                    -                    -                    150,000            
Due to other funds -                    653,481 288,691 188,526 1,130,698         


Total liabilities 372,224            668,363            308,253            188,682            1,537,522         


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES


Unavailable revenue 29,306 -                    -                    -                    29,306              


FUND BALANCES


Nonspendable 1,932,555         69,903              -                    -                    2,002,458         
Restricted for:


Public safety 22,873              -                    -                    -                    22,873              
Unassigned 2,163,573         (636,559)           (308,253)           (166,879)           1,051,882         


Total fund balances 4,119,001         (566,656)           (308,253)           (166,879)           3,077,213         


Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and fund balances 4,520,531$       101,707$          -$                  21,803$            4,644,041$       DRAFT
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Fund balances--total governmental funds 3,077,213$  


Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
Statement of Net Assets are different because:


Capital assets used in governmental activities
are not financial resources and therefore, are
not reported in the funds. 6,700,613    


Governmental funds report the effect of bond 
issuance costs when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activities 148,603      


Some receivables are not available to pay for 
current-period expenditures and therefore, 
are deferred in the funds. 29,306        


Some liabilities, including bonds payable, are
not due and payable in the current period
and therefore, are not reported in the funds (5,007,278)   


Net position of governmental activities 4,948,457$  
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Capital Other Total
General HURF/LTAF Projects Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund


Revenue
Taxes 3,176,200$       -$                  178,656$          -$                  3,354,856$       
Intergovernmental 1,309,134         335,729            -                    298,272            1,943,135         
Other revenue 67,833              -                    -                    -                    67,833              
Charges for services 53,211              -                    -                    6,640                59,851              
Licenses and permits 54,848              -                    -                    -                    54,848              
Fines and forfeitures 27,746              -                    -                    -                    27,746              
Interest 4,417                -                    -                    -                    4,417                
Impact fees -                    -                    650                   -                    650                   


Total revenue 4,693,389         335,729            179,306            304,912            5,513,336         
 


Expenditures  
Current  


Public safety 2,229,771         -                    -                    600                   2,230,371         
General government 1,564,047         -                    250,000            2,979                1,817,026         
Culture and recreation 836,426            -                    -                    -                    836,426            
Highways and streets -                    360,782            20,561              -                    381,343            
Transit -                    -                    -                    174,199            174,199            
Public works 75,535              -                    -                    -                    75,535              


Debt service
Principal 290,652            -                    -                    -                    290,652            
Interest 193,764            -                    -                    -                    193,764            


Capital outlay 50,681              -                    5,627                232,632            288,940            
Total expenditures 5,240,876         360,782            276,188            410,410            6,288,256         


 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue  


over expenditures (547,487)           (25,053)             (96,882)             (105,498)           (774,920)           
 


Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in (out) (121,612)           -                    (39,023)             121,612            (39,023)             


Net change in fund balance (669,099)           (25,053)             (135,905)           16,114              (813,943)           


Fund balance, July 1, 2013 4,788,100         (541,603)           (172,348)           (182,993)           3,891,156         


Fund balance, June 30, 2014 4,119,001$       (566,656)$         (308,253)$         (166,879)$         3,077,213$       DRAFT
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Net change in fund balances--total governmental funds (813,943)$   


Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Activities are different because:


Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of 
those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives and reported as depreciation expense.


Capital outlay 288,940      
Depreciation expense (600,357)     


(311,417)     


Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide 
current financial resources are not reported as revenues 
in the funds. (5,255)         


Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to
governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term 
liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. 
Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets.


Principal repaid 290,652      
290,652      


Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities
do not require the use of current financial resources
and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. (16,493)       


Change in net position of governmental activities (856,456)$   
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Gas Water Liquid
Fund Fund Waste Fund


ASSETS
Current assets


Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 40,258$        15,584$        -$              
Accounts receivable - net 10,092          34,495          28,349          
Prepaid expenses -                83,883 55,919
Inventory -                -                -                
Due from other funds 1,462,351     -                -                


Total current assets 1,512,701     133,962        84,268          


Noncurrent assets
Capital assets, net of accumulated 


depreciation, where applicable:
Land -                55,771          354,792        
Utilit ies systems, net 522,825        2,418,688     734,822        
Buildings, net -                -                5,427,019     
Equipment, net -                8,745            58,836          
Capital assets, net 522,825        2,483,204     6,575,469     


Total noncurrent assets 522,825        2,483,204     6,575,469     


Total assets 2,035,526     2,617,166     6,659,737     


LIABILITIES
Current liabilities


Accounts payable 40,394          16,355          12,462          
Deferred revenue -                -                -                
Refundable deposits 40,258          15,584          -                
Due to other funds -                533,957        572,138        
Compensated absences, current 9,888            18,886          30,110          
Notes payable, current -                -                -                


Total current liabilities 90,540          584,782        614,710        


Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences 2,474            4,721            7,527            
Lease payable -                -                -                


Total noncurrent liabilities 2,474            4,721            7,527            


Total liabilities 93,014          589,503        622,237        


Net position
Net investment in capital assets 522,825        2,483,204     6,575,469     
Unrestricted (deficit) 1,419,687     (455,541)       (537,969)       


Total net position 1,942,512$   2,027,663$   6,037,500$   


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds
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Solid Golf Municipal
Waste Fund Course Fund Airport Fund Total


-$              -$              -$              55,842          
22,275          30,763          -                125,974        


-                -                -                139,802        
-                6,663 -                6,663            


210,747        -                -                1,673,098     
233,022        37,426          -                2,001,379     


82,500          7,091,915     159,604        7,744,582     
-                369,601        8,355,670     12,401,606   
-                808,073        -                6,235,092     
-                365,907        -                433,488        


82,500          8,635,496     8,515,274     26,814,768   


82,500          8,635,496     8,515,274     26,814,768   


315,522        8,672,922     8,515,274     28,816,147   


44,447          114,193        968               228,819        
-                4,887            -                4,887            
-                -                -                55,842          
-                405,963        841,859        2,353,917     
-                7,806            -                66,690          
-                49,198          -                49,198          


44,447          582,047        842,827        2,759,353     


-                1,952            -                16,674          
-                178,705        -                178,705        


-                180,657        -                195,379        


44,447          762,704        842,827        2,954,732     


82,500          8,407,593     8,515,274     26,586,865   
188,575        (497,375)       (842,827)       (725,450)       


271,075$      7,910,218$   7,672,447$   25,861,415   


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds
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Gas Water Liquid
Fund Fund Waste Fund


O perating revenue
Charges for services, net of bad debt 828,032$      692,113$      905,748$      
Sales -                -                -                


Total operating revenue 828,032        692,113        905,748        


O perating expenses
Personnel 317,776        373,683        306,498        
Insurance 41,018          8,204            24,611          
Professional services 9,757            6,071            21,900          
Utilit ies 4,664            130,528        84,311          
Repairs and maintenance 11,775          18,840          44,858          
Materials and supplies 24,685          58,188          45,994          
Cost of sales 407,314        -                -                
Other 13,755          18,661          39,307          
Depreciation 38,710          168,039        264,324        


Total operating expenses 869,454        782,214        831,803        


O perating income (loss) (41,422)         (90,101)         73,945          


Nonoperating revenue (expenses)
Operating contribution -                -                -                
Interest expense -                -                -                


Total nonoperating 
revenue (expenses) -                -                -                


Income (loss) before capital
grants and transfers (41,422)         (90,101)         73,945          


T ransfers -                39,023 -                


Increase (decrease) 
in net position (41,422)         (51,078)         73,945          


Total net position, July 1, 2013 1,983,934     2,078,741     5,963,555     


Total net position, June 30, 2014 1,942,512$   2,027,663$   6,037,500$   


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds
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Solid Golf Municipal
Waste Fund Course Fund Airport Fund Total


634,730$      469,131$      15,904$        3,545,658$   
-                322,186 -                322,186        


634,730        791,317        15,904          3,867,844     


22,332          500,415        -                1,520,704     
-                6,563            18,219          98,615          


558,882        29,030          20,971          646,611        
-                84,245          13,832          317,580        
-                61,278          23,044          159,795        
-                122,466        26                 251,359        
-                153,668        -                560,982        


3,664            45,878          -                121,265        
-                143,860        258,823        873,756        


584,878        1,147,403     334,915        4,550,667     


49,852          (356,086)       (319,011)       (682,823)       


-                25,000          -                25,000          
-                (6,660)           -                (6,660)           


-                18,340          -                18,340          


49,852          (337,746)       (319,011)       (664,483)       


-                -                -                39,023          


49,852          (337,746)       (319,011)       (625,460)       


221,223        8,247,964     7,991,458     26,486,875   


271,075$      7,910,218$   7,672,447$   25,861,415$ 


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds
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Gas Water Liquid
Fund Fund Waste Fund


Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers 836,498$      714,908$      910,397$      
Payments to suppliers and providers


of goods and services (609,668)       (392,464)       (363,849)       
Payments to employees (233,936)       (276,770)       (228,833)       


Net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities (7,106)           45,674          317,715        


Cash flows from noncapital
financing activities:


Received from other funds 57,928          -                -                
Paid to other funds -                (36,305)         (317,715)       
T ransfers -                39,023          -                
Operating contribution received -                -                -                


Net cash provided (used) by 
noncapital financing activities 57,928          2,718            (317,715)       


Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:


Principal paid on long-term debt -                -                -                
Purchase of capital assets (47,487)         (44,018)         -                
Interest paid -                -                -                


Net cash provided (used) by 
capital and related financing
activities (47,487)         (44,018)         -                


Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents 3,335            4,374            -                


Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2013 36,923          11,210          -                


Cash and cash equivalents,
June 30, 2014 40,258$        15,584$        -$              


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds
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Solid Golf Municipal
Waste Fund Course Fund Airport Fund Total


638,791$      788,800$      15,904$        3,905,298$   


(566,642)       (707,927)       (76,125)         (2,716,675)    
(16,313)         (385,275)       -                (1,141,127)    


55,836          (304,402)       (60,221)         47,496          


-                321,472        60,221          439,621        
(55,836)         -                -                (409,856)       


-                -                -                39,023          
-                25,000          -                25,000          


(55,836)         346,472        60,221          93,788          


-                (31,739)         -                (31,739)         
-                (3,671)           -                (95,176)         
-                (6,660)           -                (6,660)           


-                (42,070)         -                (133,575)       


-                -                -                7,709            


-                -                -                48,133          


-$              -$              -$              55,842$        


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds
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Gas Water Liquid
Fund Fund Waste Fund


Reconciliation of operating income 
(loss) to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities:


Operating income (loss) (41,422)$       (90,101)$       73,945$        
Adjustments to reconcile operating


income (loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:


Depreciation 38,710          168,039        264,324        
(Increase) decrease in:


Accounts receivable 5,131            18,421          4,649            
Prepaid expenses -                (3,618)           (2,412)           


Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (6,642)           (51,018)         (24,706)         
Deferred revenue -                -                -                
Refundable deposits 3,335            4,374            -                
Compensated absences payable (6,218)           (423)              1,915            


Net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities (7,106)$         45,674$        317,715$      


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds


 
 


NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL FINANCING, AND NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The Golf Course Fund acquired $259,642 of equipment under the terms of a capital lease agreement for the year ending June 30, 2014.
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Solid Golf Municipal
Waste Fund Course Fund Airport Fund Total


49,852$        (356,086)$     (319,011)$     (682,823)$     


-                143,860        258,823        873,756        


4,061            (3,432)           -                28,830          
-                -                -                (6,030)           


1,923            (85,078)         (33)                (165,554)       
-                915               -                915               
-                -                -                7,709            
-                (4,581)           -                (9,307)           


55,836$        (304,402)$     (60,221)$       47,496$        


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds
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Trust
Fund


ASSETS


Cash and cash equivalents 592,600$    
Accounts receivable 517


Total assets 593,117      


NET POSITION


Held in trust for investment trust participants 593,117$    
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Trust
Fund


Additions:
Contributions 9,900$       
Other income 7,139         
Interest and dividends 4,773


Total additions 21,812       


Deductions:
Pension payments 26,400


Total deductions 26,400       


Change in net position (4,588)        


Net position, July 1, 2013 597,705


Net position, June 30, 2014 593,117$    
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accompanying financial statements of the City of Benson, Arizona (City) have been prepared in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles applicable to governmental units 
adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). A summary of the City’s more 
significant accounting policies follows. 
 
A. Reporting Entity 
 
The City is a general purpose local government that is governed by a separately elected City 
Council. The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the City (the primary 
government) and its component units. 
 
Component units are legally separate entities for which the City is considered to be financially 
accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of 
the City’s operations. Therefore, data from these units is combined with data of the primary 
government. Discretely presented component units, on the other hand, are reported in a separate 
column in the combined financial statements to emphasize they are legally separate from the City. 
The discretely presented component unit discussed below has a June 30 year-end. 
 


The City of Benson Municipal Property Corporation is a nonprofit corporation 
incorporated under the laws of the State of Arizona. The principal objective of the 
Corporation is to assist the City of Benson, Arizona, in acquiring, constructing, financing, 
operating, improving or modifying public facilities for the benefit of all City of Benson, 
Arizona, residents. The Corporation’s board of directors consists of seven members.  For the 
year ending June 30, 2014, there was no activity. 


 
B. Basis of Presentation 
 
The basic financial statements include both government-wide statements and fund financial 
statements. The government-wide statements focus on the City as a whole, while the fund financial 
statements focus on major funds. Each presentation provides valuable information that can be 
analyzed and compared between years and between governments to enhance the usefulness of the 
information. 
 
Government-wide statements—provide information about the primary government (the City) and its 
component unit. The statements include a statement of net position and a statement of activities. 
These statements report the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary 
activities. They also distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City 
and between the City and its discretely presented component units. Governmental activities 
generally are financed through taxes and intergovernmental revenues. Business-type activities are 
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  
 
A statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
each function of the City’s governmental activities and segment of its business-type activities. 
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, 
are clearly identifiable to a particular function. The City does not allocate indirect expenses to 
programs or functions. Program revenues include: 
 


• charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 
• operating grants and contributions, and 
• capital grants and contributions. 


 
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including internally dedicated resources and 
all taxes, are reported as general revenues. 
 
Generally, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements to minimize the double counting of internal activities. However, charges for interfund 
services provided and used are not eliminated if the prices approximate their external exchange 
values. 
 
Fund financial statements—provide information about the City’s funds. Separate statements are 
presented for the governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary fund categories. The emphasis of fund 
financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate 
column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor 
funds. Fiduciary funds are aggregated and reported by fund type. 
 
Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from transactions 
associated with the fund’s principal activity in which each party receives and gives up essentially 
equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from 
transactions in which the parties do not exchange equal values. Revenues generated by ancillary 
activities are also reported as nonoperating revenues. 
 
The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
 
The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the 
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
The HURF/LTAF Fund accounts for specific revenue received from the State of Arizona Highway 
User Revenue Fund and from State of Arizona Local Transportation Assistance Fund which are 
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  
 
The Capital Projects Fund accounts for resources to be used for acquiring or constructing major 
capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds. 
 
The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 
 
The Gas, Water, Liquid Waste, Solid Waste, Golf Course, and Municipal Airport account for 
operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, in 
which the intent of the City Council is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing 
goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily 
through user charges; or for which the City Council has decided that periodic determination of 
revenue earned, expenses incurred, or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public 
policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. 
 
The City reports the following fund types: 
 
The Trust Fund accounts for pension funds for various police officers and firefighters.  The City 
acts as trustee for such funds and does not have title to the assets or liabilities accounted for in this 
fund. 
 
C. Basis of Accounting 
 
The government-wide, proprietary fund, and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented using 
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of 
when the related cash flows take place. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for 
which they are levied. Grants and donations are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements the provider imposed have been met. 
 
Governmental funds in the fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, 
revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The City considers all revenues reported in 
the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within 60 days after year-end. 
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and 
interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, compensated absences, and landfill 
closure and post closure care costs, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they are due 
and payable. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 
Issuances of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital lease agreements are reported as 
other financing sources. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  
 
D. Cash and Investments 
 
For purposes of its statement of cash flows, the City considers only those highly liquid investments 
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 
 
Nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts are stated at cost.  Money market 
investments and participating interest-earning investment contracts with a remaining maturity of 
one year or less at time of purchase are stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated at 
fair value.  
 
E. Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 


 
Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable in the proprietary funds are estimated by the City. 
 
F. Property Tax Calendar 
 
Property taxes are levied on or before the third Monday in August and are payable in two equal 
installments. The first installment is due on the first day of October and becomes delinquent after 
the first business day of November. The second installment is due on the first day of March of the 
next year and becomes delinquent after the first business day of May. 
 
A lien assessed against real property assessed attaches on the first day of January preceding 
assessment and levy thereof. 
 
Property taxes levied on residential property for current operations and maintenance expenses are 
limited to a percentage of the primary full cash value of such property. In addition, taxes levied for 
current operations and maintenance expenses on all types of property are limited to a maximum 
percentage increase over the prior year’s levy adjusted for new construction and annexations. 
Property taxes levied to pay principle and interest on bonded indebtedness are unlimited. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  
 
G.  Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are reported at actual cost. Donated assets are reported at estimated fair value at the 
time received.  
 
Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values above which asset acquisitions are added to the capital 
asset accounts), depreciation methods, and estimated useful lives of capital assets reported in the 
government-wide statements and proprietary funds are as follows: 
 


Capitalization Depreciation Estimated
Threshold Method Useful Life


Land 5,000$         N/A N/A
Construction in progress 5,000           N/A N/A
Buildings 5,000           Straight-line 30
Infrastructure 5,000           Straight-line 25-40
Equipment 5,000           Straight-line 3-20  


 
H. Investment Income 
 
Investment income is composed of interest, dividends, and net changes in the fair value of 
applicable investments. 
 
I. Compensated Absences 
 
Compensated absences consist of vacation leave earned by employees based on services already 
rendered. 
 
Employees may accumulate vacation hours equal to 1.5 times their annual vacation hours earned.  
Accordingly, vacation benefits are accrued as a liability in the financial statements. 
 
Unused sick leave hours in excess of 960 accumulated at May 1 each year are paid to each eligible 
employee at 25% of the employee’s normal hourly rate of pay. 
 
J.  Fund Balance Reporting 
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54 requires fund balances 
to be properly reported within one of the fund balance categories listed below: 
 


1. Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either 
not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact such as 
fund balance associated with inventories, prepaids, long-term loans and notes receivable 
(unless the proceeds are restricted, committed, or assigned), 


2. Restricted fund balance includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes 
stipulated by constitution provisions or enabling legislation, or external resource providers, 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  
 


3. Committed fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes 
determined by a formal action of the City’s city council, 


4. Assigned fund balances are intended to be used by the City for specific purposes but do not 
meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed, and 


5. Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the City’s governmental funds and 
includes all spendable amounts not contained in other classifications. 


 
The City’s policy for committed fund balances is through formal City resolutions passed through 
the elected city council.  The process of rescinding a committed fund balance requires the same 
process. 
 
The City’s policy for assigned fund balances is through motions passed by the elected city council.  
Assigned fund balances do not require a formal resolution. 
 
When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted (committed, 
assigned, or unassigned) amounts are available, the City’s policy is to apply the expenditure first to 
restricted, and then to unrestricted in the following order of committed, assigned, and then 
unassigned.  
 
J. Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Principles 
 
In March 2012, the GASB issued Statement 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities.  
GASB 65 establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred 
outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported 
as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain 
items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities.  This statement is effective for periods 
beginning after December 15, 2012. 
 
In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions—
an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27.  The primary objective of this Statement is to improve 
accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions.  It also improves 
information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support for 
pensions that is provided by other entities.  This Statement results from a comprehensive review of 
the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with 
regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and 
interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency.  The provisions of this Statement are 
effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2014.  Upon implementation, 
it is anticipated that this Statement will cause a restatement of beginning net position of the 
Governmental Activities, Business-type Activities, and the proprietary funds. 
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NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) authorize the City to invest public monies in the State 
Treasurer’s investment pool; U.S. Treasury obligations; specified state and local government bonds; 
and interest-earning investments such as savings accounts, certificates of deposit, and repurchase 
agreements in eligible depositories. The statutes require collateral for demand deposits, certificates 
of deposit, and repurchase agreements at 101 percent of all deposits not covered by federal 
depository insurance. 
 
Deposits – At June 30, 2014, the carrying amount of the City’s total nonpooled cash in bank was 
$2,111,678 and the bank balance was $2,160,533. Of the bank balance, $1,875,358, was covered by 
federal depository insurance and $285,175 backed by the U.S. government. 
 
Investments – At June 30, 2014, the investments consisted of the following: 
 


Reported Fair
Rating Amount Value


Investment in State Treasurer's investment pool
Primary Government Unrated 113,065$ 113,065$ 


Investment in State Treasurer's investment pool
Fiduciary Funds Unrated 67,217$   67,217$   


 
 
The State Board of Investment provides oversight for the State Treasurer’s pools, and the Local 
Government Investment Pool Advisory Committee provides consultation and advice to the 
Treasurer. The fair value of a participant’s position in the pool approximates the value of that 
participant’s pool shares. Those shares are not identified with specific investments and are not 
subject to custodial credit risk. All other investments were insured or registered in the City’s name, 
or were held by the City or its agent in the City’s name. 
 
Restricted cash –$55,842 is restricted for refundable customer deposits in the proprietary funds and 
$22,873 of RICO funds is restricted for public safety. 
 
NOTE 3 – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 
 
The following table summarizes that City’s receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible, for the 
proprietary funds as of June 30, 2014: 
 


Gas Water Liquid Solid Golf
Fund Fund Waste Fund Waste Fund Course Fund Total


Accounts recievable 20,888$        40,467$        30,416$        26,410$        30,763$        148,944$      
Less Allowance (10,796)         (5,972)           (2,067)           (4,135)           -                (22,970)         


Accounts recivable - ne 10,092$        34,495$        28,349$        22,275$        30,763$        125,974$       
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NOTE 4 – DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 
 
Amounts due from other governments at June 30, 2014, included $9,089 in county-shared revenue 
from auto lieu taxes, $37,728 in state-shared revenue from sales taxes, $31,804 in state-shared 
revenue from highway user revenue fund (HURF) taxes, $15,635 in federal-shared revenue from 
Homeland Security, $19,668 in revenue from various governmental agencies, and $17,918 in state-
shared revenue from Arizona Department of Transportation. 
 
 
NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014, was as follows: 
 


Balance Balance
July 1, 2013 Increases Decreases June 30, 2014


Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:


Land 705,308$      -                -               705,308$       
Total capital assets not
   being depreciated 705,308        -                -               705,308         


Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 3,196,991     -                -               3,196,991      
Equipment/Recreation 4,877,880     288,940        -               5,166,820      
Infrastructure 4,769,064     -                -               4,769,064      


Total 12,843,935   288,940        -               13,132,875    


Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (1,817,802)    (73,135)         -               (1,890,937)     
Equipment/Recreation (2,719,615)    (335,913)       -               (3,055,528)     
Infrastructure (1,999,796)    (191,309)       -               (2,191,105)     


Total (6,537,213)    (600,357)       -               (7,137,570)     


Total capital assets being depreciated, net 6,306,722     (311,417)       -               5,995,305      


Governmental activities capital assets, net 7,012,030$   (311,417)$     -$             6,700,613$    
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NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS – Continued  
 


Balance Balance
July 1, 2013 Increases Decreases June 30, 2014


Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:


Land 7,744,582$   -$              -$             7,744,582$    
Total capital assets not
   being depreciated 7,744,582     -                -               7,744,582      


Capital assets being depreciated:
Utility systems 18,066,826   91,506          -               18,158,332    
Buildings 9,894,642     -                -               9,894,642      
Equipment 1,048,841     263,312        (45,794)        1,266,359      


Total 29,010,309   354,818        (45,794)        29,319,333    


Less accumulated depreciation for:
Utility systems (5,220,385)    (536,342)       -               (5,756,727)     
Buildings (3,405,672)    (253,878)       -               (3,659,550)     
Equipment (795,128)       (83,536)         45,794          (832,870)        


Total (9,421,185)    (873,756)       45,794          (10,249,147)   


Total capital assets being depreciated, net 19,589,124   (518,938)       -               19,070,186    


Business-type activities capital assets, net 27,333,706$ (518,938)$     -$             26,814,768$  


 


DRAFT







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30, 2014 
 


- 38 - 


NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS – Continued  
 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows: 
 


Governmental activities:
General government 76,545$     
Public safety 140,537     
Highways and streets 194,178     
Transit 42,449       
Culture and recreation 141,308     
Public works 5,340        


Total governmental activities depreciation expense 600,357$   


Business-type activities:
Gas 38,710$     
Water 168,039     
Liquid waste 264,324     
Golf Course 143,860     
Airport 258,823     


Total business-type activities depreciation expense 873,756$   
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NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
The following schedule details the City’s long-term liability and obligation activity for the year 
ended June 30, 2014. 
 


Balance Balance Due within
July 1, 2013 Additions Reductions June 30, 2014 1 year


Governmental activities:
Compensated absences 169,845$     57,068$       50,735$       176,178$     140,942$     
Capital leases payable 132,029       -               64,644         67,385         67,385         
Bond payable-refunding 2,325,000    -               105,000       2,220,000    105,000       
Bond payable 2,500,000    -               110,000       2,390,000    115,000       
Bond discount (38,456)        2,403           -               (36,053)        (2,403)          
Notes payable 109,132       -               11,008         98,124         15,889         
Governmental activities


long-term liabilities 5,197,550$  59,471$       341,387$     4,915,634$  441,813$     


Business-type activities:
Compensated absences 92,571$       25,836$       35,043$       83,364$       66,691$       
Lease payable -               259,642       31,739         227,903       49,198         
Business-type activities


long-term liabilities 92,571$       285,478$     66,782$       311,267$     115,889$     


 
The following schedule details debt service requirements to maturity for the City’s bonds and notes 
payable at June 30, 2014. 
 


Year
Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest


2015 15,889$       4,419$         220,000$     177,788$       235,889$     182,207$           
2016 12,235         3,134           225,000       172,163         237,235       175,297             
2017 10,000         2,700           230,000       165,263         240,000       167,963             
2018 10,000         2,300           235,000       157,625         245,000       159,925             
2019 10,000         1,900           245,000       147,825         255,000       149,725             


2020-24 40,000         3,600           1,380,000    579,313         1,420,000    582,913             
2025-29 -               -               1,690,000    244,213         1,690,000    244,213             
2030-31 -               -               385,000       -                 385,000       -                    


Total 98,124$       18,053$       4,610,000$  1,644,188$    4,708,124$  1,662,241$        


Governmental Activities


Notes Payable Bonds Payable Total
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NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES – Continued  
 


Bonds Payable – The City’s bonded debt consists of a 2010 Excise Tax Revenue Bond issuance of 
$5,240,000. The Excise Tax Revenue Bond requires repayments of interest only due semi-annually 
starting January 1, 2011, with annual principal payments starting on July 1, 2011. Bonds 
outstanding at June 30, 2014, were as follows: 
 


Original Maturity Interest Outstanding
Amount Ranges Rates Principal


Excise tax revenue bond 2,525,000$  2030 3.70% 2,390,000$  
Excise tax revenue refunding bond 2,715,000    2030 3.70% 2,220,000    


Total excise tax revenue bonds 5,240,000$  4,610,000    


Amortized bond discount (36,053)        


Revenue bonds, net 4,573,947$  


Description


Governmental Activities


 
Notes Payable – Notes payable consisted of the following: 
 


Original Maturity Interest Outstanding
Amount Ranges Rates Principal


Note payable -  Company 100,000$     2023 4.00% 90,000$       
Note payable -  Individual 60,000         2016 7.00% 8,124           


Total notes payable 160,000$     98,124$       


Governmental Activities


Description


 
 
Capital Leases Payable – The City has acquired equipment under the provisions of a long-term 
lease agreements classified as capital leases for accounting purposes because they provides for a 
bargain purchase option or a transfer of ownership by the end of the lease term. 
 
The following schedule details debt service requirements to maturity for the City’s capital leases 
payable at June 30, 2014. 


Year Total Total
Ending Minimum Minimum
June 30 Principal Interest Lease Pmts Principal Interest Lease Pmts


2015 67,385$  2,856$    70,241$ 49,198$   8,101$    57,299$      
2016 -         -         -         51,172     6,126      57,299        
2017 -         -         -         53,226     4,072      57,299        
2018 -         -         -         55,363     1,936      57,299        
2019 -         -         -         18,944     156         19,100        


Total 67,385$  2,856$    70,241$ 227,903$ 20,392$  248,295$    


Governmental Activities
Leases Payable


Business-type Activities
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NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES – Continued  
 
The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows: 
 


Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total


Equipment 516,602$          259,642$         776,244$         
Less: accumulated depreciation (449,656)           (12,364)           (462,020)         


Carrying value 66,946$            247,278$         314,224$         


 
NOTE 7 – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City carries 
commercial insurance for all such risks of loss, including workers’ compensation and employees’ 
health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded 
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
 
 
NOTE 8 – RETIREMENT PLANS 
 
Plan Descriptions – The City contributes to the two plans described below.  Benefits are established 
by state statute and generally provide retirement, death, long-term disability, survivor, and health 
insurance premium benefits.  The retirement benefits are generally paid at a percentage, based on 
years of service, of the retirees’ average compensation.  Long-term disability benefits vary by 
circumstance, but generally pay a percentage of the employee’s monthly compensation.  Health 
insurance premium benefits are generally paid as a flat dollar amount per month towards the 
retiree’s health care insurance premiums, in amounts based on whether the benefit is for the retiree 
or for the retiree and dependents 
 
The Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS) administers cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension, health insurance premium, and long-term disability plans that cover employees of 
the State of Arizona and participating political subdivisions and school districts.  The ASRS is 
governed by the Arizona State Retirement System Board according to the provisions of A.R.S.  
Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 2.  The system issues a publicly available financial report that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information.  This report may be obtained by 
writing to the Arizona State Retirement System, 3300 N.  Central Ave., P.O.  Box 33910, Phoenix, 
Arizona, 85067-3910 or by calling (602) 240-2000 or 1 (800) 621-3778. 
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NOTE 8 – RETIREMENT PLANS – Continued 
 
The Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) administers agent multiple-employer 
defined benefit pension and health insurance premium plans that cover public safety personnel who 
are regularly assigned hazardous duty as employees of the State of Arizona or one of its political 
subdivisions.  The PSPRS, acting as a common investment and administrative agent, is governed by 
a five-member board, known as The Fund Manager, and the participating local boards according to 
the provisions of A.R.S.  Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 4.  The PSPRS issues a publicly available 
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.  This 
report may be obtained by writing to the Public Safety Personnel Retirement System, 3010 East 
Camelback Road, Suite 200, Phoenix, Arizona 85016-4416, or by calling (602) 255-5575. 
 
Funding Policy – The Arizona State Legislature establishes and may amend active plan members’ 
and the City’s contribution rates for both ASRS and PSPRS. 
 
Cost-sharing plans – For the year ended June 30, 2014, active ASRS members and the City were 
each required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 11.54 percent (11.30 
percent for retirement and 0.24 percent for long-term disability) of the members’ annual covered 
payroll.  The City’s contributions to ASRS for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012, were 
$262,066, $264,828, and $254,213, respectively, which were equal to the required contributions for 
the year. 
 
Agent plans – For the year ended June 30, 2014, active PSPRS members were required by statute to 
contribute 10.35 percent of the members’ annual covered payroll.  For the police department, the 
City was required to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 22.80 percent, of which 1.12 
percent was the health insurance premium portion.  For the fire department, the City was required to 
contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 21.63 percent, of which 1.71 percent was the health 
insurance premium portion.   
 
The contribution requirements for the year ended June 30, 2014, were established by the June 30, 
2012 actuarial valuations, and those actuarial valuations were based on the following actuarial 
methods and assumptions. 


Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of events in the future.  Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plans 
and the annual required contributions are subject to continual revision as actual results are 
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made.  The required schedule of funding status 
presented below provides multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of the 
plans’ assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for 
benefits.   
 
Projections of benefits are based on 1) the plans as understood by the City of Benson, Arizona and 
plan members and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date, and 2) the pattern of 
sharing benefit costs between the City and plan members to that point.  Actuarial calculations 
reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce 
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.  The significant
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NOTE 8 – RETIREMENT PLANS – Continued 
 
actuarial methods and assumptions used to establish the fiscal year 2014 contribution requirements 
are as follows: 
 


Actuarial valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period


Asset valuation method
Actuarial assumptions:


Investment rate of return 8.00%
Projected salary increases 5.00% - 9.00%
Payroll growth 5.00%


7-year smoothed market 


June 30, 2012
Entry Age Normal
Level percent-of-pay closed
24 years for underfunded actuarial liability, 20 
years for overfunded


 
Trend Information – Annual pension cost information for the current and two preceding years 
follows for each of the agent plans. 
 


Year Annual Net
Ended Pension Pension


Plan June 30 Cost (APC) Obligation


Pension - Police 2014 211,149     100 % -             
2013 175,377     100 -             
2012 160,607     100 -             


Pension - Fire 2014 22,501       100 % -             
2013 19,707       100 -             
2012 7,603         100 -             


Health Insurance - Police 2014 9,134         100 % -             
2013 9,842         100 -             
2012 9,738         100 -             


Health Insurance - Fire 2014 1,303         100 % -             
2013 1,342         100 -             
2012 1,563         100 -             


Contributed
of APC


Percentage


 
Schedules of Funded Status – Following are the schedules of funded status of the plans as of the 
most recent valuation date, June 30, 2014, and the previous two fiscal years.  The fiscal year 2014 
actuarial methods and assumptions used for the schedules are not significantly different than the 
fiscal year 2012 actuarial methods and assumptions as described above. 
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NOTE 8 – RETIREMENT PLANS – Continued  
 


Pension-Police
Unfunded


Actuarial Liability as
Value of Actuarial Unfunded AAL Annual Percentage of


Actuarial Plan Accrued Liability Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (Excess) Payroll Payroll


Date (a) (b) (b-a) (c) ([a-b]/c)


6/30/2014 2,010,735$ 3,895,269$  1,884,534$ 51.6      % 784,311$ 240.3          %
6/30/2013 2,080,926   3,443,201    1,362,275   60.4      785,494   173.4          
6/30/2012 1,978,329   3,334,699    1,356,370   59.3      739,731   183.4          


Pension-Fire
Unfunded


Actuarial Liability as
Value of Actuarial Unfunded AAL Annual Percentage of


Actuarial Plan Accrued Liability Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (Excess) Payroll Payroll


Date (a) (b) (b-a) (c) ([a-b]/c)


6/30/2014 421,688$    500,384$     78,696$      84.3      % 68,532$   114.8          %
6/30/2013 400,117      463,920       63,803        86.2      68,531     93.1            
6/30/2012 369,108      435,891       66,783        84.7      69,095     96.7            


Health Insurance-Police
Unfunded


Actuarial Liability as
Value of Actuarial Unfunded AAL Annual Percentage of


Actuarial Plan Accrued Liability Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (Excess) Payroll Payroll


Date (a) (b) (b-a) (c) ([a-b]/c)


6/30/2014 140,167$    118,884$     (21,283)$    117.9    % 784,311$ -              %
6/30/2013 -             114,719       114,719      -       785,494   14.6            
6/30/2012 -             95,227         95,227        -       739,731   12.9            


Health Insurance-Fire
Unfunded


Actuarial Liability as
Value of Actuarial Unfunded AAL Annual Percentage of


Actuarial Plan Accrued Liability Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (Excess) Payroll Payroll


Date (a) (b) (b-a) (c) ([a-b]/c)


6/30/2014 8,188$        18,787$       10,599$      43.6      % 68,532$   15.5            %
6/30/2013 -             18,901         18,901        -       68,531     27.6            
6/30/2012 -             17,527         17,527        -       69,095     25.4            


Funded
Ratio
(a/b)


Funded
Ratio
(a/b)


(a/b)


Funded
Ratio


Funded
Ratio
(a/b)
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NOTE 9 – INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY 
 
Interfund receivables and payables—Interfund balances at June 30, 2014, were as follows: 
 


Solid Waste 
Payable from General Fund Gas Fund Fund Total


HURF/LTAF Fund 653,481$         -$                -$                653,481$         
Capital Projects Fund 288,691           -                  -                  288,691           
Transit Fund (nonmajor) 188,526           -                  -                  188,526           
Water Fund -                  533,957           -                  533,957           
Liquid Waste Fund -                  572,138           -                  572,138           
Golf Course Fund -                  356,256           49,707             405,963           
Municipal Airport Fund 680,819           -                  161,040           841,859           


1,811,517$      1,462,351$      210,747$         3,484,615$      


Payable to


 
Interfund transfers—Interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, were as follows: 
 


Capital
Transfer to General Fund Projects Fund Total


Water Fund -$                39,023$           39,023$           
Grants Fund 121,612           -                  121,612           


121,612$         39,023$           160,635$         


Transfer from


 
The purpose of the interfund transfers shown above were to pay for capital expenditures and to fund 
current operations. 
 
 
NOTE 10 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
At June 30, 2014, the following funds reported a deficit fund balances, HURF/LTAF $566,656, 
Capital Project $308,253, and Transit $166,879. 
 
 
NOTE 9 – RESTATEMENT OF BEGINNING NET POSITION 
 
The City had to restate net position of the Governmental Activities to adjust for deferred costs 
which are no longer considered assets under GASB 65 (see Note 1).  The effects of the restatement 
are a reduction of beginning net position of the Governmental Activities in the amount of $158,510 


DRAFT







 


- 46 - 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION


DRAFT







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
Required Supplementary Information 


Budgetary Comparison Schedules 
General Fund 
June 30, 2014 


 


See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedule. 
- 47 – 


 
Actual Variance with


Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenue


Taxes 3,055,000$       3,055,000$       3,176,200$       121,200$          
Intergovernmental 1,460,391         1,460,391         1,309,134         (151,257)           
Other revenue 126,800            126,800            67,833              (58,967)             
Charges for services 58,600              58,600              53,211              (5,389)               
Licenses and permits 90,350              90,350              54,848              (35,502)             
Fines and forfeitures 69,000              69,000              27,746              (41,254)             
Interest 5,000                5,000                4,417                (583)                  


Total revenue 4,865,141         4,865,141         4,693,389         (171,752)           


Expenditures
Current


Public safety 2,625,291         2,625,291         2,229,771         395,520            
General government 1,905,220         1,905,220         1,564,047         341,173            
Culture and recreation 884,350            884,350            836,426            47,924              
Public works 109,398            109,398            75,535              33,863              


Debt service
Principal 300,438            300,438            290,652            9,786                
Interest 206,225            206,225            193,764            12,461              


Capital outlay 250,000            250,000            50,681              199,319            
Total expenditures 6,280,922         6,280,922         5,240,876         1,040,046         


Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures (1,415,781)        (1,415,781)        (547,487)           868,294            


Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in (out) (284,219)           (284,219)           (121,612)           162,607            


Total other financing
sources (uses) (284,219)           (284,219)           (121,612)           162,607            


Net changes in fund balance (1,700,000)        (1,700,000)        (669,099)           1,030,901         


Fund balance, July 1, 2013 1,700,000         1,700,000         4,788,100         3,088,100         


Fund balance, June 30, 2014 -                    -$                  4,119,001$       4,119,001$       


Budgeted Amounts
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Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget


Revenue
Intergovernmental 361,147$          361,147$          335,729$          (25,418)$           


Total revenue 361,147            361,147            335,729            (25,418)             


Expenditures
Current


Highways and streets 361,147            361,147            360,782            365                   
Total expenditures 361,147            361,147            360,782            365                   


Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures -                    -                    (25,053)             (25,053)             


Net changes in fund balance -                    -                    (25,053)             (25,053)             


Fund balance, July 1, 2013 -                    -                    (541,603)           (541,603)           


Fund balance, June 30, 2014 -                    -$                  (566,656)$         (566,656)$         


Budgeted Amounts
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Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget


Revenue
Taxes 400,000$          400,000$          178,656$          (221,344)$         
Intergovernmental 855,000            855,000            -                    (855,000)           
Interest -                    -                    650                   650                   
Impact fees 50,000              50,000              -                    (50,000)             


Total revenue 1,305,000         1,305,000         179,306            (1,125,694)        


Expenditures
Current


General government 280,000            280,000            250,000            30,000              
Highways and streets 300,000            300,000            20,561              279,439            


Capital outlay 1,475,000         1,475,000         5,627                1,469,373         
Total expenditures 2,055,000         2,055,000         276,188            1,778,812         


Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures (750,000)           (750,000)           (96,882)             653,118            


Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in (out) 750,000            750,000            (39,023)             (789,023)           


Total other financing
sources (uses) 750,000            750,000            (39,023)             (789,023)           


Net changes in fund balance -                    -                    (135,905)           (135,905)           


Fund balance, July 1, 2013 -                    -                    (172,348)           (172,348)           


Fund balance, June 30, 2014 -                    -$                  (308,253)$         (308,253)$         


Budgeted Amounts
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NOTE 1 – BUDGETING AND BUDGETARY CONTROL 
 
Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) require the City to prepare and adopt a balanced budget 
annually for each governmental fund. The City Council must approve such operating budgets on 
or before the third Monday in July to allow sufficient time for the legal announcements and 
hearings required for the adoption of the property tax levy on the third Monday in August. 
A.R.S. prohibit expenditures or liabilities in excess of the amounts budgeted. 
 
Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the department level. In certain instances, 
transfers of appropriations between departments or from the contingency account to a department 
may be made upon the City Councils’ approval. 
 
NOTE 2 – BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 
The City’s budget is prepared on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 


COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 


ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
To the City Council  
City of Benson, Arizona 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the 
City of Benson, Arizona, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Benson, Arizona’s basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated February 13, 2015. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of 
Benson, Arizona’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City of Benson, Arizona’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Benson, Arizona’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Benson, Arizona’s financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 


 
February 13, 2015 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  
ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE 


TO THE USES OF HIGHWAY USER REVENUE FUND MONIES 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARS TITLE 28, CHAPTER 18, ARTICLE 2 


 
 
To the City Council  
City of Benson, Arizona 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, 
each major fund, and aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Benson as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2014, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated February 13, 2015. 


In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the City 
failed to use highway user revenue fund monies received by the City pursuant to Arizona 
Revised Statutes Title 28, Chapter 18, Article 2 and any other dedicated state transportation 
revenues received by the City solely for the authorized transportation purposes. However, our 
audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. 


This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and the members of the 
Arizona State Legislature and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public record, and its distribution is 
not limited. 
 


 
February 13, 2015 
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Discussion:  
 
This item has been placed on the agenda for Council to give direction to Staff regarding entering a contract with 
Fireworks Productions of Arizona, Ltd. to display fireworks during the 4th of July Celebration.  
 
The anticipated contract will be similar to the contracts the City has entered into with them for the past 10 
years.  
 
Attachment:  
Contract 
Exhibit A 
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Council pleasure 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                         Agenda Item # 3
                                               
From: William D. Stephens, City Manager 
           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding a Fireworks display contract between Fireworks Productions of 
Arizona, Ltd. and the City of Benson 
 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting            March 23, 2015 
 







Fireworks Productions of Arizona  
17034 S.54th St. 


Chandler, AZ 85226 
Office 480-948-0090 ~ Fax 480-423-5430 


 
FIREWORKS DISPLAY CONTRACT 


 
 
This fireworks display contract is between FPA, Ltd., an Arizona Corporation DBA Fireworks 
Productions of Arizona ('FPA'), and City of Benson. 
 
FPA is in the business of selling and displaying fireworks, and City of Benson wants FPA to 
provide a fireworks display for City of Benson's benefit. The parties therefore agree as follows: 
 
 


1. The Display. FPA will provide and exhibit fireworks for a display on Saturday, July 4, 
2015. The display will begin at approximately 8:30 pm, will last approximately 20 - 25 
minutes, and will substantially comply with the program set forth in Exhibit A. 


2. Contract Price. City of Benson will pay FPA the sum of $10,000.00 (the 'Contract 
Price') as consideration for the fireworks display. Payment will be made as follows: 


a. 50% of the Contract Price upon the signing of this contract or by no later than 
May 15, 2015; 


b. The balance of the Contract Price within twenty days after the completion of the 
Fireworks Display. 


City of Benson agrees to pay interest at the rate of 2% per month on any delinquent 
balance until the debt is paid in full. In the event that City of Benson fails to perform its 
obligations and responsibilities pursuant to this contract and it becomes necessary for 
FPA to enforce its rights by hiring an attorney, City of Benson will be responsible for, in 
addition to any other sums for which it is found responsible, all attorney fees and costs 
incurred by FPA in collecting said sums. 


3. Permits. The City of Benson will apply for and secure, at City of Benson’s cost, all 
permits, licenses, and approvals required by all applicable local, state, or federal laws and 
regulations as well as any imposed or required by local police or fire departments. City of 
Benson will provide FPA evidence of the acquisition and validity of all required permits, 
licenses, and approvals no later than seven days before the Original Date. 


4. Insurance. FPA shall secure and maintain, at all times during the term of this contract a 
policy or policies of insurance known as: (1) Commercial General Liability in the amount 
of $10,000,000. (2) Business Automobile Liability in the amount of $10,000,000. (3) 
Worker's Compensation (Industrial Insurance) in the amount of $9,500,000. 


5. Display Site. City of Benson will procure and furnish a place suitable to FPA for the 
fireworks display. The site will be sufficient to accommodate spectator viewing areas, 
vehicle parking areas, and the Display Site. 'Display Site' means the discharge site, the 
fallout site, and the required separation distance from mortars to the spectator viewing 
areas in compliance with the most recent edition of the National Fire Protection 







Association 1123 Code for Fireworks Display. 
6. Security. City of Benson will furnish all necessary materials for and will set up 


restraining lines pursuant to instructions supplied by FPA and in compliance with most 
recent edition of the National Fire Protection Association 1123 Code for Fireworks 
Display. City of Benson will hire and provide, at its own cost and expense, adequate 
private or public security personnel to ensure that no vehicles are parked within the 
Display Site and that no individuals, other than those specifically authorized by FPA, 
enter the Display Site. The security personnel will remain on the perimeter of the Display 
Site and will not enter the Display Site before, during, or immediately following the 
fireworks display. 


7. Cleanup of Display Area. Following the display, FPA will be responsible for cleanup of 
all boxes and equipment and policing of the display area including the removal of all 
unexploded fireworks, removal of frames, lumber and the refilling of holes. 


8. Weather or Safety Cancellation. If FPA or the Authority Having Jurisdiction (AHJ) 
determines that display of fireworks on the date and at the time set forth in paragraph one 
(the 'Original Date') would be impossible or impractical because of inclement weather or 
safety concerns, the display will be canceled. City of Benson will pay FPA, its 'Actual 
Expenses' related to preparation for the unsuccessful displays on the Original Date. 
'Actual Expenses' shall include expenses for travel, lodging, labor, meals, rentals, 
permits, setup and dismantling of the display, and any other expenses related to the 
unsuccessful attempts to present the display on the Original Date. 


9. Cancellation. (*other than paragraph 8, above). The parties acknowledge that, if City 
of Benson cancels this contract, FPA will suffer damages. They further acknowledge that 
those damages will be uncertain as to amount and difficult to prove. In the event that City 
of Benson does cancel this contract, therefore, FPA will be entitled to recover, not as a 
penalty, but as liquidated damages, an amount set forth below: 


a. If cancellation occurs prior to June 16, 2015, an amount equal to 10% of the 
Contract Price; 


b. If cancellation occurs between June 16, 2015 and July 3, 2015, an amount equal 
to 50% of the Contract Price; 


c. On or after the Original Date, an amount equal to 100% of the Contract Price. 
10. Additional Fireworks. City of Benson has until June 18, 2015 to request additional 


fireworks.  The additional amount will be added to the balance of the Contract Price due 
twenty days after the completion of the Fireworks Display. 


11. Not a Partnership. This agreement shall not be construed so as to create a partnership, 
joint venture, employment, or agency relationship between the parties. 


12. Acts of God. In the event of fire, accident, strike, act of God, terrorism or other causes 
beyond the reasonable control of either party that prevent performance of either or both 
parties' obligations under this contract (other than inclement weather or safety concerns 
as described in paragraph eight) each party hereby releases the other from any and all 
obligations hereunder, except for liabilities that may have already accrued to such time. 


13. Indemnifications and Liability. The Parties will hold harmless and indemnify each 
other from any demands, claims, causes of action or liability arising from damage to or 
destruction of real or personal property or bodily or personal injuries, whether arising 
from tort, contract, or otherwise, that occur directly from the failure of the Parties to 
comply with their obligations and responsibilities as set forth in this contract, including 







attorney fees and costs. The Parties shall not, under any circumstances, be entitled to 
recover any consequential, incidental, exemplary, special, or punitive damages from each 
other, including, without limitation, loss of income or profits. 


14. Whole Agreement. This written contract, including Exhibit A, is the entire agreement 
between the parties. No statement, promise, or inducement made by either party or agent 
of either party that is not contained in this written contract will be valid or binding. This 
contract may not be enlarged, modified, or altered, except in writing signed by both 
parties. 


15. Conflict of Interest.  This contract may be cancelled for conflict of interest, pursuant to 
A.R.S. 38-511. 


16. Qualifications of Service.  FPA warrants and agrees that it is qualified to perform the 
services under this contract and will abide by all applicable laws and regulations. 


17. Dispute Resolution.  Venue and jurisdiction for any dispute resolution proceeding shall 
be in Cochise County, Arizona. 


 
FPA, Ltd.  City of Benson  


   


___________________________  ___________________________ 
(Authorized Signature)  (Authorized Signature) 
   


Title: Pyro Planning Specialist  Title:___________________________ 
Date: March 16, 2015  Date:___________________________ 


 


 







EXHIBIT A 


 


CITY OF BENSON 


Saturday, July 4, 2015 
 


20 - 25 minute display 
 


Total Aerial Effects    1,533 
 


Total Shells    433      Total in Basins    1,100 


OPENING: 
The City of Benson’s show begins with an impressive series of powerful booms 


and flashing white light to excite and thrill the audience. 
 
7 - 3” Titanium Salutes  


 
AERIAL DISPLAY: 


A large assortment of brilliantly-colored shells, including Chrysanthemums, Rings, 
Various Shapes, Waves, Crowns, Peonies, Strobes, Double Rings, Brocade Crowns, 
Diadems, and Crossettes in gorgeous Reds, Yellows, Blues, Greens, Silvers, and Golds. 
 


Your Aerial Display will contain a total of 342 aerial shells and 1,100 basin effects. 
                  


1 ½” -     10  FPA Premier Specialty Basins 


                 3”  -     180  Chinese Fancy’s & Specials  


                 4”  -     162  Chinese Fancy’s with Designer Specials 


                  


GRANDE FINALE: 
Your 4th of July celebration will close in spectacular excitement as multiple styles of 


brilliantly-colored shells, rocket skyward growing and glowing in breath-taking Blues, 
Golds, Greens, Silvers, Yellows, Purples and Red. 


 


Your Grande Finale consists of 84 aerial shells: 


Your Grande Finale: 49 - 3” shells and 28 – 4” shells 
followed by 7 - 3” Titanium Salutes 


Designed for the City of Benson by:  Fireworks Productions of Arizona 
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Discussion:  
 
On March 6th, the Benson Police Department was made aware of the 2015 National Criminal History 
Improvement Program (NCHIP) Grant Application.  The Chief of Police requests authorization to submit and if 
approved, accept the 2015 NCHIP Grant.  The Police Department intends to submit an application for funding 
to purchase a new Livescan Booking workstation, a 2-year Maintenance Plan and training for up to four 
employees. The total funding needed is not to exceed $33,477.27.  The grant requires a 10% match. The City’s 
match would be $3,347.72. 
 
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approval of Resolution 11-2015 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                         Agenda Item # 4  
                                               
From: Paul F. Moncada, Chief of Police 
           
 
 
 


 


Subject:  
 
Discussion and possible action regarding Resolution 11-2015 of the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, 
Arizona, authorizing the Chief of Police to apply for a National Criminal History Improvement Program Grant 
and to accept it if awarded  
 
 
 
 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting           March 23, 2015 
 







RESOLUTION 11-2015 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BENSON, 
ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF OF POLICE TO APPLY FOR A NATIONAL 
CRIMINAL HISTORY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM GRANT AND TO ACCEPT  IT IF 
AWARDED 
 


WHEREAS, the Federal Government of the United States currently makes available grant 
monies through a program called the National Criminal History Improvement Program (NCHIP); and 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Benson has an opportunity to apply for such an NCHIP grant; and  


 
WHEREAS, the Chief of Police for the City of Benson wants authority to apply for an 


NCHIP grant in the amount of $33,477.27 to fund a new Livescan Booking workstation, a 2-year 
Maintenance Plan and training for up to four employees; and 


 
WHEREAS, the above discussed NCHIP grant requires a 10% match by the applicant which, 


if the City of Benson is awarded the $33,477.27 NCHIP grant in full, would amount to $3,347.72 to 
be matched and paid by the City of Benson 


 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, 


Arizona, that the Chief of Police is hereby authorized to apply for the above discussed NCHIP grant. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that if the above discussed grant is awarded, in whole or in 


part, then the Chief of Police for the City of Benson is authorized to expend such funds consistent 
with the terms of the grant and the above discussed intended purpose, while complying with the 
City’s procurement policies, and to execute all documents necessary to accept and expend the grant 
funds consistent herewith.  


 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


BENSON, ARIZONA, this 23rd day of March, 2015. 
 


       ________________________________ 
       TONEY D. KING, SR., Mayor 
 
ATTEST:       
 
________________________________   
VICKI L. VIVIAN, CMC, City Clerk  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________________ 
MESCH, CLARK & ROTHSCHILD 
by GARY J. COHEN 
City’s Attorney           
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Discussion:  
 
The Benson Clean and Beautiful has requested this issue be placed on the agenda for Council to consider 
authorizing a mural to be painted on a vacant panel on the West end of the East parking lot, first space, of our 
Visitor’s Center. This mural will be funded by the San Pedro Valley Railroad and the Benson Clean and 
Beautiful. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation:  
 
Council pleasure 
 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                         Agenda Item # 5   
                                               
From: William D. Stephens, City Manager  
           
 
 


 


 
Subject:  
 
Discussion and possible action to authorize a proposed mural on an outdoor wall of the Visitor’s Center parking 
lot 
 
 
 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting           March 23, 2015 


 
 







Vicki Vivian  


From: 
3ent: 	 Monday, March 09, 2015 9:09 AM 
To: 	 Vicki Vivian 
Subject: 	 Requesting Permission for Mural at Visitor Center Parking Lot 
Attachments: 	 passenger train 01.jpg 


Vicki: 


Please place Benson Clean & Beautiful on the agenda for the March 23 council meeting. 


We are requesting permission to have the attached mural painted on a panel at the 
Benson Visitors' Center. This mural will be funded by San Pedro Valley Railroad and 
Benson Clean & Beautiful. 


Thank you. 


Lisa Hill, President 
Benson Clean & Beautiful 
520-586-2515 


1 












                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:  
 
Council gave direction to Staff, at the February 23, 2015 Council meeting, to create an ordinance outlining 
attendance/absence parameters and specifying the type of Information Technology electronic means to attend 
Council meetings in absentia. The ordinance in the Council’s packet is for your review, discussion and 
consideration. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation:  
 
Council pleasure 
 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                         Agenda Item # 6   
                                               
From: William D. Stephens, City Manager  
           
 
 
 


 


Subject:  
 
Discussion and possible action on an ordinance about the number of times the Mayor and Councilmembers 
can appear for regular and special meetings by telephone or other available electronic means 
 
 
 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting        March 23, 2015 
 







ORDINANCE 576 
  
AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BENSON, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE BENSON CITY CODE, CHAPTER 2 
“MAYOR AND COUNCIL,” ARTICLE 2-1 “COUNCIL,” TO CREATE 
SECTION 2-1-9 “ATTENDANCE” 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Benson has adopted a City Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council have amended the City Code from time to 
time; and 
 
 WHEREAS, within the City Code there is a Chapter 2, Article 2-1, addressing 
Mayor and Council; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there currently is no Section in the Benson City Code about Mayor 
and Council attendance requirements at regular and special meetings; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to have its City Code address the Mayor and 
Councilmembers’ attendance requirements at regular and special meetings.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City 
of Benson, Arizona, as follows: 
 
Section 1: That the Benson City Code, Chapter 2, Article 2-1, is amended to include 


Section 2-1-9, “Attendance” to read as follows: 
 
  Section 2-1-9    Attendance 
 


A. The Mayor and Councilmembers, to discharge their duties of office, shall 
be physically present at regular and special meetings. The Mayor and 
Councilmembers can, however, cumulatively attend up to and no more 
than _________ of these meetings, whether regular or special, by phone or 
other available electronic means in a calendar year. The Mayor and 
Councilmembers can consecutively attend up to and no more than 
_________ of these meetings, whether regular or special, by phone or 
other available electronic means in a calendar year. The number of times 
the Mayor and any Councilmember can consecutively and/or cumulatively 
attend meetings, whether regular or special, by telephone or other 
available electronic means in a calendar year can only be increased by a 
majority vote of a quorum of the Mayor and Council, in their full 
discretion, so long as this vote occurs before any above restrictions are 
violated. The individual about whom a vote is taken to increase the 
number of times that he or she can consecutively and/or cumulatively 
attend meetings, whether regular or special, by telephone or other 
available electronic means in a calendar year cannot vote on that matter.  


Page 1 of 2 
 







 
Section 2: All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of 


this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 3:  This ordinance shall take effect thirty days after adoption.   
 
Section 4: If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this 


Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the 
decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not 
affect the validity of the remaining portion thereof. 


 
Section 5: The City Clerk is directed to publish the text of this Ordinance in the San 


Pedro Valley News Sun for two (2) consecutive weeks, and further to post 
a copy of this Ordinance in three (3) or more public places within the City. 


 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY 


OF BENSON, ARIZONA, this 23rd day of March, 2015.   
 
  


       ________________________________ 
       TONEY D. KING, SR., Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:       
 
________________________________   
VICKI L. VIVIAN, CMC, City Clerk  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________________ 
MESCH, CLARK & ROTHSCHILD 
by GARY J. COHEN 
City’s Attorney 
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Discussion:  
 
Staff will present the attached power point slide shows to summarize the results of City operations and the 
City’s financial position at February 28, 2015.  
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Information only 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                         Agenda Item # 7
                                     
From: Dustin DeSpain, Finance Director 
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Review of City Finances with emphasis on February financial results, and the City’s financial position at 
February 28, 2015   
 
 
 
 
 


 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting                     March 23, 2015 
 











•Unrestricted Cash sits at $1.2M 
•Bond Proceeds are $954K Cash 


•Revenues exceeded our Expenditures by 
$211K for the month 
•$456K for the Fiscal Year 
•-$207K for YTD through Feb 2015 


Fund 
Balances 







•Monthly Revenues: $818K 
• Fiscal Year: $5.9 Million  
• -$247k decrease from YTD through Feb 2014 


Revenues 


•Monthly Personnel: $345K 
• A decrease of -$50K compared to Feb 2014 


and a -$399K decrease YTD.  
Personnel 


•Other Expenditures were $241K for the month 
• A decrease of -$55K compared to Feb 2014 


and a -$368K decrease YTD. 
Other Costs 







•Monthly Revenues:$409K 
•Fiscal Year: $2.2 Million 
•-$23K decrease from 2013 


Revenues 


•Monthly Personnel: $222K  
•A decrease of -$31K for Feb  and -$228K YTD 
•Other Expenses: $66K 
•A decrease of -$1K for Feb and a decrease of -$138K YTD 


Expenditures 


•Revenues exceeded Expenditures by $121K for the month 
•$28K for the Fiscal Year  
•-$320K for Fiscal YTD through Feb 2014 


Fund Balance 







•Monthly Revenues: $113K  YTD Revenues: $589K 
•Fund Balance YTD: $206K Gas 
•Monthly Revenues: $49K  YTD Revenues: $466K 
•Fund Balance YTD: $114K Water 
•Monthly Revenues: $59K  YTD Revenues: $489K 
•Fund Balance YTD: $182K Wastewater 
•Monthly Revenues: $53K  YTD Revenues: $421 K 
•Fund Balance YTD: $70K  Sanitation 
•Operations Fund Balance   $15K for Feb, -$58K YTD  
•Food & Bev Fund Balance   -$196 for Feb, -$28K YTD Golf Course 
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Discussion:  
 
Mayor King notified Mr. Wangsness the Council seat he was filling has been deemed vacant by operation of 
law.  Per City Code, this vacancy must be filled within 30 days. 
 
To do so, the appointment must be made no later than April 2, 2015.  The vacant seat has been advertised with 
a deadline for a candidate package submission to be made no later than March 31, 2015.  Council may 
convene a special meeting to consider applicants and make the appointment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation:  
 
Council pleasure 
 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                         Agenda Item # 8   
                                               
From: William D. Stephens, City Manager  
           
 
 


 


 
Subject:  
 
Discussion and possible action on procedures to an individual to fill Council seat 
 
 
 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting           March 23, 2015 








                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:  
 
Mr. Jim Usevitch from Colby and Powell, PLC, Certified Public Accountants, will present the City’s audited 
financial statements to Council for review and will be available to answer Council’s questions. 
 
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Presentation only 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                        Agenda Item # 2 
                                               
From: Dustin DeSpain, Finance Director 
           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Presentation of the Certified Audit Report for the City of Benson for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 
 
 
 


 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting                               March 23, 2015 








LEGAL NOTICE 
 


CITY OF BENSON 
CITY COUNCIL 


PUBLIC HEARING 
MARCH 23, 2015 – 7:00 P.M. 


 
 


THE CITY COUNCIL WILL HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
CONSIDERING A PROJECT FOR WHICH FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IS BEING 
SOUGHT FROM THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION.  THE PUBLIC 
HEARING WILL BE ON MARCH 23, 2015 AT 7:00 P.M. AT BENSON CITY HALL, 
120 W. 6TH STREET, BENSON, ARIZONA. 


 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 
The City of Benson’s City Council will hold a Public Hearing on March 23, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. at 
the Benson City Council Chambers, 120 W. 6th Street, Benson, Arizona, 85602. 
 
The purpose of this public hearing will be to receive comments from the public regarding a 
project for which financial assistance is being sought from the U.S. Department of 
Transportation.  Grant funds will be used to provide general public transit to the residents and 
visitors of the City of Benson and the surrounding communities. 
 
At the hearing, the City of Benson will afford an opportunity for interested persons or agencies 
to be heard with respect to the social, economic and environmental aspects of the project.  
Interested persons may submit oral or written evidence and recommendations with respect to 
said project.  A copy of the grant proposal is currently available for public inspection at City 
Hall, 120. W. 6th Street, Benson, AZ.  
 
All facilities are handicap accessible.  If you have a special accessibility need, please contact  
Ms. Vicki Vivian, City Clerk, at 520-586-2245 or TDD 586-3624 no later than eight (8) hours 
before the scheduled meeting time. 
 
Vicki L. Vivian, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
Posted this 4th day of March, 2015 
 
 
 
 





